

# WebFocus

Magnify Search Developer's Guide Release 8.2 Version 01M

May 21, 2019

Active Technologies, EDA, EDA/SQL, FIDEL, FOCUS, Information Builders, the Information Builders logo, iWay, iWay Software, Parlay, PC/FOCUS, RStat, Table Talk, Web390, WebFOCUS, WebFOCUS Active Technologies, and WebFOCUS Magnify are registered trademarks, and DataMigrator and Hyperstage are trademarks of Information Builders, Inc.

Adobe, the Adobe logo, Acrobat, Adobe Reader, Flash, Adobe Flash Builder, Flex, and PostScript are either registered trademarks or trademarks of Adobe Systems Incorporated in the United States and/or other countries.

Due to the nature of this material, this document refers to numerous hardware and software products by their trademarks. In most, if not all cases, these designations are claimed as trademarks or registered trademarks by their respective companies. It is not this publisher's intent to use any of these names generically. The reader is therefore cautioned to investigate all claimed trademark rights before using any of these names other than to refer to the product described.

Copyright © 2019, by Information Builders, Inc. and iWay Software. All rights reserved. Patent Pending. This manual, or parts thereof, may not be reproduced in any form without the written permission of Information Builders, Inc.

# Contents

Pref	ace	. 7
	Conventions	8
	Related Publications	9
	Customer Support	9
	Information You Should Have	.10
	User Feedback	. 11
	Information Builders Consulting and Training	. 11
1. G	etting Started With Magnify Search	13
	About Magnify Search	. 13
	Magnify Search Architecture	.13
2. 0	verview of Implementing Magnify Search	.15
	Planning for Enterprise Search	
	About the Magnify Feed Process	
3. M	lagnify Search: Building Indexes With WebFOCUS Reports	. 19
	Introducing Magnify Search Indexing	
	Indexing the Course File	
	Prerequisites for Indexing With the Movie and Car Files	
	Disable Procedure Parameters.	
	Indexing the Movie File	
	Indexing the Car File	. 54
	Post-Indexing Verification	. 68
	Word Cloud Usage Considerations	. 70
	Force Closing an Index During a Feed Process	. 74
	Upgrading Your Lucene Indexes	76
	Magnify Distributed Indexes	.78
	Enable Distributed Indexes for Load Balancing	82
<b>4.</b> In	Idexing Using the FORMAT MAGNIFY Command	.83
	FORMAT MAGNIFY	. 83
	Using FORMAT MAGNIFY With TEXT Fields.	. 89
	Writing Magnify Feed Documents to Disk	. 89
	Using Sentiment Analysis With Magnify Search	. 90

5. Magnify Search Meta Tags	93
HTML Format for All Access Types	93
HTML Format Required for an External URL	
File Indexing Specific Meta Tag Information	97
Sentiment Analysis Indexing	98
HTML Format for a Stand-alone Report Procedure	99
HTML Format for a Managed Reporting Procedure	100
HTML Format for a Business Intelligence Portal Item	101
HTML Format for an AUTORUN Procedure	103
6. Magnify Search Protocols	105
Magnify Search Protocols for Indexing Documents	105
General Specification	
Header Element	106
Record Element	107
Protocol Specification	108
XML Protocol of Search Result Output	112
Word Cloud and Category Tree Data Returned in Magnify Search XML	
Output	112
7. Configuring the Adapter for Flat File to Search File Repositories	115
Overview	115
File Indexing Requirements	116
Creating a New Application Mapping to the File Repository Directory	116
Defining a New Application Directory	118
Defining a File Monitor Synonym	119
Configuring the File Monitor Master File	121
Advanced Configuration	123
Transforming Documents Into Searchable Content	124
Getting Started	124
Configuring a FORMAT MAGNIFY Procedure	125
8. Auto Complete	131
Overview	131
Configuring Auto Complete	

### Contents

Generating Suggestion Indices.	133
Generating a Suggestion Index During the Regular Feed Process	
Generating a Suggestion Index Using a Batch/Script Program	
Usage Considerations	135
Disabling Auto Complete	135
Suggestion Limits	136
9. Magnify Search Crawler	137
Overview	
Prerequisites	
Deploying Magnify Search Crawler	
Configuring Magnify Search Crawler	139
A. Supporting Information for iWay	
Overview	
About the Magnify Feed Process	146
Magnify Search Feed Example	148
XML File From the Listener	150
Store Values	
Create HTML	152
Feed to Search Engine	155
Configuration Worksheets	
B. Magnify Search Error Handling	
Magnify Error Handling	
License for Indexing	
Resolving OutOfMemoryError Exceptions	

Contents

This content explains how to install, configure, and use Magnify Search, an Information Builders enterprise business intelligent search tool. It is intended for developers who need to create search applications with Magnify Search.

### How This Manual Is Organized

This manual includes the following chapters:

	Chapter/Appendix	Contents
1	Getting Started With Magnify Search	Provides an overview of Magnify Search, highlighting its features and the underlying architecture.
2	Overview of Implementing Magnify Search	Provides an overview of the process to set up Magnify Search for use. A scenario with example parameters is provided here and carried through the remaining chapters to help illustrate the configuration steps.
3	Magnify Search: Building Indexes With WebFOCUS Reports	Contains examples in support of Magnify Search indexing.
4	Indexing Using the FORMAT MAGNIFY Command	Describes the requirements for indexing data using the FORMAT MAGNIFY command.
5	Magnify Search Meta Tags	Presents and describes the meta tags used with Magnify Search.
6	Magnify Search Protocols	Describes the Magnify Search protocols for indexing data.
7	Configuring the Adapter for Flat File to Search File Repositories	Describes how to configure the Adapter for Flat File to search file repositories.
8	Auto Complete	Describes how to configure Auto Complete for Magnify Search.
9	Magnify Search Crawler	Describes how to deploy and configure the Magnify Search Crawler.

	Chapter/Appendix	Contents
A	Supporting Information for iWay	Provides supporting information for iWay.
В	Magnify Search Error Handling	Presents error handling information for Magnify Search.

### Conventions

The following table describes the conventions that are used in this manual.

Convention	Description
THIS TYPEFACE	Denotes syntax that you must enter exactly as shown.
or	
this typeface	
this typeface	Represents a placeholder (or variable) in syntax for a value that you or the system must supply.
underscore	Indicates a default setting.
this typeface	Represents a placeholder (or variable), a cross-reference, or an important term. It may also indicate a button, menu item, or dialog box option that you can click or select.
Key + Key	Indicates keys that you must press simultaneously.
{ }	Indicates two or three choices. Type one of them, not the braces.
[ ]	Indicates a group of optional parameters. None are required, but you may select one of them. Type only the parameter in the brackets, not the brackets.
	Separates mutually exclusive choices in syntax. Type one of them, not the symbol.
	Indicates that you can enter a parameter multiple times. Type only the parameter, not the ellipsis ().

Convention	Description
• • •	Indicates that there are (or could be) intervening or additional commands.

### **Related Publications**

Visit our Technical Content Library at *http://documentation.informationbuilders.com*. You can also contact the Publications Order Department at (800) 969-4636.

### **Customer Support**

Do you have questions about this product?

Join the Focal Point community. Focal Point is our online developer center and more than a message board. It is an interactive network of more than 3,000 developers from almost every profession and industry, collaborating on solutions and sharing tips and techniques. Access Focal Point at <a href="http://forums.informationbuilders.com/eve/forums">http://forums.informationbuilders.com/eve/forums</a>.

You can also access support services electronically, 24 hours a day, with InfoResponse Online. InfoResponse Online is accessible through our website, *http://www.informationbuilders.com*. It connects you to the tracking system and known-problem database at the Information Builders support center. Registered users can open, update, and view the status of cases in the tracking system and read descriptions of reported software issues. New users can register immediately for this service. The technical support section of *www.informationbuilders.com* also provides usage techniques, diagnostic tips, and answers to frequently asked questions.

Call Information Builders Customer Support Services (CSS) at (800) 736-6130 or (212) 736-6130. Customer Support Consultants are available Monday through Friday between 8:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m. EST to address all your questions. Information Builders consultants can also give you general guidance regarding product capabilities. Please be ready to provide your six-digit site code number (*xxxx.xx*) when you call.

To learn about the full range of available support services, ask your Information Builders representative about InfoResponse Online, or call (800) 969-INFO.

### Information You Should Have

To help our consultants answer your questions effectively, be prepared to provide the following information when you call:

- □ Your six-digit site code (*xxxx.xx*).
- □ Your WebFOCUS configuration:
  - □ The front-end software you are using, including vendor and release.
  - □ The communications protocol (for example, TCP/IP or HLLAPI), including vendor and release.
  - □ The software release.
  - ❑ Your server version and release. You can find this information using the Version option in the Web Console.
- The stored procedure (preferably with line numbers) or SQL statements being used in server access.
- □ The Master File and Access File.
- □ The exact nature of the problem:
  - Are the results or the format incorrect? Are the text or calculations missing or misplaced?
  - Provide the error message and return code, if applicable.
  - □ Is this related to any other problem?
- ❑ Has the procedure or query ever worked in its present form? Has it been changed recently? How often does the problem occur?
- ❑ What release of the operating system are you using? Has it, your security system, communications protocol, or front-end software changed?
- □ Is this problem reproducible? If so, how?
- Have you tried to reproduce your problem in the simplest form possible? For example, if you are having problems joining two data sources, have you tried executing a query containing just the code to access the data source?
- Do you have a trace file?

□ How is the problem affecting your business? Is it halting development or production? Do you just have questions about functionality or documentation?

### **User Feedback**

In an effort to produce effective documentation, the Technical Content Management staff welcomes your opinions regarding this document. You can contact us through our website, *http://documentation.informationbuilders.com/connections.asp*.

Thank you, in advance, for your comments.

### Information Builders Consulting and Training

Interested in training? Information Builders Education Department offers a wide variety of training courses for this and other Information Builders products.

For information on course descriptions, locations, and dates, or to register for classes, visit our website (*http://education.informationbuilders.com*) or call (800) 969-INFO to speak to an Education Representative.

Chapter

### **Getting Started With Magnify Search**

This section introduces Magnify Search.

### In this chapter:

- About Magnify Search
- Magnify Search Architecture

### **About Magnify Search**

Magnify Search is an enterprise search tool that allows you to search your structured and unstructured business content, such as application data and database records, through an easy-to-use search interface. Because the Information Builders adapter product line provides access to over 300 data sources, Magnify Search acts as the single point of access to information that resides in multiple applications throughout your enterprise.

When you search for a keyword or phrase, Magnify Search scans the indexed content and returns a results page that includes a navigation tree to focus your search, and links that trigger dynamic WebFOCUS reports to present you with the most current information in your enterprise.

Through various configuration parameters in Magnify Search, you determine what data in your business content will be accessible to a search and which WebFOCUS report to run from a search results link. By using a combination of the Magnify Search style sheet (provided with the product) and these parameters, you can customize the appearance of your search results page.

### Magnify Search Architecture

The Magnify Search platform connects end users to enterprise information through a single point of access in order to search across any content repository, including any structured or unstructured data, so that when a search is made, Magnify Search returns only the most relevant search results. End users can drill down on search results to analyze and understand their information.

Magnify search-based applications are built using methods to extract raw data and transform it into search results. During this process, data is enriched with categorizations and other metadata that Magnify Search can use in retrieving and presenting results. This includes item titles, images, geographical details, and drill-down links to associated reports or applications. These processes can be automated so that data storage facilities and file repositories are always kept in sync with Magnify Search. This means that whenever new information is added, old information is updated, or information has expired, Magnify Search will always be up-todate.

The following diagram shows the interaction between the major components associated with Magnify Search.





# Overview of Implementing Magnify Search

This section provides a high-level look at the entire Magnify Search feed process, which is detailed in subsequent chapters.

This section also provides the scenario and example data that we use throughout the configuration steps to illustrate a typical configuration of Magnify Search.

### In this chapter:

- Planning for Enterprise Search
- About the Magnify Feed Process

### Planning for Enterprise Search

The following are some general guidelines that can help your organization prepare for a successful Magnify deployment.

### Search versus Report.

- What do you want to search?
- How do you want the results to be presented?
- What details do you want to see?

### **Content Types.**

- □ How is the information organized?
- U What are the common attributes across your data?
- Are there relationships among the data?

### Architecture.

- □ What information is searchable?
- □ What information will be used for reporting?
- □ How is information aggregated and filtered?

### **Transforming Data into Search Content.**

Magnify can search on any structured or unstructured data that contains strings or numbers. Fields and file properties (state, type, and keywords) are designated as attributes of search content to be later used for sorting, filtering, and navigation.

### Security.

Magnify provides security features to restrict access to specific pieces of data. When choosing a security model for your application, several factors will determine how to set up security when retrieving search results, such as integration with existing security infrastructure, who is authorized to access the search application, and what information each type of user will be able to access.

### About the Magnify Feed Process

Linking the entire organization through the enterprise search overcomes operational, departmental, and regional boundaries. Enterprise search needs to provide a model to group information for users to easily classify both similar and dissimilar content, as well as to filter large results sets.

In addition, users need a simple, authentic, and interactive experience searching content. Setting up a search solution should allow administrators and developers to concentrate more on information availability and integrity and less on application design.

Note: Basic report writing knowledge is a prerequisite to perform the following tasks.

The following topics are addressed in this manual:

- Creating a procedure to review all available data.
- Creating a procedure to transform the data into search content.
- Configuring a procedure to index data with the Magnify search engine library.
- **Q** Reviewing the search-based application generated.

**Note:** If any type of parsing error occurs with your data, you will see a 403 error in the websecurity.log file. The possible reasons for this error are:

**You are not licensed.** If this is the reason, check the license of your WebFOCUS software.

□ Invalid data. If this is the reason, there will be a decimal representation of the invalid data in the websecurity.log file. You can either adjust the data so it becomes valid, or remove the invalid data.

□ The public user is not specified in our repository. If this is the reason, add the public user to the repository.



## Magnify Search: Building Indexes With WebFOCUS Reports

This chapter presents three simple examples of feeding data to Magnify Search index libraries. Each example will build off the other, stepping through the process of transforming raw data into searchable information.

Completing these three examples illustrates core elements required to build a Magnify Search application.

### In this chapter:

- Introducing Magnify Search Indexing
- Indexing the Course File
- Prerequisites for Indexing With the Movie and Car Files
- Indexing the Movie File
- Indexing the Car File
- Post-Indexing Verification
- Word Cloud Usage Considerations
- Force Closing an Index During a Feed Process
- Upgrading Your Lucene Indexes
- Magnify Distributed Indexes

### Introducing Magnify Search Indexing

Magnify Search applications match user-submitted terms to terms in index libraries that were previously generated from enterprise data using Magnify Search WebFOCUS Reports. These reports are not like typical BI reports, as data output is modeled so that each column describes how it is used by the Magnify Search interface. For example, data designated as searchable content is parsed into an index library and is compared and matched to user-submitted search terms.

Some planning is required in order to determine what fields are needed and how they will be used. Some fields will be used to further enrich the data with images and other information. Other fields will drill down or link to other WebFOCUS reports and applications.

Once the information architecture is in place, simply drag each column into a WebFOCUS Report. Upon execution, the data is transformed to search content and fed to Magnify Search, where the data is stored in a Magnify Search index library, thereby becoming searchable.

In essence, data will be laid out as a search result, rather than a report. The following screen shows search result for courses. It includes the display of Categories, Main Title, searchable contents, and additional links, while meta tags are used to define the underlying data in a search result.

	course	Century Electronics KB   Search  Advanced Search
Search		Results1 - 4 of about 4 for course. Search took 0.141 seconds
Categories ↓		Tabular view / Sort by sentiment Sort by query score Sort by date Sort by relevance / facetcounts on Main Title
Word Cloud		Carl File Asset: John Osborn Resume (14.96KB)
Source System		Microsoft Office Suite certificate course. Diplomatic and tactful with professionals and master varied computer programs; recently completed Microsoft Office Suite certificate course  searchable content
Sentiment Score	1 3	File Name: John Osborn Resume More Like This View Full Document date:2010/09/18

### Indexing the Course File

This section provides steps to review data and identify how fields will be used for search in order to build a WebFOCUS procedure to create Magnify index libraries.

- 1. Create a procedure to review all available data.
- 2. In App Studio, create an application pointing to the sample directory, *ibisamp*, if not already created.

3. In the *ibisamp* application, create a new procedure, as shown in the following image.

Environments Tree				▼ ‡ ×	
🛃 🗝 📑 💼	M 🌠 📧	1	]		
Configured Environm	ents				
localhost					
Data Servers					
EDASERVE					
🖃 📔 Applicat	tions				
🕀 📔 base	арр				
	ache				
ibide	emo				
	-				
🗈 🛅 ibisa	mp				
<b></b>	New		•	Proce	dure
<b>i</b> a u	Rename			Proce	dure via Text Editor
Domains				Repor	rt
🔤 Web Applic	Delete			SQL R	
	Properties				
				Chart	
	Refresh Des	cendants		SQL C	hart

- 4. In the Procedure View panel, create a Report object.
  - a. Right-click anywhere in the Procedure View panel select *New* and then click *Report* from the context menu, as shown in the following image.

ocedu	ure View		▼ 4 ×		pro	cedure1.f	ex	×
3					Co	omment	×	
	File procedure1.fe	x componen	its	1 2	-*	File:	IB	FS:
	New	•	Repo	rt				
Ő	Paste	Ctrl+V	MAGNIFY Engine					
	Run complete proc	edure	Engir SQL F	leport				
			Defin	e				
			Defin	e Fun	ction			

Applications		Name 🔺	Size	Type	Last modified	Locati /
baseapp						
		hrokers.mas	664 bytes		4/20/2017 12:20:41 PM	
ibidemo		ar.mas	1.16 KB		4/20/2017 12:20:41 PM	
ibimagn		arolap.mas	2.58 KB		4/20/2017 12:20:43 PM	
ibisamp		ashflow.mas	1.45 KB		4/20/2017 12:20:41 PM	
maintain		course.mas	978 bytes		4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	
uc walma	rtsocial	acourses.mas	674 bytes		4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	
		晶 educfile.mas	687 bytes		4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	
		晶 empdata.mas	1.14 KB		4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	
		amployee.mas			4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	
		ac experson.mas		MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	localh
		晶 filemntr.mas	2.94 KB	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	localh
		晶 finance.mas	464 bytes		4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	
		🛃 ggdemog.mas	1.54 KB	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:41 PM	localh
		🛃 ggorder.mas	1009 bytes	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:41 PM	localh
		🛃 ggprods.mas	1.02 KB	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:41 PM	localh
		🛃 ggsales.mas	1.57 KB	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:41 PM	localh
		🛃 ggstores.mas	950 bytes	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:41 PM	localh
		晶 hday.mas	480 bytes	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	localh
		晶 ibimrdmc.mas	1.30 KB	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	localh 、
		<				>
File name:	course.mas			▼ Mas	ter Files (*.mas)	~
					Use Qualified Path	()

The Select Data Source dialog opens, as shown in the following image.

- b. Select the course.mas Master File and click Finish.
- c. Double-click the *CRSELIST* segment to add all the fields to the report canvas, as shown in the following image.

Object Inspector				^
		COURSECODE	CTITLE	SOU
🕀 🛅 Special Fields		Αχοροροχ	Ax000000000000000000000000000000000000	Axxx
🖶 🫅 Variables		Bxxxxxxx	Вхоооооооооооооооооооооооооооооооо	Bxxo ≡
Computed Fields				
SOURCE				
CLASSIF				

d. Click Save from the Quick Access Toolbar, as shown in the following image.



The Save As dialog opens, as shown in the following image.

isamp	Name 🔺	Size	Туре	Last modified	Location
	argraph.fex	1.37 KB	FEX File	4/20/2017 12:20:43 PM	localhost
	arinst.fex	739 bytes	FEX File	4/20/2017 12:20:43 PM	localhost
	arinst2.fex	521 bytes	FEX File	4/20/2017 12:20:43 PM	localhost
	carmgn.fex	4.20 KB	FEX File	4/20/2017 12:20:43 PM	localhost
	courses.fex	983 bytes	FEX File	4/20/2017 12:20:43 PM	localhost
	experson.fex	2.91 KB	FEX File	4/20/2017 12:20:43 PM	localhos
	mntget1.fex	845 bytes	FEX File	4/20/2017 12:20:43 PM	localhost
	mntupd1.fex	472 bytes	FEX File	4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	localhos
	moviemgn.fex	4.40 KB	FEX File	4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	localhost
	mrsamp01.fex	1.62 KB	FEX File	4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	localhost
	mrsamp02.fex	1.32 KB	FEX File	4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	localhos
	oesfiles.fex	5.54 KB	FEX File	4/20/2017 12:20:43 PM	localhos
	procedure1.fex	3 bytes	FEX File	5/1/2017 6:02:56 PM	localhost
	prod.fex	1013 bytes	FEX File	4/20/2017 12:20:43 PM	localhos
	rpccat.fex	40.8 KB	FEX File	4/20/2017 12:20:43 PM	localhos
	zcomp.fex	4.67 KB	FEX File	4/20/2017 12:20:43 PM	localhos
	<			_	>
ses all.fex		5	- Pro	cedure Files	
ses_dil.Tex			Pro	cedure Files	~
					EE (2)
				OK Ca	ncel

- 5. Specify a name for your procedure (for example, courses\_all.fex) and click OK.
- 6. Click *Run* from the Quick Access Toolbar, as shown in the following image.



The report runs and is displayed in a browser window.

-								0 0 X
	http://localhost:8080/ibi_a View Favorites Tools	Cat	tegories	E C×	WebFOC	US Report ×		6 1
COURSECOD	ε απτιε	SOURCE	CLASSIF	TUITION	DURATION	DESCRIPTN1	DESCRIPTN2	DESCRIPTN3
AMA130	HOW TO WRITE USERS MANUAL	AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION	INFO SYS	1,030.00	3	FOR PROJECT LEADERS AND SYS ANALYSTS.	LEARN HOW TO WRITE AN EFFECTIVE DOCUMENT	AND MANAGE THE ENTIRE WRITING PROJECT.
AMA680	BUSINESS TO BUSINESS MKTG STRATEGY	AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION	MARKETING	2,160.00	4	FOR INDUSTRIAL MARKETERS.	FOR DEVELOPMENT OF MARKETING STRATEGIES.	
AMA800	INTERVIEWING: A STRATEGIC APPROACH	AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION	HUM RES	900.00	3	FOR MANAGERS AND HUMAN RESOURCE STAFF.	RESPONSIBLE IN CONDUCTING PROFESSIONAL	INTERVIEWS AND ASSESING APPLICANTS.
BIT420	EXECUTIVE	BUSINESS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY	MANAGEMENT	2,600.00	6	FOR SENIOR MANAGERS, ANALYZE AND IMPROVE	THEIR ORAL AND WRITTEN COMMUNUCATIONS	EFFECTIVELY.
BIT640	NEGOT AND ADMIN THE LABOR CONTRACT	BUSINESS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY	HUM RES	2,600.00	6	FOR ADMINISTRATOR OF LABOR CONTRACTS.	TO HELP ADMINISTRATE SKILLS INCREASINGLY	AND NEGOTIATE CONTRACTS.
BIT650	IMPROVING INTERNAL CONSULTING SKILL	BUSINESS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY	INFO SYS	1,030.00	3	FOR PROGRAMMERS, PROJECT LEADERS AND	SYSTEM ANALYSTS. TO ORGANIZE IDEAS FOR	EFFECTIVE WRITTEN AND ORAL PRESENTATIONS
EDP090	DELEGATION AND TEAM EFFORT.	EXECUTIVE DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM	MANAGEMENT	1,500.00	3	FOR PRODUCTION MANAGERS. TO DELEGATE AND	IMPROVE TEAM EFFECTIVENESS.	
EDP130	STRUCTURED SYS ANALYSIS WKSHP	EXECUTIVE DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM	INFO SYS	1,200.00	5	FOR PROGRAMMERS, PROJECT LEADERS AND	SYSTEM ANALYSTS. TO MAKE STRUCTURED SYS	WORK AT TOP NOTCH EFFICIENCY.
EDP390	EFFECTIVE MANAGERIAL COUNSELING	EXECUTIVE DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM	MANAGEMENT	900.00	3	FOR MANAGERS. HELP APPLY MANAGERIAL	COUNSELING TECHNIQUES APPROPRIATELY AND	EFFECTIVELY.
EDP690	APPLIED METHODS IN MKTG RESEARCH	EXECUTIVE DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM	MARKETING	2,250.00	5	FOR EXEC MANAGERS AND MKTG RESEARCH	ANALYSTS. COVER THE BASICS OF MARKETING	RESEARCH.
EDP750	STRATEGIC	EXECUTIVE	MARKETING	2,600.00	5	FOR MARKETING	TRANSLATE	THE MARKET PLAN.

7. Identify fields to assign to the Magnify Category Tree, as shown in the following image.

**Note:** Usually fields that make high-level groupings, typically those used as BY fields, make good categories. Although numerical values, like price, usually do not make good categories as is, they make excellent categories when converted to a range.

8. Identify fields to make searchable from the Magnify search interface, as shown in the following image.

/OE	http://localhost:8080/ibi_ap iew Favorites Tools		Sea	rchabl	e Conte	ent <sup>int</sup> ×		G 2
COURSECODE	CTITLE	SOURCE	CLASSIF	TUITION	DURATION	DESCRIPTN1	DESCRIPTN2	DESCRIPTN3
AMA130	HOW TO WRITE USERS MANUAL	AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION	INFO SYS	1,030.00	3	FOR PROJECT LEADERS AND SYS ANALYSTS.	LEARN HOW TO WRITE AN EFFECTIVE DOCUMENT	AND MANAGE THE ENTIRE WRITING PROJECT.
AMA680	BUSINESS TO BUSINESS MKTG STRATEGY	AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION	MARKETING	2,160.00	4	FOR INDUSTRIAL MARKETERS.	FOR DEVELOPMENT OF MARKETING STRATEGIES.	
AMA800	INTERVIEWING: A STRATEGIC APPROACH	AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION	HUM RES	900.00	3	FOR MANAGERS AND HUMAN RESOURCE STAFF.	RESPONSIBLE IN CONDUCTING PROFESSIONAL	INTERVIEWS AND ASSESING APPLICANTS.
BIT420	EXECUTIVE COMMUNICATION	BUSINESS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY	MANAGEMENT	2,600.00	6	FOR SENIOR MANAGERS, ANALYZE AND IMPROVE	THEIR ORAL AND WRITTEN COMMUNUCATIONS	EFFECTIVELY.
BIT640	NEGOT AND ADMIN THE LABOR CONTRACT	BUSINESS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY	HUM RES	2,600.00	6	FOR ADMINISTRATOR OF LABOR CONTRACTS.	TO HELP ADMINISTRATE SKILLS INCREASINGLY	AND NEGOTIATE CONTRACTS.
BIT650	IMPROVING INTERNAL CONSULTING SKILL	BUSINESS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY	INFO SYS	1,030.00	3	FOR PROGRAMMERS, PROJECT LEADERS AND	SYSTEM ANALYSTS. TO ORGANIZE IDEAS FOR	EFFECTIVE WRITTEN AND ORAL PRESENTATIONS
EDP090	DELEGATION AND TEAM EFFORT.	EXECUTIVE DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM	MANAGEMENT	1,500.00	3	FOR PRODUCTION MANAGERS. TO DELEGATE AND	IMPROVE TEAM EFFECTIVENESS.	
EDP130	STRUCTURED SYS ANALYSIS WKSHP	EXECUTIVE DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM	INFO SYS	1,200.00	5	FOR PROGRAMMERS, PROJECT LEADERS AND	SYSTEM ANALYSTS. TO MAKE STRUCTURED SYS	WORK AT TOP NOTCH EFFICIENCY.
EDP390	EFFECTIVE MANAGERIAL COUNSELING	EXECUTIVE DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM	MANAGEMENT	900.00	3	FOR MANAGERS. HELP APPLY MANAGERIAL	COUNSELING TECHNIQUES APPROPRIATELY AND	EFFECTIVELY.
EDP690	APPLIED METHODS IN MKTG RESEARCH	EXECUTIVE DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM	MARKETING	2,250.00	5	FOR EXEC MANAGERS AND MKTG RESEARCH	ANALYSTS. COVER THE BASICS OF MARKETING	RESEARCH.
EDP750	STRATEGIC	EXECUTIVE	MARKETING	2,600.00	5	FOR MARKETING	TRANSLATE	THE MARKET PLAN.

**Note:** Searchable fields tend to be those that are alphanumeric strings, IDs, or any other data that is to be matched to searched terms.

- 9. Close the browser window that is running the report.
- 10.Close the Report canvas and the Procedure View panel.

Create a procedure to transform the data into search content.

1. In the *ibisamp* application, create a new procedure, as shown in the following image.

Environments Tree					•	τ×	
🛃 - 🔳 📑 🔜	M 🎦 📧	1	1				
Configured Environm	ents						
localhost							
Data Servers							
🖃 🍓 EDASERVE							
😑 ڬ Applicat	tions						
🕀 🔁 base	арр						
🔂 focc	ache						
📄 ibide	emo						
📔 ibim	agn						
🕀 🔁 ibisa	mp						
<u></u>	New			۱.		Proce	dure
<b>i</b>	Rename					Proce	dure via Text Editor
🕀 🚷 Domains						Repor	t
🔤 Web Applic	Delete					SQL R	
	Properties						epon
						Chart	
	Refresh Des	cendan	ts			SQL C	hart

- 2. In the Procedure View panel, create a Define object.
  - a. Right-click anywhere in the Procedure View panel select New and then click Define from the context menu, as shown in the following image.

Procedure	View	<b>▼</b>		procedure1.fe	ex x
				Comment	×
	e procedure1.fex component Comment	s	1 2	-* File:	IBFS:
	New	Report		1	
Ô	Paste Ctrl+V	MAGNIFY Engin	ne		
	Run complete procedure	SQL Report			
		Define			
		Define Functio	n		

Applications		Name 🔺	Size	Туре	Last modified	Locati /
baseapp		🚜 brokers.mas	664 bytes		4/20/2017 12:20:41 PM	localh
ibidemo		ar.mas	1.16 KB		4/20/2017 12:20:41 PM	
ibidemo		arolap.mas	2.58 KB		4/20/2017 12:20:43 PM	
ibisamp		ashflow.mas	1.45 KB		4/20/2017 12:20:41 PM	
se 🔚		course.mas	978 bytes	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	localh
		Courses.mas	674 bytes		4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	
uc_walm	artsocial	aducfile.mas	687 bytes		4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	
		📕 empdata.mas	1.14 KB	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	localh
		amployee.mas	2.38 KB	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	localh
		accession.mas		MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	localh
		晶 filemntr.mas	2.94 KB	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	localh
		📕 finance.mas	464 bytes	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	localh
		📕 ggdemog.mas	1.54 KB	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:41 PM	localh
		🛃 ggorder.mas	1009 bytes	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:41 PM	localh
		dgprods.mas	1.02 KB	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:41 PM	localh
		🛃 ggsales.mas	1.57 KB	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:41 PM	localh
		🛃 ggstores.mas	950 bytes	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:41 PM	localh
		晶 hday.mas	480 bytes	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	localh
		晶 ibimrdmc.mas	1.30 KB	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	localh ,
		<				>
File name:	course.mas			<ul> <li>Mas</li> </ul>	ter Files (*.mas)	~
					Use Qualified Path	()

The Select Data Source dialog opens, as shown in the following image.

b. Select the course.mas Master File and click Finish.

- 3. In the Define dialog that opens, create fields to enrich the data, as defined in the table below.
  - a. Add each define attribute using the Field, Format, and Value information shown in the table, as shown in the following image.

COURSE.CRSELIST.TUIT) IEN '1. Under 1K' ELSE DURSE.CRSELIST.TUITION IEN '2. 1K-2K' ELSE '3.	IF LT 2000	^	Defined Fields Fields List
		>	Lie DURATION DESCRIPTN1 DESCRIPTN2 Lie DESCRIPTN3 _f TUITION_RANGE
LT GT	+ 7 8	9	
II LE GE	- 4 5	6	
IF EQ NE	* 1 2	3	
THEN AND OR	/ 0		
ELSE NOT	** () ''	U	
Functions			

- b. Confirm that there are no errors by clicking the *Check* button.
- c. Create the next Defined field by clicking the New button.
- d. Repeat for each field listed below.

**Note:** You can copy and paste Field, Format, and Value information from the table below into their respective places in the Define dialog.

Field	Format	Value	Purpose
SYSSOURCE	A25	'School Courses'	Hard-coded category value.
TUITION_RANGE	A50	IF COURSE.CRSELIST.TUITION LT 1000 THEN '1. Under 1K' ELSE IF COURSE.CRSELIST.TUITION LT 2000 THEN'2. 1K-2K' ELSE '3. Over 2K'	Granular data rolled up into a range.

Field	Format	Value	Purpose
SEARCHTITLE	A2000	<pre>'<b>Course Name:'   COURSE.CRSELIST.CTITLE  '('  COURSE.CRSELIST.COURSECODE   ')</b>'</pre>	Text shown as the search result main title.
TITLE_URL	A2000	<pre>'/ibi_apps/WFServlet?'    'FXK='    COURSE.CRSELIST.COURSECODE   '&amp;'  'IBIF_ex=courses_detail'   '&amp;'   'IBIAPP_app=magnify_courses'</pre>	The main drill-down link for the main title of the search results. In this case, a BI report passing the course code.
LINK_DISPLAY_NAME1	A2000	'Search Other Department Courses'	Additional drill-down text.
LINK_URL1	A2000	'ibi_apps/search'   'q='   COURSE.CRSELIST.SOURCE	Additional drill-down link.
LINK_DISPLAY_NAME2	A2000	'All Courses in this Subject'	Additional drill-down text.
LINK_URL2	A2000	<pre>'/ibi_apps/WFServlet?'    'FXK='    COURSE.CRSELIST.CLASSIF   '&amp;'  'IBIF_ex=courses_similar'   '&amp;'   'IBIAPP_app=magnify_courses'</pre>	Additional drill-down link.
HARDCODED	A50	'schools course'	Additional searchable content not originally found with the data.

For more information, see *Indexing Using the FORMAT MAGNIFY Command* on page 83.

**Note:** The URL value being referenced for the TITLE\_URL and Link\_URL2 fields does not exist. Therefore, when executed, the links for the main title link and second additional link of the search results will not drill down to a valid webpage.

e. Close the Define dialog by closing the Define tab, as shown in the following image.

pr	ocedure1.fex* 🗙						
	Comment	Define	×				
				De	fine Field Na	me: TUITI	ON_RANGE

4. In the Procedure View panel, create a Report object.

Proced	ure View	<b>→</b> ‡ ×	procedure1.fex* x
			Comment ×
	File procedure1.fex componer Comment Define	nts	1 -* File: IBFS: 2
	New 🕨	Report	
	Paste Ctrl+V	MAGNIFY Engine Engine	
	Run complete procedure	SQL Report Define	

Applications		Name 🔺	Size	Туре	Last modified	Locati '
baseapp		晶 brokers.mas	664 bytes	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:41 PM	localh
ibidemo	e	📇 car.mas	1.16 KB	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:41 PM	localh
ibimagn		arolap.mas	2.58 KB	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:43 PM	localh
ibisamp			1.45 KB	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:41 PM	localh
le se		course.mas	978 bytes	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	localh
maintain		晶 courses.mas	674 bytes	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	localh
	nartsocial	晶 educfile.mas	687 bytes	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	localh
		🛃 empdata.mas	1.14 KB	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	localh
		🛃 employee.mas	2.38 KB	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	localh
		晶 experson.mas	1.44 KB	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	localh
		晶 filemntr.mas	2.94 KB	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	localh
		晶 finance.mas	464 bytes	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	localh
		晶 ggdemog.mas	1.54 KB	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:41 PM	localh
		💑 ggorder.mas	1009 bytes	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:41 PM	localh
		🛃 ggprods.mas	1.02 KB	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:41 PM	localh
		🛃 ggsales.mas	1.57 KB	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:41 PM	localh
		晶 ggstores.mas	950 bytes	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:41 PM	localh
		晶 hday.mas	480 bytes	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	localh
		晶 ibimrdmc.mas	1.30 KB	MAS File	4/20/2017 12:20:42 PM	localh ,
		<				>
File name:	course.mas			▼ Mas	ter Files (*.mas)	`
					Use Qualified Path	(2)

The Select Data Source dialog opens, as shown in the following image.

Select the course.mas Master File and click Finish.

- 5. Add fields to the Report canvas.
  - a. In the Object Inspector, double-click the field name for all fields defined in the following table.
  - b. Update the Column Title.
    - □ On the report canvas, select the added field.

- SearchTitle Options... 0000 Bxxxxxxxxxx 0000 Delete Fonts Fixed Column Width Invisible ۲ Edit Variable Fields... Column Title... 2 Format... Visualize...
- **General Right-click and select** *Column Title*, as shown in the following image.

- **□** Enter a new Column Title (case-sensitive), as shown in the table below.
- Click OK.
- c. Repeat step 5b for each field listed in the following table.

Field	Column Title (Case-Sensitive)	Purpose
COURSECODE	MagnifyID	Unique identifiers (required)
COURSECODE	WF_INDEX_UNIQUE_KEY	Unique identifiers (required)
SYSSOURCE	C1_Source_System	Category
SOURCE	C2_Department	Category
CLASSIF	C3_Subject	Category
TUITION_RANGE	C4_Tuition_Range	Category
SEARCHTITLE	SearchTitle	Drill-down link information
TITLE_URL		Drill-down link information

Field	Column Title (Case-Sensitive)	Purpose
LINK_DISPLAY_NAME1		Drill-down link information
LINK_URL1		Drill-down link information
LINK_DISPLAY_NAME2		Drill-down link information
LINK_URL2		Drill-down link information
DESCRIPTN1	S_DESCRIPTN1	Searchable content
DESCRIPTN2	S_DESCRIPTN2	Searchable content
DESCRIPTN3	S_DESCRIPTN3	Searchable content
CTITLE	S_CTITLE	Searchable content
COURSECODE	S_COURSECODE	Searchable content
SYSSOURCE	S_SYSSOURCE	Searchable content
SOURCE	S_SOURCE	Searchable content
CLASSIF	S_CLASSIF	Searchable content
HARDCODED	S_HARDCODED	Searchable content

**Note:** The resulting column title dictates how the data will be used in the search interface.

For more information, see *Indexing Using the FORMAT MAGNIFY Command* on page 83.

d. Click Save from the Quick Access Toolbar.

The Save As dialog opens.

Specify a name for your procedure (for example, courses\_transform.fex) and click OK.

e. Click Run from the Quick Access Toolbar.

f. Review how the data is applied in their respective column titles, as shown in the following image.

WebFOC	US Report						
MagnifyID	WF_INDEX_UNIQUE_KEY	C1_Source_System	C2_Department	C3_Subject	C4_Tuition_Range	SearchTitle	TITLE_URL
AMA130	AMA130	School Courses	AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION	INFO SYS	2. 1K-2K	Course Name:HOW TO WRITE USERS MANUAL (AMA130)	/ibi_apps/WFServlet? FXK=AMA1308HBIF_ex=courses_detail8HBIAPP_app=magnify_course
AMA680	AMA680	School Courses	AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION	MARKETING	3. Over 2K	Course Name:BUSINESS TO BUSINESS MKTG STRATEGY (AMA680)	/ibi_apps/WFServlet? FXK-AMA680&IBIF_ex=courses_detail&IBIAPP_app=magnify_course
AMA800	AMA800	School Courses	AMERICAN MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION	HUM RES	1. Under 1K	Course Name:INTERVIEWING: A STRATEGIC APPROACH (AMA800)	/ibi_apps/WFServlet? FXK=AMA8008HBIF_ex=courses_detail8HBIAPP_app=magnify_course
BIT420	BIT420	School Courses	BUSINESS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY	MANAGEMENT	3. Over 2K	Course Name:EXECUTIVE COMMUNICATION (BIT420)	/ibi_apps/WFServlet? FXK-BIT4200:IBIF_ex=courses_detail0:IBIAPP_app=magnify_courses
BIT640	BIT640	School Courses	BUSINESS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY	HUM RES	3. Over 2K	Course Name:NEGOT AND ADMIN THE LABOR CONTRACT (BIT640)	/ibi_apps/WFServlet? FXK=BIT640@IBIF_ex=courses_detail@IBIAPP_app=magnify_courses
BIT650	BIT650	School Courses	BUSINESS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY	INFO SYS	2. 1K-2K	Course Name:IMPROVING INTERNAL CONSULTING SKILL(BIT650)	/ibi_apps/WFServlet? FXK=BIT650@IBIF_ex=courses_detail@IBIAPP_app=magnify_courses
EDP090	EDP090	School Courses	EXECUTIVE DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM	MANAGEMENT	2. 1K-2K	Course Name:DELEGATION AND TEAM EFFORT. (EDP090)	/ibi_apps/WFServlet? FXK=EDP090BHBIF_ex=courses_detailBHBIAPP_app=magnify_courses
EDP130	EDP130	School Courses	EXECUTIVE DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM	INFO SYS	2. 1K-2K	Course Name:STRUCTURED SYS ANALYSIS WKSHP (EDP130)	/ibi_apps/WFServlet? FXK=EDP130BIBIF_ex=courses_detailBIBIAPP_app=magnify_courses
EDP390	EDP390	School Courses	EXECUTIVE DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM	MANAGEMENT	1. Under 1K	Course Name:EFFECTIVE MANAGERIAL COUNSELING (EDP390)	/ibi_apps/WFServlet2 FXK=EDP390RHBIF_ex=courses_detailRHBIAPP_app=magnify_course
EDD/00	EDD/00	Colored Courses	EVECUTIVE	AL ADVETING	1 0	C N	(0.1 0.077 J - 0

- g. Close the browser window that is running the report.
- h. Close the Report canvas.
- i. Return to the Procedure View panel.

Update the procedure to feed data to the Magnify index library.

- 1. In Procedure View panel, create an Engine object.
  - a. To create each Engine object, right-click anywhere in the Procedure View panel select *New* and then click *Engine* from the context menu, as shown in the following image. For a list of Engine objects, see *Engine Parameters* on page 41

Proced	lure View	<b>▼</b> ₽ ×		courses_tran	sform.fex* 🗙
				Comment	x
	File courses_transform.fex co Comment Define Export	mponents	1 2	-* File:	IBFS:/loca
	New 🕨	Report			
r)	Paste Ctrl+V	MAGNIFY Engine			
		Engine			
	Run complete procedure	SQL Report			
		Define			
		Define Function			

- b. The ENGINE dialog box opens, as shown in the following image. Add each Engine attribute using the Engine, Connection, and SET parameters information in the *Engine Parameters* on page 41 table.
- c. After each entry, click OK.
- d. Define each Engine object using the ENGINE dialog box (Engine, Connection, and SET parameters fields), as shown in the following image.

MAGNIFY	~	no connection		
ET parameters				
BATCHSIZE=5				
			Test	

For more information on the individual parameters that you must specify, see *Engine Parameters* on page 41.

**Note:** If the MAGNIFY engine (case-sensitive) does not display in the list, you must type it in manually. In addition, for connections listed as no connection, you must select *no connection* in order to activate the SET parameter field. The preceding image shows an Engine entry.

- 2. In the Procedure View panel, create a Set object before the Define object and after the Engine objects.
- 3. Right-click in the Procedure View panel select *New* and then click Set from the context menu, as shown in the following image.

Procedure V	iew		🔸 🕈 🗙	courses_transform.fex* x		
				Comment ×		
:		ses_transform.fex components	8	1 -* File: IBFS:/loca		
2	Com	ment		2		
- <u>M</u>		New 🕨	Report			
		Open With 🕨	MAGNIF	Y Engine		
	B	Copy Ctrl+C	Engine			
		Paste Ctrl+V	SQL Rep	ort		
			Define			
		Properties Run complete procedure	Define F	unction		
			Chart			
			SQL Cha	rt		
			Set			
			Join			
				Current Value		
--------------------------	------------------	-------------------------	-------------------------	---------------------------	------------------	--------
ASNAMES				MIXED		
			To Top	FOCUS		
			Up	MIXED OFF		
			00	ON		
			Down	- 32.04		
			To Dollars			
			To Bottom			
Available Settings						
ACCBLN	AUTOSTRATEGY	DEFINES	GRAPHENGINE	KEEPDEFINE	OVERFL	-
ACCESSHTML	BASEURL	DROPBLNKLINE	GRAPHSERVURL	LANG	PAGE-NI	Browse
ACCESSIBLE	BOTTOMMARGIN	DUPLICATECOL	GRMERGE	LAYOUTGRID	PAGESI	-
ACCESSPDF	BYDISPLAY	EMBEDHEADING	GRWIDTH	LAYOUTRTL	PANEL	Add
ACROSSLINE	BYPANEL	EMPTYREPORT	HDAY	LEADZERO	PASS	
ACROSSPRT ACROSSTITLE	CARTESIAN	ERROROUT EXPANDBYROW	HIDENULLACRS HNODATA	LEFTMARGIN LINES	PCOMM, POPUPE	Delete
ALL	CDN CENT-ZERO	EXPANDBIROW	HOLDATTR	LOOKGRAPH	PRINT	Delete
AREXPIRE	COMPMISS	FIELDNAME	HOLDFORMAT	MESSAGE	PRINTD	
ARPASSWORD	COMPOUND	FILENAME	HOLDLIST	MULTIPATH	PRINTPL	Check
ARUNITCALC	COMPUTE	FIXRETRIEVE	HOLDMISS	NODATA	QUALCH	
ASNAMES	CSSURL	FOC144	HOLDSTAT	NULL	RIGHTM	
AUTODRILL	CURRSYMB	FOCEXURL	HTMLARCHIVE	OFFLINE-FMT	SAVEDM	
AUTOFIT	DBACSENSITIV	FOCFIRSTPAGE	HTMLCSS	ONFIELD	SAVEMA	
AUTOINDEX	DEFCENT	FOCSTACK	HTMLENCODE	ONLINE-FMT	SHADOV	
AUTOPATH	DEFECHO	FOCTRANSFORM	JOINOPT	ORIENTATION	SHORTF	
<					>	
Set Help						
				to be concatenated to the		

The Set dialog opens, as shown in the following image

- 4. Under Available Settings, double-click ASNAMES.
- 5. Under Current Value, select MIXED.

**Note:** You must set the ASNAMES setting to MIXED in order to preserve case-sensitivity. For more information, see *Indexing Using the FORMAT MAGNIFY Command* on page 83.

6. Close the Set dialog by closing the Set tab, as shown in the following image.

courses_transform.fex	* ×		
Comment	Set	×	
			Used Settings
			ASNAMES

- 7. Click Save and then click Run from the Quick Access Toolbar.
  - a. Confirm that there were no errors.
  - b. Confirm that raw data is modeled and enriched accordingly.
  - c. Close the browser.
- 8. Change the output type in the Report object.
  - a. Double-click the *Report* object to open the Report canvas.
  - b. Click the Format tab.
  - c. Select the Output Format drop-down.

d. Expand the *Unstyled formats* menu and select *Format Magnify (MAGNIFY)*, as shown in the following image.



e. Click Save and then click Run from the Quick Access Toolbar.

f. Confirm that there are no errors, such as the following.



**Note:** If you receive an error message indicating that your Magnify server is not licensed for indexing, please contact your WebFOCUS Administrator. For more information on this error message, see *Magnify Search Error Handling* on page 161.

Once complete, review the search-based application generated.

- 1. Open a web browser.
- 2. Navigate to the Magnify search page:

```
http://host:port/wfcontext_root/search
```

where:

#### host:port

Is the machine name and port number where WebFOCUS is installed.

#### wfcontext\_root

Is the WebFOCUS application root.

## Notes:

- By default, this can be http://localhost:8080/ibi\_apps/search. However, this link can vary based on your WebFOCUS configuration.
- Sample or default URLs are for informational purposes only and may not resolve correctly, if at all.

3. Perform a search test by typing *school* in the Search box and clicking *Search*, as shown in the following image.



- 4. Review the results returned and search to identify how the data has been applied to the Magnify search interface.
- 5. Close the browser window.
- 6. Close the Report canvas.
- 7. Close the Procedure View panel.

## Reference: Engine Parameters

You can copy and paste Engine, Connection, or SET parameter information from the following table to their respective places in the Engine object.

Engine	Connection	SET parameter	Purpose
MAGNI FY	<pre>MY_PC 'http:// localhost:8080/ ibi_apps/saxfeed'</pre>		Connection string <b>Note:</b> Sample or default URLs are for informational purposes only and may not resolve correctly, if at all.
MAGNI FY	no connection	BASEURL=http://localhost:8080/	Feed URL ID
MAGNI FY	no connection	DATASOURCE=school_courses	Index library name
MAGNI FY	no connection	BATCHSIZE=5	Feed increment

For more information, see Indexing Using the FORMAT MAGNIFY Command on page 83.

# Prerequisites for Indexing With the Movie and Car Files

The Movie and Car files create indexes based on the WebFOCUS configuration settings. Because the WebFOCUS environment settings can vary, they first prompt for the same specific setting.

For these examples, you must initially disable procedure parameters.

Before changes are made, it is recommended that you back up the following files: carmgn.fex and moviesmgn.fex. These files are in the \ibi\apps\ibisamp folder.

# **Disable Procedure Parameters**

You will be prompted for two parameters when the carmgn.fex and moviesmgn.fex files are opened in the Report canvas or when you execute the Format Magnify Movie and Car examples. These parameters are required in order for the WebFOCUS procedure to know where to send its output to feed Magnify Search. The first parameter is for the sever that Magnify Search is installed on (which may include a port number), and the second is the WebFOCUS context root, in which Magnify Search is defined, as shown in the following image.

solve procedure param	leters
Please enter values for p	procedure's parameters.
Name	Value
WHAT_IS_MAGNIFY_UR	L:port
WHAT_IS_ibi_apps	
<	>
ОК	Cancel

WHAT\_IS\_MAGNIFY\_URL:port. host:port

WHAT\_IS\_ibi\_apps. wfcontext\_root

where:

host:port

Is the machine name and port number where WebFOCUS is installed. *wfcontext\_root* 

Is the WebFOCUS application root.

By default, *host:port* is *localhost:*8080 and *wfcontext\_root* is *ibi\_apps*, but because installations can be configured differently, you may need to confirm this with your WebFOCUS Administrator.

**Note:** If you do not want to receive this prompt, you can edit the code of the procedure to disable these prompts.

To comment out the prompts:

1. In App Studio, navigate to *Data Servers* under *Configured Environments*, expand *Applications* and then the *ibisamp* folder.



2. Right-click the *carmgn.fex* or *moviesmgn.fex* file and then select *Open in Text Editor* from the context menu.

The file you selected (*carmgn.fex* or *moviesmgn.fex*) opens as a new tab in the main workspace area and provides you with a text view of the code.

- 3. Uncomment the -\*DEFAULTS lines, as shown in the following images.
- 4. Enter your WebFOCUS configuration.

**Note:** The first image shows the original view of the code, and the second image shows the result after these lines have been uncommented.

FROM:

```
-*DEFAULTS &WHAT_IS_MAGNIFY_URL:port='localhost:8080';
-*DEFAULTS &WHAT_IS_ibi_apps='ibi_apps';
SET ASNAMES=MIXED
ENGINE MAGNIFY SET CONNECTION_ATTRIBUTES MY_PC 'http://
ENGINE MAGNIFY SET BASEURL=http://&WHAT_IS_MAGNIFY_URL:
```

TO (using your host:port and wfcontext\_root):

```
-DEFAULTS &WHAT_IS_MAGNIFY_URL:port='localhost:8080';

-DEFAULTS &WHAT_IS_ibi_apps='ibi_apps';

SET ASNAMES=MIXED

ENGINE MAGNIFY SET CONNECTION_ATTRIBUTES MY_PC 'http://&WH

ENGINE MAGNIFY SET BASEURL=http://&WHAT IS MAGNIFY URL:port
```

5. Save and close the file.

Note: The prompts should no longer display.

## Indexing the Movie File

This section illustrates Magnify Search indexing by feeding the Movie file. The data has already been assigned to Magnify Search Meta Tags and other reserved alias names to create a Magnify Search index library based on the Movie information.

1. Open the Movie file to review all available data.

In App Studio, create a project pointing to the sample directory, *ibisamp*, if not already created.

2. Review the Movie file (moviemgn.fex).

**Note:** This file is installed with the WebFOCUS Reporting Server under the *ibisamp* application directory.

a. Right-click the *moviemgn.fex* file and select *Open* from the context menu, as shown in the following image.

Environments Tree 🗸 🕂 🛪							
🛃 📲 📑 📑 🔜 🔜	🎦 📧 🎁 🏠						
Configured Environments	;						
Iocalhost							
Data Servers							
EDASERVE							
🕀 🔁 baseapp							
- 📄 ibidemo							
ibimagn							
🖻 🤷 ibisamp							
- Se	raph.fex						
	st.fex						
	st2.fex						
	ign.fex						
	ses.fex						
	ses_all.fex						
	ses_transform.fex						
	rson.fex						
	get1.fex						
	vp.mnt						
	vp.wfm						
	upd1.fex						
	iemgn.fex						
- 📄 mrsa	- F						
mrsa boesfi	Open in lext Editor						
prod	Edit in Windows Associated Tool						
in smp	Print						

The Procedure View panel is opened for the *moviengn.fex* file, as shown in the following image.

🎦 🖆 🖫 🕼 🗟 🖘 🕫 🐔 🛍	🗎 😂 • =					App Studio - mo	viemgn.fex
Home Report Format	👹 Universal Concatenati	t 🔁 Custom Field Placement	None -	Change Theme Theme	Save Theme	pe Report - 1	B Z U U
Filter	Report		Traffic Lights				Style
Procedure View  Procedure Vie	ents	moviemgn.fex         Report         X           Report         X         Report         X           Object Inspect         SearchTitle         MagnifyID           WF_INDEX_UNIC         C1_CATEGORY         G2_DIRECTOR           G	QUE_KEY	PAGE 1 SearchTitle Annumun>> Buuuuun>>	MagnifyID Axxxx Bxxxx	WF_INDEX_UNIQUI Axxxx Bxxxxx	E_KEY C1_CAT AXXXXXXX BXXXXXXX

b. Double-click the Engine MAGNIFY object in the Procedure View panel.

The MAGNIFY search engine properties dialog opens, as shown in the following image.

ACTION       add         Image: ACTION       BASEURL         Image: BASEURL       http://&WHAT_IS_MAGNIFY_URL:port/&WHAT_IS_ibi_apps/WFServlet         Image: BATCHSIZE       MY_PC http://&WHAT_IS_MAGNIFY_URL:port/&WHAT_IS_ibi_apps/saxfeed'         Image: CONNECTION_ATTRIBUTES       MY_PC http://&WHAT_IS_MAGNIFY_URL:port/&WHAT_IS_ibi_apps/saxfeed'         Image: DATASOURCE       movies         Image: DELIMITER       Incremental         Image: FEEDTYPE       incremental         Image: MIME       text/plain	BASEURL     http://&WHAT_IS_MAGNIFY_URL:port/&WHAT_IS_ibi_apps/WFServlet       BATCHSIZE     CONNECTION_ATTRIBUTES       MY_PC http://&WHAT_IS_MAGNIFY_URL:port/&WHAT_IS_ibi_apps/saxfeed'       DATASOURCE     movies       DELIMITER       FEEDTYPE     incremental	Used Property	Property Name	Property Value
BATCHSIZE     BATCHSIZE       CONNECTION_ATTRIBUTES     MY_PC http://&WHAT_IS_MAGNIFY_URL:port/&WHAT_IS_ibi_apps/saxfeed"       DATASOURCE     movies       DELIMITER     EEDTYPE       incremental	BATCHSIZE     Image: Convection_attributes       MY_PC http://&WHAT_IS_MAGNIFY_URL:port/&WHAT_IS_ibi_apps/saxfeed'       DATASOURCE     movies       DELIMITER       FEEDTYPE     incremental       MIME     text/plain		ACTION	add
CONNECTION_ATTRIBUTES     MY_PC http://&WHAT_IS_MAGNIFY_URL:port/&WHAT_IS_ibi_apps/saxfeed'       DATASOURCE     movies       DELIMITER     FEEDTYPE       incremental	CONNECTION_ATTRIBUTES     MY_PC http://&WHAT_IS_MAGNIFY_URL:port/&WHAT_IS_ibi_apps/saxfeed'       DATASOURCE     movies       DELIMITER        FEEDTYPE     incremental       MIME     text/plain	<b>7</b>	BASEURL	http://&WHAT_IS_MAGNIFY_URL:port/&WHAT_IS_ibi_apps/WFServlet
DATASOURCE         movies           DELIMITER	DATASOURCE     movies       DELIMITER		BATCHSIZE	
DELIMITER       FEEDTYPE	DELIMITER       FEEDTYPE       MIME       text/plain	<b>7</b>	CONNECTION_ATTRIBUTES	MY_PC http://&WHAT_IS_MAGNIFY_URL:port/&WHAT_IS_ibi_apps/saxfeed
FEDTYPE incremental	FEEDTYPE     incremental       MIME     text/plain	<b>7</b>	DATASOURCE	movies
	MIME text/plain		DELIMITER	
MIME text/plain			FEEDTYPE	incremental
		7	MIME	text/plain
Search Properties Help			ies Helo	

Review the following properties:

- **CONNECTION\_ATTRIBUTES.** Magnify Search location.
- **BASEURL.** WebFOCUS procedure URL.
- □ **MIME.** Document type.
- **DATASOURCE.** Magnify Search index library destination directory.
- c. Double-click the Set object in the Procedure View panel.

The Set dialog opens, as shown in the following image

SNAMES						
				MIXED		
			То Тор	FOCUS		
			11-	MIXED		
			Up	OFF		
			Down			
			To Bottom			
ailable Settings						
CCBLN	AUTOSTRATEGY	DEFINES	GRAPHENGINE	KEEPDEFINE	OVERFL	Browse
CESSHTML	BASEURL BOTTOMMARGIN	DROPBLNKLINE	GRAPHSERVURL	LANG LAYOUTGRID	PAGE-NI PAGESU	
CESSIBLE	BYDISPLAY	EMBEDHEADING	GRWIDTH	LAYOUTRTL	PAGESIA	Add
CROSSLINE	BYPANEL	EMPTYREPORT	HDAY	LEADZERO	PASS	P TOTO
CROSSPRT	CARTESIAN	ERROROUT	HIDENULLACRS	LEFTMARGIN	PCOMM.	
CROSSTITLE	CDN	EXPANDBYROW	HNODATA	LINES	POPUPD	Delete
L REXPIRE	CENT-ZERO COMPMISS	EXTSORT	HOLDATTR HOLDFORMAT	LOOKGRAPH MESSAGE	PRINT PRINTD:	
RPASSWORD	COMPOUND	FILENAME	HOLDLIST	MULTIPATH	PRINTPL	Check
RUNITCALC	COMPUTE	FIXRETRIEVE	HOLDMISS	NODATA	OUALCH	
SNAMES	CSSURL	FOC144	HOLDSTAT	NULL	RIGHTM	
JTODRILL	CURRSYMB	FOCEXURL	HTMLARCHIVE	OFFLINE-FMT	SAVEDM	
JTOFIT	DBACSENSITIV	FOCFIRSTPAGE	HTMLCSS	ONFIELD	SAVEMA	
JTOINDEX JTOPATH	DEFCENT DEFECHO	FOCSTACK	HTMLENCODE JOINOPT	ONLINE-FMT ORIENTATION	SHADO\ SHORTF	
	DEFECHO	FUCTRANSFORM	JOINOPI	ORIENTATION		
					>	
t Help						
			the HOLD MASTER, and	to be concatenated to the	e beginning	
f the first fieldnam	e specified in an ACROSS	phrase.				

Note: You must set the ASNAMES setting to MIXED in order to preserve case-sensitivity.

d. Double-click the Define object in the Procedure View panel.

OVIES'			^	Defined Fields Fields List	
				Names 털 <mark>S_HARDCODED</mark> 털 TITLE_URL 털 LINK_UISPLAY_NAM 털 LINK_URL1	Description E1
			>		
I         LT         GT           II         LE         GE           IF         EQ         NE           THEN         AND         OR           ELSE         NOT	+ 7 - 4 * 1 / ** ()	8 5 2 0	9 6 3 U		
Functions					

The Define dialog opens, as shown in the following image.

Review the following defined fields:

- □ **S\_HARDCODED.** Optional hard-coded content to be included with the data being indexed. This can include values that are not otherwise found in the original data.
- □ **TITLE\_URL.** One or more fields to dynamically build the main title drill-down link of each search result.
- LINK\_DISPLAY\_NAME1. One or more fields used as the string name for the first additional link.
- LINK\_URL1. One or more fields to dynamically build the first additional drill-down link for search result.
- e. Double-click the *Report* object in the Procedure View panel and change the output format.
  - Click the Format tab.
  - Select the *Output Format* drop-down.

Expand the Styled report formats menu and select *HTML* Web document (*HTML*), as shown in the following image.



- Click Save and then click *Run* from the Quick Access Toolbar.
- Review how the data is modeled. Notice what mix of fields are used to define various Magnify Search elements by the naming conventions used in the column titles.

**Note:** The column naming conventions are discussed in more detail in *Indexing the Car File* on page 54

Scroll to the rightmost side of the report to see all column names, as shown in the following image.

WebFOCUS Rep	port			🖄 🔻 🖻	] 🔻 🖃 🖶 🔻 Page 🔻 Safe	ty▼ Tools▼ 🕢▼
S_CATEGORY	S_DIRECTOR	S_RELDATE	S_MOVIECODE	TTTLE_URL	LINK_DISPLAY_NAME1	LINK_URL1
ACTION	SPIELBERG S.	78/05/13	001MCA	http://localhost:8080/ibi_apps/search? q=001MCA	Similar ACTION Movies	http://localhost:80 q=ACTION
CLASSIC	KAZAN E.	55/01/12	UUSWAR	q=005WAR	Similar CLASSIC Movies	http://localhost:80 q=CLASSIC
CLASSIC	WELLES O.	41/08/11	020TUR	http://localhost:8080/ibi_apps/search?	Similar CLASSIC Movies	http://localhost:80

- f. Close the browser window that is running the report.
- 3. Index the Movie File with Format Magnify.
  - a. Double-click the *Report* object in the Procedure View panel and change the output format.
    - Click the Format tab.
    - Select the *Output Format* drop-down.

Expand the Unstyled formats menu and select Format Magnify (MAGNIFY), as shown in the following image.



Click Save and then click *Run* from the Quick Access Toolbar.

b. Confirm that there are no errors, such the one shown in the following image. Note that upon execution, the Reporting Server will process the request by transforming the report output into the Magnify Search feed protocol.

Your request did not return any output to display.

# **Possible causes:**

- No data rows matched the specified selection criteria.
- Output was directed to a destination such as a file or printer.
- An error occurred during the parsing or running of the request.

0 NUMBER OF RECORDS IN TABLE= 60 LINES= 60

- c. Close the browser window that is running the report.
- d. Close the Procedure View panel.
- 4. Review the search-based application generated.
  - a. Open a web browser.
  - b. Confirm that the *collections.xml* file is set accordingly.
  - c. Navigate to the Magnify search page:

http://host:port/wfcontext\_root/search

where:

#### host:port

Is the machine name and port number where WebFOCUS is installed.

#### wfcontext\_root

Is the WebFOCUS application root.

**Note:** Sample or default URLs are for informational purposes only and may not resolve correctly, if at all.

To return to the out-of-the-box Magnify Search configuration, restore the original version of the *collections.xml* file. Restart the application server or use the *Refresh Collections* option in the Magnify Search administration console.

Go to:

http://localhost:8080/ibi\_apps/search

d. Perform a search test by typing *movies* in the Search box and clicking Search as shown in the following image.

WebFOCUS Magnify ••••	movies	Default Collection 💌 Search
Search		Results1 - 10 of about 60 for movies. Search took 0.125 seconds.
Word Cloud CATEGORY		Tabular view         /         Sort by query score         Sort by date         Sort by relevance /         facetcounts or           SMURFS_THE         SMURFS_THE <td< th=""></td<>
ACTION (6) CHILDREN (8) CLASSIC (11) COMEDY (6) DRAMA (1) FOREIGN (6) MUSICALS (4) MYSTERY (9) SCI/FI (5) TRAINEX (5)		JAWS JAWS PC ACTION SPIELBERG S. 78/05/13 001MCA MOVIES Similar ACTION Movies More Like This VERTIGO VERTIGO PG MYSTERY HITCHCOCK A. 58/11/25 082MCA MOVIES Similar MYSTERY Movies More Like This HOW TO GOLF HOW TO GOLF NR TRAINEX 88/04/22 147LOR MOVIES Similar TRAINEX Movies More Like This
G (6) • NR (21) PG (13) (5) PG (11) R (17)		PSYCHO PSYCHO R MYSTERY HITCHCOCK A. 60/05/16 530MCA MOVIES Similar MYSTERY Movies More Like This BIRDS. THE BIRDS, THE PG13 MYSTERY HITCHCOCK A. 63/09/27 550MCA MOVIES Similar MYSTERY Movies More Like This
DIRECTOR ABRAHAMS J. (1) ALLEN W. (1)		CITIZEN KANE CITIZEN KANE NR CLASSIC WELLES O. 41/08/11 020TUR MOVIES Similar CLASSIC Movies More Like This

- e. Review the results returned and identify how the data from the procedure has been applied to the Magnify Search interface.
- f. Close the browser window.

# Indexing the Car File

This section illustrates Magnify indexing by feeding the Car file. In this example, multiple rows will be aggregated into a single row, in order to rollup data according to a single dimension to create a more robust, inclusive or higher-level search result. For example, this is the difference between showing a single search result for an entire order or showing a search result for each item purchased in an order.

- 1. Open the Car file to review all available data.
  - a. In App Studio, create a project pointing to the sample directory, *ibisamp*, if not already created.
- 2. Review the Car file (carmgn.fex)

**Note:** This file is installed with the WebFOCUS Reporting Server under the *ibisamp* application directory.

a. Right-click the *carmgn.fex* file and select *Open* from the context menu, as shown in the following image.



The Procedure View panel is opened for the *carmgn.fex* file, as shown in the following image.

AS) ն	🕯 🗒 🍓 つ アデ 🌆 🗎	9					App Studi	io - carmgn.fex
	Home Report Format	Data Layout Viev	v Images					
Filter	14 · · ·	Compound Document Universal Concatenatio Sorted Data Report	립 Custom Field Placement	None -	Change Manag Theme Them	ge Save	pe Report	→ B I U U → → I I I Style
Proc	cedure View	<b>→</b> π ×	carmgn.fex x					
(CO)			Report ×					
Invironments Tree	File carmgn.fex components     Comment     Comment     Comment     Comment     Comment     Poise     Fingine MAGNIFY     Poise     Poise     Poise     Poise     Report     Poise     Poise		Object Inspecto Columns - COUNTRY - CAR - Search Title - MagnifylD - CL Country - MAA Body Type - MAA Model - S, Country - S, Scar - S, S, Car - S, S, A Model - S, S, A Model - S, S, A Model - S, S, A MAA - S, S, A MAA - S,	9 9	PAGE 1.1 COUNTRY AUXILIAN	CAR Automotion>> Buttonotion>> Buttonotion>>	SearchTitle Autoautouto Battonation Battonation Autoautouto Battonation Battonation Battonation Battonation Battonation Battonation Battonation Battonation	MagnifyID Annunannuw> Bannunnum>> Bannunnum>> Bannunnum>> Bannunnum>> Bannunnum>> Bannunnum>> Bannunnum>>

b. Add a Set object before the Report object and set the *BYDISPLAY* parameter to *ON* to show repeated BY values, as shown in the following image.

Procedure View 🔻 🕫 🗙	carmgn.fex* 🗙						
<b>a</b>	Set ×	Report					
	Used Settings BYDISPLAY Available Settings			To Top Up Down To Bottom	Current Value ON OFF ON		
DM If     HmiForm     DM Label     HmiForm     DM Label     HmiForm     ME Label     HmiForm     ME Label     DM Label     HmiForm     ME Label     DM Label     DM Label     DM Label     DM Label     DM Label	ACCBLN ACCESSIBLE ACCESSIBLE ACCESSIBLE ACCOSSINE ACROSSINE ACROSSIT ACROSSIT ALL ARPASSWORD ARUNITCALC ALL ARPASSWORD ARUNITCALC ASINAMES AUTODALL AUTODALL AUTODALL AUTODALL SET Help	AUTOSTRATEGY BAGENRI, BOTTOMMARGIN BUTDERAY CONTESIAN CO	DEFINES DROPRINGINE DUPLICATECOL DIPLICATECO	GRAPHENGINE GRAPHESEVUE GRAPHSEVUE GRAVIDTH HEDEVULACRS HIDDOATA HOLDATR HOLDATR HOLDST HOLDST HOLDST HOLDST HOLDST HOLDST HOLDST HTMLESCOE JOINOPT	KEEPDEFINE LANG LAYOUTRID LAYOUTRID LAYOUTRID LEYTMAGGIN LEYTMAGGIN LEYTMAGGIN LOCKGRAPH MESSAGE MLITPATH NODATA NULL OKIENEFATT ORIENTATION	OVERFL PAGESI PANEL PASS PCOMM. POFUEC PRINTP PRINTP PRINTPL QUALTO SHOPO SHOPO SHOPO SHOPO SHOPO SHOPO	Add Delete Check

- c. Double-click the Report object in the Procedure View panel to change the Output Format.
  - Click the Format tab.
  - Select the *Output Format* drop-down.
  - □ From the Output Format drop-down list, expand Styled report formats and select *HTML Active Report (AHTML)*, as shown in the following image.



**Note:** If you are not licensed for Active Technology, select *HTML Web Document* (*HTML*) instead. In that case, you will not be able to run the aggregation reports.

- Click Save and then click *Run* from the Quick Access Toolbar.
- d. Review the naming conventions and data, as shown in the following image.

anne 👎	CM 7	Searchfille *	Napity© 1	Cl_Country *	KGA, Body Type *	WA NAME Y	RA Normally *	KSA_Peatorne 🔻	NTR NOC Turking 📍	S Country 7	sjow •	8
CALLON D	IAOUAR	JAGUAR (ENGLAND)	ENGLANDUNGUNR	ENGLAND	CONVERTIBLE	V120KE AUTO	12 MONTHS OR 12001 MILES	4 WHEEL DISC BRAKES	2 11020 - 2020	ENGLAND	IAGUAR	V
NGLAND	IAGUAR	ANGUAR (ENGLAND)	ENGLAND-INGUAR	ENGLAND	SEDAN	XAULAUTO	-	POWER STEERING	1.Len then 10 MPG	ENGLAND	INCOM.	X
DOLASD.	<b>IAGUAR</b>	JAGUAR (ENGLAND)	ENGLAND JACKAR	ENGLAND				RECLINING BUCKET SEATS		ENGLAND	<b>ARUAR</b>	T
NGLAND	IAGUAR	JAGUAR (ENGLAND)	ENGLANDUNGUAR	ENGLAND				WHITEWALL RADIAL IV.Y TIRES		ENGLAND	1a0UaR	ŀ
DIALAND	IAGUAR	JAGUAR (ENGLAND)	ENGLAND-JAGUAR	ENGLAND				WRAP AROUND BUMPERS		ENGLAND	INSUAR	T
DIGLAND	JENSEN .	JENSEN (ENGLAND)	ENGLAND-ENSEN	ENGLAND	SEDAX	INTERCEPTOR III	12001 MILES OR 12 MONTHS	AIR CONDITIONING	1.11MPG-3MPG	ENGLAND	ENSEN	P
NGLAND	ENER.	JENSEN (ENGLAND)	EXCLAND-LENSEN	ENGLAND				CERTSLER 343 CU IN VILENGINE		ENGLAND	ENSEN	T
DOLAND	TENSEN	JENSEN (ENGLAND)	ENGLAND-JENSEN	ENGLAND		-		LEAR FET AM FM I TRX STEREO		ENGLAND	IENSEN	F
DULAND	TENSEN	JENSEN (ENGLAND)	ENGLANDAENSEN	ENGLAND				PORELLI GR 70 15 TORES		ENGLAND	IENSEN	T
DIAL BOR	TRANSE	TRR.MPH (ENGLAND)	ENGLAND-TRILMPH	ENGLAND	RARDTOP	132	12 MONTHS OR 12001 MILES	POWER FRONT DISC BRAKES	3. Greater thes 201/PG	ENGLAND	TRIJAPH	1
CEALOR	REAR	TREMPH (ENGLAND)	ENGLAND-TRILINPH	ENGLAND				RETRACTABLE HEADLIGHTS		ENGLAND	RUMPH	T
RUNCE	PEUGEOT	PEUGEOT (FRANCE)	FRANCE-PEUGEOT	FRUINCE	SEDAN	564 4 DOOR.	12 MONTHS ON 12000 MILES	ANTI SWAY BARS FRONT AND REAR	3. Greater then 201/PG	FRANCE	PEUGEOT	2
RANCE	PEUGEOT	PEUGEOT (FRANCE)	FRANCE-PEUGEOT	FRUINCE		-		FOUR WHEEL SUSPENSION		FRANCE	PEUGEOT	F
RANCE	PEUGEOT	PETGEOT (TRANCE)	TRANCE-PEUGEOT	FRANCE				RACK AND PINION STEERING		TRANCE	NET/GEOL	T
TALY	ALFA ROMEO	ALFA ROMEO (ITALY)	ITALY-ALFA ROMEO	ITALY	SEDAN	2000 4 DOOR BERLINA			3. Orester then 2010PG	ITALY	ALFA ROMEO	) 3
TALY.	ALFA ROMEO	ALFA ROMEO (ITALY)	ITALY-ALFA ROMEO	ITALY	COUPE	2000 GT VELOCE			3. Greater then 205/PG	ITALY	ALFA ROMEO	13
TALY	ALFA ROMEO	ALFA ROMEO (ITALY)	ITALY-ALFA ROMEO	ITALY	ROADSTER	2000 SPEDER VELOCE			3. Greater thes 201/PG	ITALY	ALFA ROMEO	2
TALY	MASERATI	MASERATI (ITALY)	ITALY-MASERATI	ITALY	000795	DORA 2 DOOR	6 MONTES OR 6000 MILES	S LITRE 35 ENGINE	1.Les the 10300	ITALY	MASERATI	þ
TALY	MASERATI	MASERATI (ITALS)	ITALY-MASERATI	ITALY				ALL STEEL BODY		ITALY	MASERATI	Γ
TALY	MASERATI	MASERATI (ITALY)	ITALY-MASERATI	ITALT.		2		CAMPAGNOLLO LIGHT ALLOY WHEELS		TALY	MASERATI	Γ
TALY	MASERATI	MASERATI (ITALY)	ITALY-MASERATI	ITALT		4		MICHELIN II 570 VRI SIVVX TIRES		ITALY	MASERATI	F
A235	DADRAS	DATSEN (JAPAN)	IAPAN DATSIN	1424N	SEDAN	8210 2 DOOR AUTO	12 MONTHS OR 12001 MILES	POWER FRONT DISC BRAXES	1.Les the 103/20	Iapan	DATSUN	1
A94N	DADSUN	DATSEN (JAPAN)	IAPAN DATSEN	IAPAN			-	REAR DRUMBRAKES		IAPAN	DATSUN	F
A23N	ALOUOTA	TOYOTA (JAPAN)	ARAN-TOYOTA	DADAN	SEDAN	COROLLA 4 DOOR DOL AUTO	12 MONTHS OR 12501 MILES	BODT SIDE MOLDENG	3. Greater thes 201/PG	1424N	TOYOTA	0
423N	701024	TOYOTA (JAPAN)	JAPAS-TOYOTA	IAPAN				MACPEERSON STRUT FROMT SUSPENSION		232335	ATOYOTA	F
CERMANY	AUDE	ACDL (W GERMANY)	W GERMANY-AUDI	T GERMANT	SEDAS	100152 DOOR AUTO	12 MONTHS OR 2000 MILES	145 SR 14 RADIAL TIRES	3. Orester thes 201070	V GERMANY	80.00	10

## Review the Record Context.

**Note:** Notice how multiple rows in the Car data can be used to describe a single entity based on the rollup level. In this case, there are Countries and Cars. Depending on the use case, each entity can be created as its own search result. This is done by using the highest-level field as the primary BY field. Columns are named accordingly to identify where to aggregate values across multiple rows. For example, aggregating on the COUNTRY field will generate five search results, one for each country. Therefore, separate searches for *Jensen* and *Jaguar* will both return *England* as the search result.

At another level, the Car data has 18 individual models. However, if users are to search for any model, only a single car type search result would be returned.

For example, rolling up Model By Car reveals that there are 10 cars. Thus, 6 rows of data found for BMW will be aggregated into a single search result, as shown in the following image.

M4A_Model By CAR	
▛▙◈⊻▨▦罴ᅝᅆ	Sort Ascending
10 of 10 records, Page <u>1</u> of 1	Sort Descending 12 MONTHS OR
M4A_Model By CAR	Filter
CAR 🔻 M4A Model 🔻	Calculate
ALFA ROMEO 3	Chart 🕨 -
	Rollup Group By (X)(COU)
AUDI 1	Pivot (Cross Tat
BMW 6	Hide Column
DATSUN 1	Freeze Column
JAGUAR 2	Unfreeze All MagnifyID Grid Tool
JENSEN 1	C1_Country Chart/Rollup Toc M3A_Body_Type
MASERATI 1	Pivot Tool M4A_Model
PEUGEOT 1	Show Records Comments Send as E-mail M6A_Warranty M5A_Features M7A_MPG_Rating

□ Close the browser window that is running the report.

3. Index the Car file.

a. Double-click the Engine MAGNIFY object in the Procedure View panel.

The MAGNIFY search engine properties dialog opens, as shown in the following image.

BATCHSIZE         100           CONNECTION_ATTRIBUTES         MY_PC http://&WHAT_IS_MAGNIFY_URL:pott/&WHAT_IS_           DATASOURCE         cars	/WFServlet
BATCHSIZE     100       CONNECTION_ATTRIBUTES     MY_PC http://&WHAT_IS_MAGNIFY_URL:port/&WHAT_IS_       DATASOURCE     cars	/WFServlet
BATCHSIZE         100           CONNECTION_ATTRIBUTES         MY_PC 'http://&WHAT_IS_MAGNIFY_URL:pot/&WHAT_IS_           DATASOURCE         cars	
CONNECTION_ATTRIBUTES MY_PC http://&WHAT_IS_MAGNIFY_URL:port/&WHAT_IS_ DATASOURCE cars	
DATASOURCE cars	ibi_apps/saxfeed"
FEEDTYPE incremental	
MIME text/plain	
Search Properties Help	

Review the following properties:

- DELIMITER. Used internally to separate a list of values generated by the Format Magnify procedure in order to aggregate multiple rows into a single search result. This value should be a unique value not found anywhere in the content that is being indexed.
- **BATCHSIZE.** Incremental number of records to feed to Magnify at a time.

**Note:** Batchsize is critical when indexing large volumes of data. This setting will process all records but only send feeds to Magnify in the batch size specified, thereby sending data in increments.

The remaining Engine objects were covered in the Indexing the Movie File on page 45.

b. Double-click the Set object in the Procedure View panel.

ASNAMES						
ASNAMES			To Top	FOCUS		
			10100	MIXED		
			Up	OFF		
				ON		
			Down			
			To Bottom			
			TO DOLLOIN			
vailable Settings						
CCBLN	AUTOSTRATEGY	DEFINES	GRAPHENGINE	KEEPDEFINE	OVERFL	_
CCESSHTML	BASEURL	DROPBLNKLINE	GRAPHSERVURL	LANG	PAGE-NI	Browse
CCESSIBLE	BOTTOMMARGIN	DUPLICATECOL	GRMERGE	LAYOUTGRID	PAGESI	
CCESSPDF	BYDISPLAY	EMBEDHEADING	GRWIDTH	LAYOUTRTL	PANEL	Add
CROSSLINE	BYPANEL	EMPTYREPORT	HDAY	LEADZERO	PASS	
CROSSPRT	CARTESIAN	ERROROUT	HIDENULLACRS	LEFTMARGIN	PCOMM.	
CROSSTITLE	CDN	EXPANDBYROW	HNODATA	LINES	POPUPD	Delete
LL	CENT-ZERO	EXTSORT	HOLDATTR	LOOKGRAPH	PRINT	
REXPIRE	COMPMISS	FIELDNAME	HOLDFORMAT	MESSAGE	PRINTD:	Check
RPASSWORD	COMPOUND	FILENAME	HOLDLIST	MULTIPATH	PRINTPL	Check
RUNITCALC	COMPUTE	FIXRETRIEVE	HOLDMISS	NODATA	QUALCH	
SNAMES	CSSURL	FOC144	HOLDSTAT	NULL	RIGHTM	
UTODRILL	CURRSYMB	FOCEXURL	HTMLARCHIVE	OFFLINE-FMT	SAVEDM	
	DBACSENSITIV DEFCENT	FOCFIRSTPAGE FOCSTACK	HTMLCSS HTMLENCODE	ONFIELD ONLINE-FMT	SAVEMA SHADO\	
UTOPATH	DEFECHO	FOCTRANSFORM	JOINOPT	ORIENTATION	SHORTE	
	DEFECHO	FOUTRAINSFORM	JOINOPT	ORIENTATION	SHOKIP	
c					>	
et Help						

The Set dialog opens, as shown in the following image.

Note: You must set the ASNAMES setting to MIXED in order to preserve case-sensitivity.

c. Double-click the *Define* object in the Procedure View panel.

ars'						^	Defined Fields Field	ds List
	LT	GT		7	8	>	Names 한 S_HARDCOD 한 SEARCHID 한 SEARCHID 한 ITTLE_URL 한 IINK_URL1 한 IINK_DISPLA 한 MPGRANGE	Ε
	LE	GE	+	4	5	6		
IF	EQ	NE	*	1	2	3		
THEN	AND	OR	1	(	5			
ELSE	NOT		**	()		U		
	Functions							

The Define dialog opens, as shown in the following image.

- Review each Define field.
- □ Close the Define dialog.
- d. Double-click the Report object in the Procedure View panel.

**Note:** The following steps give you hands-on experience in recreating this procedure by starting fresh. This step can be skipped in order to follow along, similar to the hands-off approach in the *Indexing the Movie File* on page 45.

- e. In the Report canvas, delete all the fields by selecting all of them (or using *Ctrl+A*) and then pressing *Delete*.
- f. Build the Format Magnify Report.

□ In the Object Inspector, double-click on the field CAR and the field COUNTRY.

□ In the Report canvas, while holding Shift, select both the *COUNTRY* and *CAR* columns.



**O**n the toolbar, click Sort Down, as shown in the following image.

4S) 🖻 🖫 🕼	। 🚟 🖘 🥏	7 <sup>4</sup> 🗋 🗎	9 • •					
Home	Report	Format	Data	Layout	View	Images	Field	Appearance
<b>S</b> Aggregate		s Filter	<b>2</b> ₩ Sort	1 2 3 Rank	Hierarchy None	No	Split 🕶	Fold Line -
Sort Down	X Delete	-	Order -	-	Limit	Line	Break -	🔡 Subtotal 🔻
Column	Туре	Filter		Sor	t			Break

g. In the Report canvas, click to the right side of *CAR* to begin adding more columns to the report.

h. On the toolbar, click Detail, as shown in the following image.



□ In the Object Inspector, add the remaining columns. These are listed in the following table. After the column is added to the Report canvas, right-click on the column and select *Column Title*, as shown in the following image.

CAR						
Axxxxxx						
BXXXXX AXXXX BXXXX	Options	2				
DAAAA	Delete					
	Fixed Column Width					
	Invisible	>				
	Edit Variable Fields					
	Column Title					
	Format					
	Visualize					

□ Add Fields and Column Titles for the following:

Column	Column Title	Purpose
SEARCHTITLE	SearchTitle	Format Magnify Reserved Alias Name (case-sensitive)
SEARCHID	MagnifyID	Format Magnify Reserved Alias Name (case-sensitive)
COUNTRY	C1_Country	Category

Column	Column Title	Purpose
BODYTYPE	M3A_Body_Type	Multiple Category
MODEL	M4A_Model	Multiple Category
WARRANTY	M6A_Warranty	Multiple Category
STANDARD	M5A_Features	Multiple Category
MPGRANGE	M7A_MPG_Rating	Multiple Category
COUNTRY	S_Country	Searchable Content
CAR	S_Car	Searchable Content
MODEL	SA_Model	Aggregated Searchable Content
BODYTYPE	SA_BODYTYPE	Aggregated Searchable Content
WARRANTY	SA_WARRANTY	Aggregated Searchable Content
STANDARD	SA_STANDARD	Aggregated Searchable Content
SEARCHID	WF_INDEX_UNIQU E_KEY	Magnify Meta Tag
TITLE_URL	<not needed=""></not>	Magnify Meta Tag
LINK_URL1	<not needed=""></not>	Magnify Meta Tag
LINK_DISPLAY_NAME1	<not needed=""></not>	Magnify Meta Tag
S_HARDCODED	<not needed=""></not>	Searchable content (last because it is a TX field type)

i. Click Save and then click Run from the Quick Access Toolbar.

**Note:** Each Car will include multiple rows as part of its single search result, thereby searching either *Jaguar V12XKE Auto* or *XJ12L Auto* will return the aggregated Jaguar search result, as shown in the following image.

OUNTRY 🔻	CAR 🔻	SearchTitle 🛛 🔻	Magni fyID 🛛 🔻	C1_Country V	M3A_Body_Type ¥	M4R_Model 🔻	16A_Warranty 🔻 🔻	MSA_Features
ENGLAND	JAGUAR	JAGUAR (ENGLAND)	ENGLAND-JAGUAR	ENGLAND	CONVERTIBLE	V12XKE AUTO	12 MONTHS OR 12000 MILES	
		JAGUAR (ENGLAND)		ENGLAND	SEDAN	XJ12L AUTO	12 MONTHO ON 12000 MILLO	POWER STEERING
ENGLAND		JAGUAR (ENGLAND)		ENGLAND	SEDAN	NOTZE AOTO		RECLINING BUCKET SEATS
ENGLAND				ENGLAND				WHITEWALL RADIAL PLY TIRES
ENGLAND	JAGUAR			ENGLAND	*	-		WRAP AROUND BUMPERS
ENGLAND		JENSEN (ENGLAND)		ENGLAND	SEDAN	INTERCEPTOR III	12000 MILES OR 12 MONTHS	
ENGLAND		JENSEN (ENGLAND)		ENGLAND	OLONIN	Interform	12000 MILLO ON 12 MONTHO	CHRYSLER 383 CU IN V8 ENGINE
ENGLAND		JENSEN (ENGLAND)		ENGLAND				LEAR JET AM/FM 8 TRK STEREO
ENGLAND		JENSEN (ENGLAND)		ENGLAND	*			PIRELLI GRZ0 15 TIRES
		TRIUMPH (ENGLAND)			HARDTOP	TR7	10 MONTHE OD 10000 MILES	POWER FRONT DISC BRAKES
ENGLAND		TRIUMPH (ENGLAND)			IMADIOP	IRV	12 MONTHS OR 12000 MILLS	RETRACTABLE HEADLIGHTS
FRANCE			FRANCE-PEUGEOT		SEDAN	- 504 4 DOOR	10 MONITHE ON 10000 MILES	ANTI SWAY BARS FRONT AND REAR
FRANCE		The second s	FRANCE-PEUGEOT		SEDMIN	504 4 DOOR	12 MONTHS ON 12000 MILLS	FOUR WHEEL SUSPENSION
FRANCE			FRANCE-PEUGEOT		1			RACK AND PINION STEERING
		ALFA ROMEO (ITALY)			SEDAN	- 2000 4 DOOR BERLINA		RACK AND FINION STEERING
		ALFA ROMEO (ITALY)			COUPE	2000 GT VELOCE		-
		ALFA ROMEO (ITAL I) ALFA ROMEO (ITAL I)			ROADSTER	2000 GT VELOCE	-	-
ITALY			ITALY-MASERATI	ITALY	COUPE	DORA 2 DOOR	6 MONTHS OR 6000 MILES	5 LITRE SS ENGINE
		MASERATI (ITALY)	ITALY-MASERATI	ITALY	COOPE	DURA Z DUUR		ALL STEEL BODY
						-		
ITALY		MASERATI (ITALY)	ITALY-MASERATI	ITALY	¥.			CAMPAGNOLLO LIGHT ALLOY WHEELS
		MASERATI (ITALY)	ITALY-MASERATI	ITALY				MICHELIN 21 5/70 VR15XVWX TIRES
		DATSUN (JAPAN)	JAPAN-DATSUN	JAPAN	SEDAN	B210 2 DOOR AUTO	12 MONTHS OR 12000 MILES	POWER FRONT DISC BRAKES
JAPAN		DATSUN (JAPAN)	JAPAN-DATSUN	JAPAN	2			REAR DRUM BRAKES
JAPAN		TOYOTA (JAPAN)	JAPAN-TOYOTA	JAPAN	SEDAN	COROLLA 4 DOOR DIX AUTO	12 MONTHS OR 12500 MILES	
JAPAN		TOYOTA (JAPAN)	JAPAN-TOYOTA	JAPAN		-		MACPHERSON STRUT FROMT SUSPENS
W GERMANY		AUDI (W GERMANY)		W GERMANY	SEDAN	100 LS 2 DOOR AUTO	12 MONTHS OR 20000 MILES	
W GERMANY				W GERMANY	2			FRONT WHEEL DRIVE
W GERMANY				W GERMANY	8			POWER FRONT BRAKES
W GERMANY			W GERMANY-BMW			2002 2 DOOR		
W GERMANY			W GERMANY-BMW			2002 2 DOOR AUTO		
W GERMANY			W GERMANY-BMW			3.0 SI 4 DOOR		
W GERMANY	BMW	BMW (W GERMANY)	W GERMANY-BMW	W GERMANY	SEDAN	3.0 SI 4 DOOR AUTO		

- j. Close the browser window that is running the report and return to the Report canvas.
- k. Change the Output Format as follows:
  - Click the *Format* tab.
  - Select the *Output Format* drop-down.

Expand the *Unstyled formats* menu and select *Format Magnify (MAGNIFY)*, as shown in the following image.



- Click Save and then click *Run* from the Quick Access Toolbar.
- Confirm that there are no errors. Upon execution, the WebFOCUS Reporting Server will process the request by transforming the report output into the Magnify feed protocol.

**Note:** Not every row is sent to Magnify. Fifty-one rows are aggregated into 34, as shown in the following image.

Your request did not return any output to display.

## **Possible causes:**

- No data rows matched the specified selection criteria.
- Output was directed to a destination such as a file or printer.
- An error occurred during the parsing or running of the request.

O NUMBER OF RECORDS IN TABLE=

51 LINES=

34

As part of the Magnify output, the 34 records are further aggregated into 10 search results.

- □ Close the browser window that is running the report.
- □ Close the Procedure View panel.
- 4. Review the search-based application generated.
  - a. Open a web browser.
  - b. Navigate to the Magnify search page:

http://host:port/wfcontext\_root/search

where:

host:port

Is the machine name and port number where WebFOCUS is installed.

wfcontext\_root

Is the WebFOCUS application root.

**Note:** Sample or default URLs are for informational purposes only and may not resolve correctly, if at all.

To return to the Magnify interface, the default URL is:

http://localhost:8080/ibi\_apps/search

c. Perform a search test by typing cars in the Search box and clicking Searchas shown in the following image.



- d. Review the returned results and search to identify how the data has been applied to the Magnify search interface.
- e. Close the browser window.
- f. Close App Studio.

# **Post-Indexing Verification**

This section will briefly describe some administrative features to validate the Magnify feed.

Note: For more information, see the Magnify Search Security and Administration manual.

- 1. Monitor the Indexing Process from the Magnify Console.
  - a. Launch WebFOCUS using the following URL and log on:

http://host:port/wfcontext\_root

where:

#### host:port

Is the machine name and port number where WebFOCUS is installed.

wfcontext\_root

Is the WebFOCUS application root. By default, this ibi\_apps.

**Note:** Sample or default URLs are for informational purposes only and may not resolve correctly, if at all.

- b. From the main menu, select Administration, and then Magnify Console.
- Under the *Diagnostics* section, click on *Index Monitor*.
- □ Notice how many records were indexed.
- □ Copy the Directory Name under *Index Library Status*. This will be used to locate the physical Magnify Index library files, as shown in the following image.

# **Index Library Status**

The below information provides information about content feed to each Magnify index library. This information is refreshe

	Open Time	Close Time	Last Deleted Time	Minutes Open	Directory Name	Count of Records Loaded	Actual Documents in the index	Total Documents including deletes in the index
1	14:26:03	14:28:08		2.09	C:/ibi/WebFOCUS82 /magnify/lucene_index/movies	60	60	60
2	14:57:44	14:59:44		12 00	C:/ibi/WebFOCUS82 /magnify/lucene_index/cars	10	10	10
				4.09	Total	70	70	70

- 2. Close the Magnify Console and the browser window.
- 3. Verify the creation of the Magnify Index Library.
  - a. Navigate to Index Library folder.

Open Windows Explorer (or press the Windows logo key+E), and paste the Directory Name copied from step 1b in the browser bar. You can also type the directory path to the Magnify index libraries, for example \ibi\WebFOCUS82\magnify\lucene\_index, by default, as shown in the following image.

Com	nputer ► OS (C:) ► ibi I	WebFOCUS82 ▶ m	agnify ► luce	ene_index
Organize 🔻 🛛 Inclu	ide in library 👻 Share	with 🔻 Burn	New folder	
🔆 Favorites	Name	Date modified	Туре	Size
🖳 Recent Places	📕 cars	10/16/2016 1:51 PM	File folder	
🧮 Desktop	) centuryelectronics	10/16/2016 1:50 PM	File folder	
Downloads	movies	10/16/2016 1:50 PM	File folder	

**Note:** The path that you use depends on your configuration. If you are using the WebFOCUS Client, the preceding path is acceptable. If you are using App Studio as a stand-alone, the path will be \ibi\AppStudio82\magnify\lucene\_index\.

4. Close Windows Explorer.

# Word Cloud Usage Considerations

The Word Cloud is a textual chart that is built into Magnify to make it easier to narrow a search. The Word Cloud is an accumulation of the most frequently found words across the search results returned. The Word Cloud always shows words as part of the latest result set.

Word Cloud presents words related to your search in a cloud-like image. You can click on these words to quickly refine the search.

Specifically, when you click on a word or a sequential series of words in the Word Cloud, your search results are modified based on what you select. For example, if a search was conducted on the word video, some of the words that might display in the Word Cloud include DVR, camera, and recording. When you click on one of these words, your results narrow based on that selection. In most cases, the search results in the display of fewer records.

**Note:** Word Cloud terms are populated based on the most frequent terms found for each search result and then aggregated for all search results returned. *More Like This* locates the words that are most frequently found in the index for each search result.

Word Cloud order city easyshot border portable camcorders detail inch system m audio easyca cameras organizers digital spacerbor camcorder camera play record tł down altnarrow \$7 records 879 camara magnify receipt recorder sales ~

The following image shows the Word Cloud when a search has been conducted on the term *video*.

You can access Word Cloud by clicking the top box in the list of categories, as shown in the following image. You can collapse Word Cloud by clicking the box again.

Word Cloud	
Source System	
Country	
Region	
State	
Store Name	
Gender	
Ethnicity	
Age Range	
Product Type	
Product Category	

**Note:** You may encounter instances where the Word Cloud is empty or disappears from the left pane of the search result area. This occurs when performing a search where a very limited number of results are returned or where the original searchable content is also very limited. There may not be a large enough pool of words to create the Word Cloud.
The following image shows an example when the World Cloud is empty for a search result.

WebFOCUS Magnify •••• O	novies	Movies V Search Results Per Page : 10 V Advanced Search
Search movies > HITCHCOCK A. Word Cloud		VERTIGO VERTIGO PG MYSTERY HITCHCOCK A. 58/11/25 082MCA MOVIES Similar MYSTERY HITCHCOCK A. 58/11/25 082MCA MOVIES Similar MYSTERY HITCHCOCK A. 60/05/16 530MCA MOVIES Similar MYSTERY HITCHCOCK A. 60/05/16 530MCA MOVIES Similar MYSTERY Movies More Like This BIRDS, THE BIRDS, THE PG13 MYSTERY HITCHCOCK A. 63/09/27 550MCA MOVIES Similar MYSTERY Movies More Like This REAR WINDOW REAR WINDOW PG MYSTERY HITCHCOCK A. 54/12/15 081MCA MOVIES Similar MYSTERY Movies More Like This NORTH BY NORTHWEST NR MYSTERY HITCHCOCK A. 59/02/09 145MGM MOVIES Similar MYSTERY Movies More Like This
CATEGORY		
RATING		
DIRECTOR		
HITCHCOCK A. (5)		

The following image shows an example when the World Cloud category has disappeared from the left pane of the search result area.

Magnify ••••	movies	Movies V Search Results Per Page : 10 V Advanced Search
Search		
movies > CLASSIC > KAZAN E.	₩ 🗐	EAST OF EDEN EAST OF EDEN NR CLASSIC KAZAN E. 55/01/12 005WAR MOVIES Similar CLASSIC Movies More Like This
RATING		ON THE WATERFRONT ON THE WATERFRONT NR CLASSIC KAZAN E 54/07/06 354RCA MOVIES
• NR (2)		Similar CLASSIC Movies More Like This
DIRECTOR	≣ ❹	

## Force Closing an Index During a Feed Process

You may encounter a situation when an index will not close automatically as part of the feed process. As a workaround, you must force close the index.

Indexes can now be closed on demand from the Close Indexes page in the Magnify Console. To access the Close Indexes page, navigate to the Maintenance section and click *Close Indexes*, as shown in the following image.

# Magnify Console

Settings		
Magnify Timers	Tune Magnify refresh rates	
Spell Check Setup	Provide "did you mean' type suggestions, for possible misspelled search submissions	
Analyzer Review	Evaluate how analyzers are applied to content as it is indexed and searched	
Collections Refresh	Set time(s) of the day to refresh collections	
Security		
IP Restrictions	Configure feed access control	
Maintenance		
Close Indexes	Close indexes that are open for reading.	
Delete Indexes	xes Delete indexes physically from the file system	
Diagnostics		
Index Monitor	Monitor performance and throughput as content is feed to Magnify	
Log Settings	Trace Magnify activity	
Servlet Form	Package documents to send to Magnifies indexing servlet.	

Settings		
Magnify Timers	Tune Magnify refresh rates	
Spell Check Setup	Provide "did you mean' type suggestions, for possible misspelled search submissions	
Analyzer Review	Evaluate how analyzers are applied to content as it is indexed and searched	
Collections Refresh	Set time(s) of the day to refresh collections	
Security		
IP Restrictions	Configure feed access control	
Maintenance		
Close Indexes	Close indexes that are open for reading.	
Delete Indexes	Delete indexes physically from the file system	
Close Searchers	Close cached searchers that are used for searching.	
Diagnostics		
Index Monitor	Monitor performance and throughput as content is feed to Magnify	
Servlet Form	Package documents to send to Magnifies indexing servlet.	

The Close Indexes page opens, as shown in the following image.



Select an index from the list that is currently open, which you want to close, and click Submit.

## **Upgrading Your Lucene Indexes**

As of WebFOCUS Release 8.2 Version 01 and higher, Magnify Search requires Lucene indexes to be at the version 4.x level. Earlier versions of Lucene indexes (for example, version 2.x) will not function.

Magnify Search provides an upgrade utility that is packaged with your WebFOCUS installation in the following directory:

drive:\ibi\WebFOCUS82\utilities\magnify

A batch file for Windows platforms named *upgrade.bat* and a shell script for UNIX/Linux platforms named *upgrade.sh* is available, as shown in the following image.

OS (C:) > ibi > WebFOCUS82 > utilities > magnify
▲ Name
Iucene_2_to_Iucene_4_9_upgrade_categories.jar
🕌 lucene-analyzers-common-4.9.0.jar
🖆 lucene-core-3.6.1.jar
🖆 lucene-core-4.9.0.jar
🕌 lucene-facet-4.9.0.jar
🕌 lucene-upgrade.jar
🛃 lucene-upgrade-4.9.jar
ingrade.bat
upgrade.sh

Perform the following steps to upgrade any earlier versions of Lucene indexes to version 4.9 using the available upgrade utility. For demonstration purposes, the upgrade utility for Windows platforms (*upgrade.bat*) is used. However, the general steps in this procedure are also applicable when using the upgrade utility for UNIX/Linux platforms (*upgrade.sh*).

**Note:** Before proceeding, it is recommended that you create a backup of your existing Lucene index, since this utility replaces the entire index in the specified directory path.

1. Run the upgrade.bat file.

The following prompt is displayed in a command console window:

Enter OLD Lucene Index Location (default-C:\ibi\WebFOCUS82\magnify
\lucene\_index):

2. Specify the directory path to the old Lucene index and press Enter.

**Note:** If you enter an invalid path, the upgrade utility displays a warning indicating that the directory does not exist and prompts you to re-enter the path. If this is the case, press *y* to continue and enter the correct path.

The following prompt is displayed:

Enter NEW Lucene Index Location (default-C:\ibi\WebFOCUS82\magnify
\lucene4\_index):

3. Specify the directory path to where you require the upgraded Lucene index to be created and press *Enter*.

The following message is displayed:

Upgrading Lucene Indeces .....

#### Notes:

- Depending on the amount and size of indexes that are being upgraded by this utility, this operation may take some time to complete. However, status messages are actively displayed in the command console window, which indicate the progress.
- □ If an index of the same name as an *old* index exists, then it will be overwritten by the upgraded version of the index.

After the upgrade process has finished, the command console window automatically closes.

4. Navigate to the directory path you specified where the upgraded Lucene indexes are created and verify that the corresponding indexes are available.

## **Magnify Distributed Indexes**

Magnify indexes can be distributed across load balanced or indexed environments, multiple WebFOCUS installs, and mounted drives or across other similar networked devices. This means an index is virtually indexed together by actual indexes residing in multiple locations, with each location being an index that makes up the greater virtual index.

To do so, a shared directory is first setup as central location to receive incoming feed documents, which are then indexed with one of the available distributed indexes. Then, when searches are performed, all distributed indexes are queried at once, and all results are merged together into a single result set for the end user.

Each index can be independently searched, but this represents only a portion of all the information that is expected to be made searchable and is only accomplished when searching all indexes in parallel. Due to this, the collection file should be configured so that an index not only references the local index, but has bidirectional pointers to all other indexes in other locations. Each of these locations is represented by their own collection file and each must be processed in their own application server space.

#### **Requirements:**

1. In order to feed data to a shared directory, the feed to disk method must be employed. In order to index fed data to distributed indexes, each index must be run in its own application server instance.

2. This is only used with the Magnify feedtype of FULL where unique identification is not used and duplicate records can exist.

The following procedures will walk you through how to enable and configure Magnify to concurrently index incoming feed documents across indexes.

## Procedure: How to Set Up Your Network Connected Environment

- 1. Confirm each machine can connect with one another.
- 2. Designate one directory to store incoming feed documents. This is shared to feeding machines and those machines part of the index with read and write permissions. It is recommended to use the default WebFOCUS feedcache directory.
- 3. In the WebFOCUS administration console for each WebFOCUS installation that is included, set the Magnify feed cache directory to the above shared path. On the local machine, the DOS path can be used.
- 4. Create a directory to store the index in each WebFOCUS installation that is included. You must confirm that the local machine has write access, but also has shared access with read permissions to all other machines. By default, it is recommended to use the default Magnify index directory. In addition, it is recommended that a subdirectory be created within this directory to help future-organize indexes, such as the automatic index directory creation and dynamic partitioning.

For example, the directory can be set as: magnify\lucene\_index\mag. Then, the index can be created under the following directory: mag\index.

## Procedure: How to Map Indexes

- 1. Create a collections file for each index to be represented. Make sure to perform the following steps on each file.
- 2. Edit the collections.xml file.
- 3. Configure any pointers to the index locations. Doing so defines where to load indexes with data from feeds that are picked up from the shared feedcache directory. To do so:
  - 1. Add an index element for each index participating in the greater index.
  - 2. Use a unique name and make sure that the directory points to the location of the index.
    - □ For local locations, this is the DOS path.
    - □ For remote locations, this is the UNC path.
  - 3. Include the feed element for the datasource.

#### Note:

- □ There is only one feed element defined in the set of indexes.
- □ The one feed element that is defined is placed within the index element for the index being represented.



4. Group the indexes into a greater index in order to perform a search.

#### Tips:

□ Create each index as a group component.

□ The group component can then be referenced like any other index through the collections drop-down menu.

```
-<!--
      *********
       COLLECTIONS
       The collections are groups of directories found in the
       Magnify's root Lucene index directory as defined in the
       WebFOCUS Admin console. By default this is:
       \ibi\WebFOCUS77\magnify\lucene index
       In the below example, wildcard folder names can be used.
        .* is all folders in the root dir whereas century.*
       will search only folder beginning with century.
       Only one wildcard component per group.
       otherwise, assign member to a case sensitive folder name
       <group name="centstores" id="centstores">
           <component id="centurystores" member="centurystores"/>
           <component id="centuryemployees" member="centuryemployees"/>
       </group>
                <collections>
       <group name="default collection" id="default collection">
           <component id="allindexes" member=".*"/>
       </group>
       <group name="cluster" id="clusterID">
          <component id="cluster0" member="magcluster1"/>
           <component id="cluster1" member="magcluster2"/>
           <component id="cluster2" member="magcluster3"/>
           <component id="cluster3" member="magcluster4"/>
       </group>
    </collections>
```

5. Create a version for each index. You can do this by either directly copying the index to any additional WebFOCUS Magnify installations, or renaming them accordingly.

## Procedure: How to Configure Application Server Settings

The following settings are enabled through your WebFOCUS Client application server that is configured with your WebFOCUS environment. An example of the application server is Apache Tomcat.

1. Force the application server to lock files from being distributed to other indexes once they are picked up for processing. To do this, add the following Java setting to your application server:

-DIBI\_Magnify\_FeedCache\_Locking\_Enable=true

2. Set the length of time (in minutes) that the application server waits to unlock a file to be distributed. To do this, add the following Java setting to your application server:

-DIBI\_Magnify\_FeedCache\_Lock\_File\_Lifetime\_Minutes=5

3. Set the collection file representing the index.

This is used when using one WebFOCUS Magnify install across multiple application server instances. To do this, add the following Java setting to your application server:

-DIBI\_Magnify\_Collections\_File\_Name=collections[N].xml

#### Notes:

- U When performing these steps, take the usual WAR file considerations.
- □ The first search performed will be slow, as memory is being loaded.
- □ This technique works across all supported operating systems.

### **Enable Distributed Indexes for Load Balancing**

One limitation to using this technique is that WebFOCUS Magnify can still only be configured to a single collection file, meaning that the only way to get to Magnify is through one collection file. This results in mapping pointers to other collection files in order to virtually represent the large single index when distributing indexes.

This is a challenge in a load balanced environment where entry to Magnify should occur from any index or in the collection file.

To enable and configure Magnify for multi-collection entry point for bi-directional collection configuration, reference in load-balanced environment.



# Indexing Using the FORMAT MAGNIFY Command

This section describes the requirements for indexing data using the FORMAT MAGNIFY command. FORMAT MAGNIFY defines the connection settings to Magnify Search and then defines how data maps to the search interface using a combination of alias names and Magnify Search Meta Tags.

#### In this chapter:

- FORMAT MAGNIFY
- Using Sentiment Analysis With Magnify Search

## FORMAT MAGNIFY

The following is a sample MOVIES Master File that contains several field names, which can be used to index the MOVIES data. The movies.mas Master File is located in the \ibi\apps \ibisamp directory of your WebFOCUS Reporting Server installation.

```
FILENAME=MOVIES,SUFFIX=FOC
SEGNAME=MOVINFO,SEGTYPE=S1
FIELDNAME=MOVIECODE, ALIAS=MCOD,FORMAT=A6, INDEX=I, $
FIELDNAME=TITLE, ALIAS=MTL,FORMAT=A39, $
FIELDNAME=CATEGORY, ALIAS=CLASS,FORMAT=A8, $
FIELDNAME=DIRECTOR, ALIAS=DIR,FORMAT=A17, $
FIELDNAME=RATING, ALIAS=RTG,FORMAT=A4, $
FIELDNAME=RELDATE, ALIAS=RTG,FORMAT=A4, $
FIELDNAME=RELDATE, ALIAS=WPRC,FORMAT=F6.2, $
FIELDNAME=LISTPR, ALIAS=LPRC,FORMAT=F6.2, $
FIELDNAME=COPIES,ALIAS=NOC, FORMAT=I3, $
```

WebFOCUS developers can use DEFINE fields and AS statements in the report procedure to define the following search components required for each WebFOCUS procedure using Format Magnify:

Туре	Alias Name or Prefix	Description
Title	SearchTitle <b>Note:</b> This is required.	A single field, or a concatenation of fields or strings. This can include a concatenation of static strings and various columns. The name is case-sensitive and is assigned to the TITLE meta tag.
Unique ID	MagnifyID <b>Note:</b> This is required.	Primary Key fields. Unique IDs are unique within each Library Index directory.
Categories	C_ or M_ <category> <b>Note:</b> Although this is optional, it is highly recommended to define some high-level groupings to assist end users in narrowing results sets with the Category Tree.</category>	Category Field name used in the Dynamic Categorization Tree (pre-parsed). It is recommended to use a enough categories to make the information easier to read for the end user. Category Fields are mapped in the order they appear. Use underscores to include spaces in the C_ or M_ names. C_ and M_ are converted to the FX values as part of the feed document output. The C#_ and M#_ prefixes can be used to set the order of the categories in the Dynamic Categorization Tree. <b>Note:</b> When using the M#_ prefix, add <i>A</i> to accumulate all values found at the lowest- level BY statement. The C_ prefix converts to the FXV meta tag. The M_ prefix converts to the FXM meta tag
		in the URL of the record.
Magnify Attributes	Magnify Attributes	Reserved META tag names, which are case- sensitive. For more information on the available Meta tags, see <i>Magnify Search</i> <i>Meta Tags</i> on page 93.

### ALIAS AND PREFIX NAMES

Туре	Alias Name or Prefix	Description
Other Attributes	Other Attributes	Any other field or virtual field. All other fields are added as meta tags based on the Field or Alias name and their respective value.
Search Body	S_ <fieldname> <b>Note:</b> This is required.</fieldname>	Concatenation of fields and virtual fields. The S_ prefix maps to the BODY meta tag in the document and the IBI_CONTENT field in the index library. Fields can be of any data type. The TX fields must be the last field in a PRINT statement. Search fields can be accumulated by prefixing them with SA Any field of any data type can be assigned the S_ or SA_ prefix.

The procedure must also define the following required Magnify search engine properties, which control the feed process.

## **CONNECTION STRING ENGINE PROPERTIES**

Property	Description	Example
CONNECTION _ATTRIBUTES	Magnify Indexing Servlet	http://localhost:8080/ibi_apps/saxfeed
BASEURL	WebFOCUS Report base URL	http://localhost:8080/ibi_apps/WFServlet
MIME	Document mime type	text/plain

Property	Description	Example
ACTION	Possible values are as follows:	MagnifyAction/A10 = 'add';
	■ add. Inserts or updates a record. A record is updated if its WF_INDEX_UNIQUE_KEY value already exists in the index. Yearly add is the default value. For more information, see Magnify Search Meta Tags on page 93.	
	delete. The WF_INDEX_UNIQUE_KEY of the record value is found and deleted from the index.	
DATASOURCE	Magnify index library directory	Movies [:10KB MB GB]
		For more information on how dynamic partitioning is configured, see the <i>Magnify</i> Search Security and Administration manual.
BATCHSIZE	Number of records to burst at a time.	100
	Note: This is always recommended.	
DELIMITER	Separator for multiple categorizations.	#!#
	<b>Note:</b> This is used in conjunction with aggregation-based alias names (as seen in next section by c#A_ and SA_).	

Property	Description	Example
Property FEEDTYPE (Optional)	<ul> <li>Description</li> <li>Sets the document-level Magnify feed property to determine how data is added to the index. This property can be set to one of the following values:</li> <li>FULL. Adds all data to the index from the data source. If a record is repeated in the feed, it is duplicated in the Magnify index library. Therefore, the full feedtype is recommended only when there are no duplicate records.</li> <li>INCREMENTAL (default). Updates an existing record in the index or adds the data as a new record. The record is first matched using the WF_INDEX_UNIQUE_KEY meta tag.</li> </ul>	Example MAGNIFY SET FEEDTYPE = FULL
	Otherwise, the URL value is used. This mode prevents duplicate records from being added to the index library.	

**Note:** If the data contains non-ASCII characters, UTF-8 encoding is required, and the WebFOCUS Reporting Server must be set to National Language Support (NLS) UTF-8. In addition, the ENGINE SET Statements can be overridden on a record by record basis by using the MagnifyBaseURL, MagnifyMime, MagnifyAction, and MagnifyDatasource values.

## Reference: Sample WebFOCUS Procedure

The following is a report procedure that defines the required search properties used to create an index using the MOVIES data. The carmgn.fex and moviesmgn.fex sample procedures are included in the ibisamp directory of the WebFOCUS Reporting Server installation.

```
-*********Engine settings
ENGINE MAGNIFY SET CONNECTION ATTRIBUTES MY PC
'http://localhost:8080/ibi_apps/saxfeed'
ENGINE MAGNIFY SET BaseURL=http://localhost:8080/ibi_apps/WFServlet
ENGINE MAGNIFY SET MIME=text/plain
ENGINE MAGNIFY SET DATASOURCE=movies
ENGINE MAGNIFY SET DELIMITER=#!#
ENGINE MAGNIFY SET BATCHSIZE=2
-***** required SET command
SET ASNAMES=MIXED
-***** Application Path
APP HOLD test
DEFINE FILE MOVIES
OLD DATE/18YYMD= 20100915;
NEW_DATE/YYMD = OLD_DATE;
_*****
MagnifyAction/A10 = 'add';
SEARCHBODY/TX50=TITLE | CATEGORY | DIRECTOR | RATING;
END
TABLE FILE MOVIES
PRINT
   TITLE
              AS 'SearchTitle'
-* Magnify Attribute
   MOVIECODE AS 'MagnifyID'
   MOVIECODE AS 'WF_INDEX_UNIQUE_KEY'
-* category variable start with C_
   CATEGORY AS 'C_CATEGORY'
   DIRECTOR AS 'C_DIRECTOR'
   RATING
  MagnifyAction
-* search variables start with S_
   TITLE AS 'S_Title'
   CATEGORY AS 'S_CATEGORY'
DIRECTOR AS 'S_DIRECTOR'
RELDATE AS 'S_DIRECTOR'
OLD_DATE AS 'S_OLD_DATE'
NEW_DATE AS 'S_NEW_DATE'
   SEARCHBODY AS 'S_SearchBody'
ON TABLE HOLD FORMAT MAGNIFY AS MAGN_MOVIES_BATCH
END
```

When the report procedure is executed, the index is generated and the data from the Movie database is available for searching, as shown in the following image.

WebFOCUS Magnify •••• O	Default Collection 💌 Search Results Per Page : 10 💌 Advanced Search
Search	Results1 - 10 of about 11 for PG. Search took 0.016 seconds.
Word Cloud	Tabular view         /         Sort by query score         Sort by date         Sort by relevance /         facetcounts on           JAWS         JAWS PG ACTION SPIELBERG S. 78/05/13 001MCA MOVIES         Similar ACTION Movies         More Like This
ACTION (2) • COMEDY (4) FOREIGN (2) MUSICALS (1) MYSTERY (2)	VERTIGO VERTIGO PG MYSTERY HITCHCOCK A. 58/11/25 082MCA MOVIES Similar MYSTERY Movies More Like This CABARET PG MUSICALS FOSSE B. 73/07/14 035CBS MOVIES Similar MUSICALS Movies More Like This
RATING	REAR WINDOW
ABRAHAMS J. (1) ALLEN W. (1) FOSSE B. (1) HITCHCOCK A. (2) MARSHALL P. (1)	BACK TO THE FUTURE BACK TO THE FUTURE PG COMEDY ZEMECKIS R. 86/11/19 196MCA MOVIES Similar COMEDY Movies More Like This
SCOLA E. (1) SCOTT T. (1) SPIELBERG S. (1) VISCONTI L. (1) ZEMECKIS R. (1)	AIRPLANE AIRPLANE PG COMEDY ABRAHAMS J. 82/09/28 305PAR MOVIES Similar COMEDY Movies More Like This ANNIE HALL ANNIE HALL PG COMEDY ALLEN W. 78/04/16 518MGM MOVIES
	Similar COMEDY Movies More Like This

## Using FORMAT MAGNIFY With TEXT Fields

Using FORMAT MAGNIFY with TEXT fields that are larger than 32K in size generates a FOCSORT error because the FOCSORT threshold (2GB) is reached.

The TEXT field must be set as a Binary Large Object (BLOB) field (ACTUAL and USAGE) so that it bypasses the FOCSORT and uses the FOCCACHE instead. This technique writes the content out to disk in chunks as it is processed and is delivered to Magnify as an incoming document.

## Writing Magnify Feed Documents to Disk

Modifying ENGINE MAGNIFY SET commands for FORMAT MAGNIFY that instructs the WebFOCUS Reporting Server to write Magnify feed documents to disk rather than posting through HTTP are now supported.

## *Procedure:* How to Write Magnify Feed Documents to Disk

You can follow the same instructions that currently exist for configuring FORMAT MAGNIFY with the following differences:

1. Add the following two lines:

APP MAP <variable\_name> "c:\ibi\WebFOCUS82\magnify\feedcache"

APP HOLD <variable\_name>

- 2. Set the ENGINE MAGNIFY SET CONNECTION\_ATTRIBUTES parameter to a blank value.
- 3. Ensure that the ON TABLE HOLD FORMAT MAGNIFY statement ends with:

AS <variable\_name>

Otherwise, the following error is generated:

(FOC44971) Explicit SET command has to be issued for CONNECTION\_ATTRIBUTES.

## Using Sentiment Analysis With Magnify Search

Sentiment analysis is the study of consumer feelings and attitudes towards a product or service, such as positive, negative, or neutral. You can use Magnify Search to analyze textual feedback provided in social media platforms, product reviews, and other searchable content.

To use sentiment analysis with Magnify Search, the following requirements are needed.

- □ The developer environment needs to have the WAND Sentiment Analysis Server and Adapter configured.
- □ The sample synonyms must be created as explained in the *WebFOCUS* Social Media Integration Guide technical content.
- □ In the HOLD FORMAT MAGNIFY procedure, add the IBI\_Sentiment\_score metatag as an ASNAME for the SCORERESULT field.

The following HOLD FORMAT MAGNIFY procedure shows the code line SCORERESULT AS 'IBI\_Sentiment\_score' added to the procedure.

```
ENGINE MAGNIFY SET CONNECTION_ATTRIBUTES MY_PC ''
APP MAP SENT MAG "C:/ibi/webfocus82/magnify/feedcache"
APP HOLD SENT MAG
ENGINE MAGNIFY SET BASEURL=http://localhost:8080/ibi_apps/WFServlet
ENGINE MAGNIFY SET MIME=text/plain
ENGINE MAGNIFY SET DATASOURCE=sentiment
SET ASNAMES=MIXED
JOIN TEXT1 IN twitter/trump_v_clinton TO TEXT IN wand/wandscore
DEFINE FILE twitter/trump_v_clinton
    S HARDCODED/TX50='Election 2016';
    TITLE_URL/A2000='http://localhost:8080/ibi_apps/search?q=' || NAME || '&' ||
          'collections=collections_sentiment.xml' || '&' ||
          'proxystylesheet=en/en_stylesheet_sentiment' || '&'
          'site=sentiment';
    LINK_DISPLAY_NAME1/A2000= SCREEN_NAME;
    LINK_URL1/A512='http://localhost:8080/ibi_apps/search?q=' || SCREEN_NAME || '&' ||
          'collections=collections_sentiment.xml' | '&' |
          'proxystylesheet=en/en_stylesheet_sentiment' || '&'
          'site=sentiment';
    Sentiment_Score/A7 = IF SCORERESULT LT 0 THEN 'Bad'
          ELSE IF SCORERESULT EQ 0 THEN 'Neutral'
          ELSE 'Good';
END
TABLE FILE twitter/trump_v_clinton
PRINT
     SCREEN_NAME AS 'SearchTitle'
     SCREEN NAME AS 'MagnifyID'
     SCREEN_NAME AS 'WF_INDEX_UNIQUE_KEY'
     NAME AS 'C1_NAME'
     SCREEN_NAME AS 'C2_SCREEN_NAME'
     CREATED_AT AS 'S_CREATED_AT'
     TEXT1 AS 'S_TEXT1'
     NAME AS 'S_NAME'
     SCREEN_NAME AS 'S_SCREEN_NAME'
     SCORERESULT AS 'IBI_Sentiment_score'
     Sentiment_Score AS 'C3_Sentiment_Score'
     TITLE_URL
     LINK DISPLAY NAME1
     LINK URL1
     S HARDCODED
ON TABLE HOLD FORMAT MAGNIFY AS SENT_MAG
END
```

After the search index is created, when you search for a term in Magnify Search, you can filter your data so that you are only searching for results that most likely contain sentiment scores, such as product reviews.

The following image shows customer product reviews written for the Century Electronics tablet. Sentiment scores are included. In this example, the higher the decimal number is, the more positive the feedback.

Email Subject Line: Worth 100_ too heavy for a tablet. Not comfortable when you have to hold it in your hand for extended periods Profile for: Jordy Yowell Shopping History Return Trends More Like This View Full Document Sentiment Score: 2000000030
Email Subject Line: Great for college students on a budget! purchased this tablet knowing it was discontinued. When first using the CenturyTablet it was good for that. Overall this tablet is amazing. The CEos really makes the CenturyTablet shine. As a penny it is fairly easy. Overall: The CE centuryTablet is an amazing tablet. The CEos software make is easy Profile for: Leroy Gatewood Schopping History Return Trends More Like This View Full Document Sentiment Score: 3928571343
Email Subject Line: A good Option for Tablets. as always got it quick. My back ground is I've owned an IPAD and asus windows tablet. After trying them wanted a tablet with good battery life, good aps, experience the 'real' web, do some entertainment in this tablet. Synergy makes the whole multitasking a breezy and keeps everything in synch. The whole process Profile for: Harlan Grantham Shopping History Return Trends More Like This View Full Document Sentiment Score. 3999115825
Email Subject Line: Great but still lacking some key features to smudges and fingerprints which can get a bit annoying. It takes a while for the <b>tablet</b> to boot up Profile for: Jamya Lloyd Shopping History Return Trends More Like This View Full Document Sentiment Score: 3999557793
Email Subject Line: CE CenturyTablet 9.7in Tablet Email Subject Line: CE CenturyTablet 9.7in Tablet Harlan Weyand harlan_weyand@verizon.com City Video 2011/12/29 00:00:00.000 Male December verizon CE CenturyTablet 9.7in Tablet Profile for: Harlan Weyand Shopping History Return Trends More Like This View Full Document Sentiment Score: 4000000060

For more information about sentiment scores, see the *Magnify* Search End User Manual technical content.



## **Magnify Search Meta Tags**

This chapter presents and describes the meta tags used with Magnify Search.

Note: Magnify Search meta tags are case-sensitive.

#### In this chapter:

- □ HTML Format for All Access Types
- HTML Format Required for an External URL
- File Indexing Specific Meta Tag Information
- Sentiment Analysis Indexing
- HTML Format for a Stand-alone Report Procedure
- HTML Format for a Managed Reporting Procedure
- HTML Format for a Business Intelligence Portal Item
- HTML Format for an AUTORUN Procedure

## HTML Format for All Access Types

The following table describes the HTML format required for all access types.

Parameter	Value
TITLE	Text displayed as the main link of the search result.
Custom Meta Tags	
"X" CONTENT="Y"	Meta tags that are stored with the search result, but are not indexed or available for searching.
Unique Key	

Value	
document when updating or index. This can be the document se field value.	
ired meta tag and must be unique	
a date field for each record. The the date in which the record was can add your own date information of in your transformation. If date ith the record, Magnify will include d not the default date value. The the date is as follows:	

#### Data That Can be Searched On

BODY	Data to be indexed (and therefore searchable) by the search engine.
Image for Snippet	

Parameter	Value	
HTML_LEFT_OF_SNIPPET	META element used to include an image next to the main results link. For example, in a retail use case scenario, you may want to display product images that correspond to the search results.	
	Any valid HTML including an iframe of content is supported.	
	<b>Note:</b> The width and height of the image must be resized to 40 pixels. Otherwise, the search results will cascade to the right side of the screen.	
	To review sample syntax for the HTML_LEFT_OF_SNIPPET parameter, open the <i>magdemo_index_products.fex</i> file using an editor, which is located in the following folder of your WebFOCUS installation:	
	drive:\ibi\apps\ibimagn	
	Navigate to the DEFINE section in this FOCEXEC.	

## HTML Format Required for an External URL

The following table describes the HTML format required for an external URL.

**Note:** This is the recommended approach to creating drill-down links. In addition, you can only assign one Title to a search result.

Parameter	Value
Main Title Link	
"TITLE_URL"	URL of the title link. Set by TITLE.
"LINK_URLn"	URL of the <i>n</i> th link.
Additional Links	
"LINK_DISPLAY_NAMEn"	Name of additional search result links.
	Where $n$ is the sequential number of the link you are creating (1, 2, 3, and so on).

Parameter	Value	
Target for Search Results		
"TITLE_TARGET"	Specifies the target in which the results of the main search result link display. Valid values are as follows:	
	_blank	
	Displays the results in a new browser window.	
	_self	
	Replaces the current browser window with the search results. This is the default.	
	_parent	
	Displays the results in the parent frame.	
	_top	
	Replaces the top-most frame with the search results.	
	frame name	
	Displays the search result in the frame specified.	

Parameter	Value
"LINK_TARGETn"	Specifies the target in which the results for each additional link display. Valid values are as follows:
	_blank
	Displays the results in a new browser window.
	_self
	Replaces the current browser window with the search results. This is the default.
	_parent
	Displays the results in the parent frame.
	_top
	Replaces the top-most frame with the search results.
	frame name
	Displays the search result in the frame specified.
	Where <i>n</i> must be in sequential order (1, 2, 3, and so on).

## File Indexing Specific Meta Tag Information

The following table describes optional meta tag information when indexing documents.

Parameter	Value
File Metadata Information	
"MAGNIFY_ACTION_FILE_PROPERTY_FIELD"	Defines the meta-properties of the file in the Dynamic Categorization Tree. It is a comma-separated list of file properties for Magnify to include with the Dynamic Categorization Tree.

Parameter	Value
"MAGNIFY_ACTION_FILE_PROPERTY_TITLE"	Defines the text used to display the meta-properties of the file that are included in the Dynamic Categorization Tree. It is a comma-separated list corresponding to the same order as MAGNIFY_ACTION_FILE_PROPERTY_FIEL D.
"MAGNIFY_ACTION_FILE_PROPERTY_BODY"	Defines the meta-property values of the file to be indexed as part of the file searchable content. It is a comma- separated list according to the first meta tag.
	<b>Note:</b> This is joined by Magnify to the BODY meta tag.
"MAGNIFY_ACTION_FILE_BODY"	Defines any additional static values used to enrich file content, such as data from the database records, an email, or hardcoded structured or unstructured values.
	<b>Note:</b> This is joined by Magnify to the BODY meta tag.

## Sentiment Analysis Indexing

The following table defines and describes the meta tag that is used for Sentiment Analysis.

Parameter	Value
"IBI_Sentiment_score"	This is reserved for the sentiment score previously determined using the WebFOCUS Sentiment Analysis. For more information, see the WebFOCUS Social Media Integration Guide (Chapter 7, Using the Adapter for WAND Sentiment Analysis). When Magnify search results with this meta tag are presented to the end user, sorting by sentiment will appear in the search interface, as described in the Magnify End User manual.

## HTML Format for a Stand-alone Report Procedure

The following table describes the HTML format required for a stand-alone report procedure. This is used as an alternative to building search result drill-down links.

Parameter	Value	
WebFOCUS Standard Report Access Details		
"FOCEXEC_FOR_TITLE"	WebFOCUS report (FOCEXEC) to be executed when you click the title link.	
"FOCSOURCEDATABASE_FOR_TITLE"	Name of the database accessed when you click the title link.	
"FOCEXECCAPPNAME_FOR_TITLE"	Name of the FOCUS application accessed (where the FOCEXEC resides) when you click the title link.	
Additional Links		
"LINK_DISPLAY_NAME <i>n</i> "	Name of additional search result links. Can include images, if necessary. Where <i>n</i> is the sequential number of the link you	
	are creating (1, 2, 3, and so on).	
"FOCEXECn"	Name of the report procedure that will be executed when the link is clicked.	

Parameter	Value
"FOCSOURCEDATABASEn"	Name of the data source for the <i>n</i> th link. Where <i>n</i> is the sequential number of the link (1, 2, 3, and so on).
"FOCEXECAPPNAMEn"	FOCUS application name for the <i>n</i> th link. Where <i>n</i> is the sequential number of the link (1, 2, 3, and so on).

## HTML Format for a Managed Reporting Procedure

The following table describes the HTML format for a Managed Reporting report procedure.

Parameter	Value		
WebFOCUS Managed Reporting Access Details			
"IBIMR_action_FOR_TITLE"	Parameters to use for a Managed Reporting report that will execute when the main link is clicked.		
"IBIMR_sub_action_FOR_TITLE"			
"IBIMR_fex_FOR_TITLE"			
"IBIMR_folder_FOR_TITLE"			
"IBIMR_drill_FOR_TITLE"			
"IBIMR_domain_FOR_TITLE"			
Additional Links			
"LINK_DISPLAY_NAMEn"	Name of additional search result links.		
	Where <i>n</i> is the sequential number of the link you are creating (1, 2, 3, and so on).		

Parameter	Value
"IBIMR_actionn"	Parameter to the Managed Reporting report for the
"IBIMR_sub_action <i>n</i> "	n link.
"IBIMR_fexn"	
"IBIMR_folderN"	
"IBIMR_drill <i>n</i> "	
"IBIMR_domain <i>n</i> "	

## HTML Format for a Business Intelligence Portal Item

For security purposes, the BI Portal is locked down by disabling anonymous authentication for the public users in WebFOCUS. Any requests made outside of the BI Portal will require authentication. To disable anonymous authentication, WebFOCUS Administrators must complete the following steps:

- 1. Navigate to the ibi\WebFOCUS82\config directory.
- 2. Edit the securitysettings.xml file.
- 3. Set the anonymousAuthEnabled value to *false*.
- 4. Save the file and restart the application server.

The following table describes the HTML format for BI Portal items.

Parameter

Value

#### WebFOCUS BI Portal Access Details

Parameter	Value
"LINK_URLn"	Parameter to use for a Business Intelligence Portal item that will execute when the main link is clicked.
	The value of LINK_URL, must be as follows:
	<pre>http://host:port/context_root/views.bip? BIP_REQUEST_TYPE=BIP_RUN&amp;BIP_folder= IBFS:/WFC/Repository/FolderName&amp; BIP_item=ObjectName</pre>
	where:
	host:port
	Is the name of the application server and port number where WebFOCUS is installed.
	FolderName
	Is the directory that contains the BI Portal item.
	ObjectName
	Is a report procedure (.fex), URL (.url), or HTML page (.html).
	<b>Note:</b> Sample or default URLs are for informational purposes only and may not resolve correctly, if at all.
	Special characters and NLS characters may need to be encoded. For example, the following are common special characters and their corresponding encoding:
	: Is encoded as
	%253A
	/ Is encoded as
	%252F

#### **Additional Links**

Parameter	Value
"LINK_DISPLAY_NAMEn"	Name of additional search result links.
	Where <i>n</i> is the sequential number of the link you are creating (1, 2, 3, and so on).

## HTML Format for an AUTORUN Procedure

An AUTORUN procedure converts a search result into a report. Using a number at the end of an AUTORUN parameter allows multiple procedures to run in numerical order. The following table describes the HTML format required for an AUTORUN procedure, where n is the sequential number of the AUTORUN procedure, such as 1, 2, 3, and other numbers.

Parameter	Value
"AUTORUNn"	The URL that will be executed.
"AUTORUN_STYLEn"	The CSS attributes that will be applied to the output of the URL.
"AUTORUN_APPEND_CATEGORIESn"	The true or false value for adding categories to the URL.

## **Magnify Search Protocols**

This section describes the Magnify Search protocols for indexing data. It describes the feed document expected by Magnify Search to index data as search results. Using Format Magnify handles this for developers. Using iWay or DataMigrator will model the output in the protocols that follow.

#### In this chapter:

Chapter

Magnify Search Protocols for Indexing Documents

## Magnify Search Protocols for Indexing Documents

When Magnify Search is fed data to be stored as search content, it expects an incoming document in a specific format. Using Format Magnify, the WebFOCUS protocol is transformed by the WebFOCUS Reporting Server into a document following these protocols. Using DataMigrator, the document is manually created and must adhere to these protocols. In iWay, the IEI Feed Agent converts the process flow output to adhere to those protocols. The incoming feed document can contain one or more records or search results.

iWay Service Manager (iSM) and the FORMAT MAGNIFY command can be used to extract, transform, and load data into the Magnify Search index library from various sources, such as databases, legacy systems, and transactional messages. Each document generated must be well-formed XML that adheres to the Magnify Search feed protocol. This section describes the required document format, whether you are using the IEI Feed Agent in iSM or the FORMAT MAGNIFY command to feed data to Magnify Search.

**Note:** The IEI Feed Agent and FORMAT MAGNIFY command generate the final document in adherence with the Magnify Search protocols. However, the developer must prepare the data in accordance with these protocols.

The following image illustrates a well-formed XML document that adheres to the Magnify Search protocol specification.

## **General Specification**

Each incoming feed document that is indexed by Magnify Search requires a header and record element. These elements provide information, such as how the document should be fed to the index library and the type of document that is being indexed.

## **Header Element**

The header section contains the following document-level Magnify Search feed properties:

#### feedtype

Contains one of the following values:

- full replaces all previous data in the index from the data source. If a record is repeated in the feed, it is duplicated in the Magnify Search index library. Therefore, the full feedtype is recommended only when there are no duplicate records.
- incremental updates an existing record in the index or adds the data as a new record. The record is first matched using the WF\_INDEX\_UNIQUE\_KEY meta tag. Otherwise, the URL value is used. This mode prevents duplicate records from being added to the index library.

Important: It is a best practice to always index data using WF\_INDEX\_UNIQUE\_KEY.

#### datasource

Is the source of the data to be fed to the search engine. If the library is not found, Magnify Search creates it dynamically. Magnify Search index libraries are created in the location specified by the magnify\_root parameter configured in the WebFOCUS Administration Console. For more information, see the *Magnify Search Security and Administration* manual.

## **Record Element**

The record element contains attributes that define record-level Magnify Search feed properties and the content being indexed. The information contained in the record element varies for each protocol. However, the record element defines the following for each protocol:

#### attribute:action

The action attribute specifies how to apply each record found in the incoming document to a Magnify Search index and contains one of the following values:

- □ ADD inserts or updates a record. Adds are influenced based on the feedtype set and require UNIQUE\_KEY for update.
- DELETE prevents a document from being searchable. The disk space is reserved until it is reused by the index library when space is needed or when an administrator optimizes the index.

#### attribute:mimetype

The mime type attribute defines the type of content to process in the content section of the record. This value is specific to each protocol.

**Note:** This attribute can be defined per record when more than one record is sent in a single document.

#### attribute:url

Specifies the default record ID in the Magnify Search index library. In addition, this URL is used by the Magnify Search interface as follows:

- 1. Provides the information required to build the Dynamic Categorization Tree.
- 2. Gets concatenated with the meta tags for accessing WebFOCUS reports.

Note: The URL must be encoded.

The document and record-level properties are defined in the IEI Feed Agent properties tab in iWay Integration Tools (iIT) Designer and in the FORMAT MAGNIFY ENGINE SET statements. The base URL is defined by the BASE URL property in both the IEI Feed Agent and FORMAT MAGNIFY statements. The query string parameters appended to the records URL attribute are generated by user-defined properties of the IEI Feed Agent or in the FORMAT MAGNIFY alias naming conventions.

#### node:content

Defines the actual document being indexed with Magnify Search. The attribute encoding must be set to base64binary, and the content assigned within this node must be base64 encoded.

The content document is generated using the iWay process flow described in *Supporting Information for iWay* on page 145 or the *Indexing Using the FORMAT MAGNIFY Command* on page 83.

## **Protocol Specification**

Depending on the type of data being indexed within the content document, Magnify Search requires the data to be packaged following a specific protocol. Magnify Search uses the following protocols for accepting documents from a feed process:

**Record.** Used for structured and semi-structured data.

- **URL.** Used for web-accessible files.
- **Document.** Used for embedded files.

## Reference: Record Protocol

The record protocol is used for structured and semi-structured data sources like database records. The mime type attribute of the record must be set to *text/plain*. The document inserted into the content section is also an XML document with a Target\_Root element and a HEAD section. The following elements are contained in the HEAD section:

- □ **TITLE.** Is the text assigned as the Search Results main link text. This can be enriched with HTML.
- **META TAG.** Is the field name and its value stored in the index with the search result. For more information on the available meta tags, see *Supporting Information for iWay* on page 145.
- **BODY.** Content indexed and made available for searching.

**Note:** The BODY element is stored as IBI\_CONTENT in the Magnify Search index library, which can be accessed using tools such as Lucene Luke.
The following image illustrates a decoded document that can be indexed using the record protocol.



Note: Magnify Search requires base64 encoded content and an encoded record URL.

#### Reference: URL Protocol

The URL protocol is used for web-accessible files and is recommended for larger files. Magnify Search fetches the document, reads it, and indexes the content. The mime type attribute of the record must be set to *application/openurl*. Magnify Search locates the file based on the URL attribute value of the record. If a URL cannot be accessed or indexed, it is logged in the application server log files. The document inserted into the content section is also an XML document with an ENCODEDDOCUMENT root element containing HEAD, DOCUMENT, and AUTHENTICATION sections.

The following elements are contained in the HEAD section:

- □ **TITLE.** Is the text assigned as the Search Results main link text. This can be enriched with HTML.
- **META TAG.** Is the field name and its value stored in the index with the search result. For more information on the available meta tags, see *Supporting Information for iWay* on page 145.

The DOCUMENT section contains the following attributes:

- **Password.** Required if the file is password protected. The password is used to read the file for indexing and is optional.
- □ **Mimetype.** Must be set to *file/auto*. The document is passed to the Magnify Search parser to process various file types based on information found in the document header.

The content element is empty, since Magnify Search fetches the content based on the URL attribute value of the record.

The AUTHENTICATION section contains the *wwwauthenticateuserid* and *wwwauthenticatepassword* attributes, which are used to access the domain where the document is located.

The contents of the document indexed are stored as IBI\_CONTENT in the Magnify Search index library, which can be accessed using tools such as Lucene Luke.

The following image illustrates a decoded document that can be indexed using the URL protocol.



Note: Magnify Search requires base64 encoded content and an encoded record URL.

#### *Reference:* Document Protocol

The document protocol is used when files can be embedded into the document that is being indexed. Magnify Search reads in and indexes the content of the document. The mime type attribute of the record must be set to *application/encodeddocument*.

The document inserted into the content section is an XML document with an ENCODEDDOCUMENT root element containing a HEAD and DOCUMENT section.

The following elements are contained in the HEAD section:

- □ **TITLE.** Is the text assigned as the Search Results main link text. This can be enriched with HTML.
- **META TAG.** Is the field name and its value stored in the index with the search result. For more information on the available meta tags, see *Supporting Information for iWay* on page 145.

The DOCUMENT section contains attributes about the embedded file within the document tags. Encoding must be set to *base64binary*. The mime type must be set to *file/auto*. The fetched document is passed to the Magnify Search parser to process various file types based on information natively found in the document header. A password is required if the file is password protected. The password is used to read the file for indexing and is optional.

The contents of the document indexed are stored as IBI\_CONTENT in the Magnify Search index library, which can be accessed using tools such as Lucene Luke.

The following image illustrates a decoded document that can be indexed using the document protocol.



Note: Magnify Search requires base64 encoded content and an encoded record URL.

Embedding files into the Magnify Search feed document can be done using the file object in iWay Service Manager (iSM). For more information on the iWay process flow, see *Supporting Information for iWay* on page 145. The embedded file must be base64 encoded.

#### XML Protocol of Search Result Output

Magnify search results adhere to the Google Search Protocol and can be consumed by other applications, such as a dashboard. Magnify Search currently supports the following XML tags:

- 🖵 TM
- Q
- PARAM
- RES
- ΔМ
- 🖬 NB
- 🛛 NU
- 🛛 R
- 🖵 MT
- 🛛 S
- **WC.** Describe Word Cloud terms and their counts.

**CT.** Describe Category Tree Fields, Items, and their respective counts.

For more information on the Google Search Protocol tags, see <a href="https://developers.google.com/custom-search/docs/xml\_results">https://developers.google.com/custom-search/docs/xml\_results</a>.

#### Word Cloud and Category Tree Data Returned in Magnify Search XML Output

Word Cloud data is returned in a WC element that includes the *count* and *word* attributes. Each attribute contains a comma-separated list where the parallel order between count and word correlate. This means that the first word has a count of the first number listed.

Category Tree data is returned in a CT element with a CAT sub-element for each Category field with attributes for the source field name (*fieldname*) and the text to display in the interface (*displayname*). Each Category field has VAL sub-elements for each of the Category values (*name*) and the corresponding counts (*count*). The following image shows an example of a Magnify Search XML output document, where the data identified by the CT element is used to build the Category Tree in the Magnify search results.



#### Showing Search Results in the Category Tree That Have Blank or Empty Category Values

By default, blank or empty values are not represented in the Category Tree.

For example, the following feed procedure creates blank category values for all *Country=England* results and the Category Value '*Present*' for all other countries.



In this scenario, the Category Tree is represented as shown in the following image.



The developer of the feed procedure must determine what constitutes a blank versus empty value. Based on this decision, the developer must use a DECODE or IF/THEN/ELSE to provide a real representative value illustrating differences between EMPTY, BLANK, NULL, UNDEFINED, if and when relevant.

To summarize, values of type EMPTY, BLANK, NULL, and UNDEFINED (if required to be represented in the Category Tree) should use the DECODE or IF/THEN/ELSE to assign a physical textual representation.

# Chapter 7

# Configuring the Adapter for Flat File to Search File Repositories

This chapter describes how to configure the Adapter for Flat File to monitor the repositories.

#### In this chapter:

- Overview
- Creating a New Application Mapping to the File Repository Directory
- Defining a New Application Directory
- Defining a File Monitor Synonym
- Configuring the File Monitor Master File
- Transforming Documents Into Searchable Content
- Configuring a FORMAT MAGNIFY Procedure

#### Overview

Using the Adapter for Flat File, developers can index file repositories with Magnify using WebFOCUS protocols and keep them synchronized as new files are added, modified, renamed, moved, or deleted in the repository. This chapter describes how to configure the Adapter for Flat File to monitor file repositories.

The following are the required configuration steps:

- 1. Create a new application mapping to the file repository directory.
- 2. Define a new application directory.
- 3. Define a file monitor synonym.
- 4. Configure the file monitor Master File.
- 5. Update the synonym to point to the application mapping.
- 6. Configure a FORMAT MAGNIFY procedure that uses the file monitor synonym to index the application mapping directory that is being monitored.

#### File Indexing Requirements

Ensure that the following file indexing requirements are met:

**I** Files must be accessible from a URL and a File system, as shown in the following image.

OS (C:) > ibi > apps > ibimagn > files		
□ Name	Date modified	Туре
- Forms	2/10/2017 1:35 PM	File folder
Records	2/10/2017 1:35 PM	File folder
- Templates	2/10/2017 1:35 PM	File folder
Corporate Calendar.ppt	2/10/2017 1:35 PM	Microsoft Office P
Customer Satisfaction Improvement P	2/10/2017 1:35 PM	Microsoft Office P
Employee shift schedule.xlsx	2/10/2017 1:35 PM	Microsoft Office E
🕮 File Asset Matrix.xls	2/10/2017 1:35 PM	Microsoft Office E
🕮 Headcount and payroll planning.xls	2/10/2017 1:35 PM	Microsoft Office E
👜 John Manning.docx	2/10/2017 1:35 PM	Microsoft Office
👜 John Osborn Resume.odt	2/10/2017 1:35 PM	OpenDocument T
🔁 QTR_SALES_CMPD_complete.pdf	2/10/2017 1:35 PM	Adobe Acrobat D
🗐 Recruiting Flyer.docx	2/10/2017 1:35 PM	Microsoft Office
Sales Proposal.pptx	2/10/2017 1:35 PM	Microsoft Office P
🔁 Shareholder Update Q2 2008.pdf	2/10/2017 1:35 PM	Adobe Acrobat D
👜 Staff Training.pptx	2/10/2017 1:35 PM	Microsoft Office P
🔁 Store Sales Project Overview.pdf	2/10/2017 1:35 PM	Adobe Acrobat D
📓 text_handling.js	2/10/2017 1:35 PM	JavaScript File

□ A persistence file (\_m\_<user>.chp) will be created for the Adapter for Flat File to monitor changes to the application mapping directory:

Note: Only changes from the last TABLE request are stored in the persistence file.

#### Creating a New Application Mapping to the File Repository Directory

This section describes how to create a new application mapping to the file repository directory.

#### *Procedure:* How to Create a New Application Mapping to the File Repository Directory

To create a new application mapping:

- 1. Log on to the WebFOCUS Reporting Server console.
- 2. Click the Applications tab.

3. Right-click *Application Directories* in the left pane, select *New*, and then *Application Directory*, as shown in the following image.

S 🔕 🗆	🔜 \vee 🕌 🚨 🔳	1	<b>y</b>		
Application:	Adapters Resource	Mar	nagen	nent Workspace Acc	ess Control
New V Filter V	<b>X</b>		Ap	plications	
<ul> <li>Application</li> <li>Focce</li> </ul>	New	•		Procedure	e Applicatio
🕨 📄 ibisar 🍸	Filter	►	-	Synonym	
<ul> <li>base</li> <li>wfde</li> </ul>	Search Files		2	Custom Page	
🕨 📄 ibima ᢓ		×		File	
	Application Preferences				
湯	Application Settings			Application Directory	
350		Þ	B	Upload File	
8	Application Path		13	Samples	
0	Schedule/E-Mail	Þ			
12 12	Log and Statistics				
	Impact Analysis	•			

The Create New Application pane opens.

4. Select *Application Mapping to Disk* from the Application Type drop-down menu, as shown in the following image.

Create New A	pplication			
Application Type	Application Mapping to Disk	×		
Application Name	CenturyFiles			
Physical location	C:\ibi\APPSTU~1\srv\wfs			
Map to:	Existing application		v	
Description				
Add directory to	APPPATH			
OK Cancel				

- 5. In the *Application Name* field, type a name for the new application (for example, CenturyFiles).
- 6. Clear the Add directory to APPPATH check box.
- 7. Click OK.

#### **Defining a New Application Directory**

This section describes how to define a new application directory.

#### *Procedure:* How to Define a New Application Directory

To define a new application directory:

- 1. Log on to the WebFOCUS Reporting Server console.
- 2. Click the Applications tab.
- 3. Right-click *Application Directories* in the left pane, select *New*, and then *Application Directory*, as shown in the following image.



Create New Application				
Application Type	New Application under APPROOT			
Application Name	filemonitor			
Recreate application	on if exists			
Description				
📝 Add directory to A	PPPATH			
Position in APPPATH	Last V			
Profile	edasprof v			
OK Cancel				

The Create New Application pane opens, as shown in the following image.

- 4. Select New Application under APPROOT from the Application Type drop-down list.
- 5. In the *Application Name* field, type a name for the new application (for example, *filemonitor*).
- 6. Select the Add directory to APPPATH check box.
- 7. Select Last from the Position in APPPATH drop-down menu.
- 8. Click OK.

#### **Defining a File Monitor Synonym**

This section describes how to define a flat file monitor synonym. An example is included with the Reporting Server install in the folder ibsamp. This can be copied and used as a template to build specific flat file adapter monitors.

#### Procedure: How to Define a File Monitor Synonym

To define a file monitor synonym:

- 1. Copy the *filemntr.acx* file from *ibisamp* to the *filemonitor* application folder and rename this file to *fileindexing.acx*.
- 2. Log on to the WebFOCUS Reporting Server console.

- 3. Click the Applications tab.
- 4. Expand Application Directories in the left pane and then the *ibisamp* folder.

**Note:** You may need to add ibisamp to the APP PATH, if necessary.

5. Right-click *filemntr - Flat File* and select *Open*, as shown in the following image.



6. Click the console icon and select Save As, as shown in the following image.



Note: You may want to backup this file first to ensure the integrity of the template.

The Save As dialog box opens.

7. Use the Save in drop-down menu to navigate to the *filemonitor* Application Directory.

8. Type *fileindexing* in the *File Name* field, as shown in the following image.

Save As			
Save in 🛛	Filemonitor		v
🔲 Filter			
Name		Туре	· · · · · ·
•			•
File Name:	fileindexing		
Extension:	mas		
	OK Cancel		

9. Click OK.

#### Configuring the File Monitor Master File

This section describes how to configure the file monitor Master File.

#### *Procedure:* How to Configure the File Monitor Master File

To configure the file monitor Master File:

- 1. Log on to the WebFOCUS Reporting Server console.
- 2. Click the Applications tab.
- 3. Expand the *filemonitor* application in the left pane.
- 4. Double-click the *fileindexing* Master File.
- 5. Expand the *Variables* folder in the left pane and double-click the *&&FL\_DIRECTORY* variable.

nagement Workspa	ace Access Control Metadata End Current Session
Property View	Text View Access File View List View
Apply	
🖄 General	
1 VARIABLE	&&FL_DIRECTORY
O DEFAULT	foccache
A Miscellane	ous
<b>QUOTED</b>	
FORMAT	
PROMPT	Listening Directory
ACCEPT	OR V
Ø Select Type	Single <b>v</b>
Values	

The Property View tab opens in the right pane, as shown in the following image.

- 6. Type *CenturyFiles* in the DEFAULT field.
- 7. Click *Apply* and then Save, as shown in the following image.

Í	<b>C</b> )	) 🔕 🗖 🗔	×	🔏 🙎	🖄 🖪 🔛
P	1	Applications	Adapter	s Reso	source Management Workspace Access Control Metadata End Current Session
	٤)	New	[	¢[x]	Property View Text View Access File View List View
		Save N		*	Property View Text View Access File View List View
	N	Save As	dexing		Apply
	X	Close			
	1	Switch File			General
	臀		FNAME		VARIABLE &&FL_DIRECTORY
		E FILI			DEFAULT     CenturyFiles
					Miscellaneous

You can now validate the sample data before continuing.

- 8. Click the Applications tab.
- 9. Right-click the *fileindexing* synonym and select Sample Data.

The Sample Data pane opens.

10. Click the Sample Data button.

Sample data is returned for the synonym, as shown in the following image.

Sample Data for FILEMONITOR/FILEMNTR. Limited to 50 rows.

Full name	Size	Modification date	Modification time	Object type	Access mode	Write access	User	Group	Exte
					Access mode		Oser	Group	
C:\ibi\apps\ibimagn\files\Corporate Calendar.ppt	1340416	17/09/2010	21.22.36	FILE		UNKNOWN			ppt
C:\ibi\apps\ibimagn\files\Customer Satisfaction Improvement Plan.ppt	48640	17/09/2010	19.43.10	FILE		UNKNOWN			ppt
C:\ibi\apps\ibimagn\files\Employee shift schedule.xlsx	15968	17/09/2010	21.32.16	FILE		UNKNOWN			xlsx
C:\ibi\apps\ibimagn\files\FOCUS Version 437\centurycustomers.foc	4636672	13/10/2010	20.15.42	FILE		UNKNOWN			foc
C:\ibi\apps\ibimagn\files\FOCUS Version 437\centurycustomers.mas	2352	13/10/2010	20.15.42	FILE		UNKNOWN			mas
C:\ibi\apps\ibimagn\files\FOCUS Version 437\centuryemployees.foc	278528	13/10/2010	20.17.28	FILE		UNKNOWN			foc
C:\ibi\apps\ibimagn\files\FOCUS Version 437\centuryemployees.mas	1246	13/10/2010	20.17.28	FILE		UNKNOWN			mas
C:\ibi\apps\ibimagn\files\FOCUS Version 437\centuryorderdetails.foc	8667136	13/10/2010	20.18.42	FILE		UNKNOWN			foc
C:\ibi\apps\ibimagn\files\FOCUS Version 437\centuryorderdetails.mas	1310	13/10/2010	20.18.42	FILE		UNKNOWN			mas
C:\ibi\apps\ibimagn\files\FOCUS Version 437\centuryorders.foc	1474560	13/10/2010	20.17.32	FILE		UNKNOWN			foc
C:\ibi\apps\ibimagn\files\FOCUS Version 437\centuryorders.mas	759	13/10/2010	20.17.32	FILE		UNKNOWN			mas
C:\ibi\apps\ibimagn\files\FOCUS Version 437\centuryplants.foc	65536	13/10/2010	20.19.16	FILE		UNKNOWN			foc
C:\ibi\apps\ibimagn\files\FOCUS Version 437\centuryplants.mas	1423	13/10/2010	20.19.16	FILE		UNKNOWN			mas

#### **Advanced Configuration**

The following table lists and describes the variables that can be modified for customized requirements.

Variable	Default Value	Description
&&FL_NAME	*	Monitor all files by any name or limit to a specific name or naming convention.
&&FL_EXTENSION	*	Monitor all files by any extension type or limit to a specific extension type.
&&FL_POLLING	120	Frequency time (in seconds) to check for changes. <b>Note:</b> This is the recommended setting for faster turnover.
&&FL_TIMEOUT	30	Timeout (in seconds) to stop checking for changes if none are found. <b>Note:</b> This is the recommended setting for faster turnover.
&&FL_DISCARD	KEEP	Files will remain where originally located.

Variable	Default Value	Description
&&FL_PICKUP	MONITOR	Indicates when changes are noticed in the directory.
&&FL_MAXFILES	blank	A blank value indicates to pick up all files that are found.

**Note:** Modifying these variables is not recommended. They should only be modified for specific cases, unless noted.

#### **Transforming Documents Into Searchable Content**

Using FORMAT MAGNIFY, raw data can be transformed on the server. The output is used to create an XML document that Magnify indexes as searchable content. At a high level, the tasks that are required include extracting, transforming, and feeding content to Magnify. This is very similar to building a WebFOCUS report, where data is modeled, a report is designed, and then a procedure is executed. Every row that is created is then catalogued with Magnify as a search result.

#### **Getting Started**

The following guidelines can assist you when configuring a search:

- Review the data and build context by joining common relationships.
- □ Identify high-level groups and designate searchable data.
- Lenhance and enrich the data with drilldowns and security.
- Aggregate data by merging multiple rows into a single search result.
- □ Configure the feed and index with Magnify.
- □ Schedule feeds for full-search life cycles.

Immediate benefits that result include:

- Discovering information with categorizations.
- □ Searching across tables and rows.
- □ Associating search content with business intelligence reporting.

#### Configuring a FORMAT MAGNIFY Procedure

This section describes how to configure a FORMAT MAGNIFY procedure.

#### Procedure: How to Configure a FORMAT MAGNIFY Procedure

To configure a FORMAT MAGNIFY procedure:

- 1. Open WebFOCUS App Studio.
- 2. Create a new project called *filemonitor*.

You can also navigate to Data Servers, EDASERVE, or Applications, and select *filemonitor*, which was created in *Defining a New Application Directory* on page 118.

- 3. Create a new procedure called *magnify\_file\_indexing* using the Procedure Viewer.
- 4. Add a DEFINE object to the procedure.
- 5. Select the *fileindexing.mas* Master File.
- 6. Add the defined fields for paths, as listed in the following table.

The following table illustrates switching a DOS path for a URL path.

Field	Format	Value
ROOT_DOS_PATH	A15	'C:\ibi\apps\'
ROOT_WEB_PATH	A15	'/approot/'
DOS_PATH_LEN	16	ARGLEN(15, ROOT_DOS_PATH, 'I6')
WEB_PATH_LEN	16	ARGLEN(15, ROOT_WEB_PATH, 'I6')
TEMPWEBPATH	A4000V	STRREP(4000,FILEFNAME,DOS_PATH_LEN, ROOT_DOS_PATH,WEB_PATH_LEN,ROOT_WEB_PATH, 4000,'A4000')
FILEWEBPATHRELATIVE	A4000V	STRREP(4000,TEMPWEBPATH,1,'\',1,'/',4000, 'A4000')
FILEWEBPATHABSOLUTE	A5000V	'http://localhost:8080'    FILEWEBPATHRELATIVE
PARENTFOLDER	A4000V	GETTOK(FILEFNAME,4000,-2,'\',1000,'A1000')

Field	Format	Value
FILENAMEEXT	A4000V	GETTOK(FILEFNAME,4000,-1,'\',1000,'A1000')
FILENAME	A4000V	GETTOK(FILENAMEEXT,4000,1,'.',1000,'A1000')

#### Notes:

- Use the file path to retrieve the HTTP path.
- **□** Retrieve additional information from the file name.
- 7. Add the defined fields to generate file metadata, as listed in the following table:

Field	Format	Value
MAGNIFYACTION	A25	DECODE FILEMONST( 'DELETED' 'delete' 'MODIFIED' 'add' 'ADDED' 'add' 'RENAMED NEW' 'add' 'RENAMED OLD' 'delete' '' 'add' ELSE 'add')
FILESIZERANGE	A50	IF FILESIZE LT 551200 THEN '1. 1 KB - 500 KB' ELSE IF FILESIZE LT 1102400 THEN '2. 501 KB - 1 MB' ELSE IF FILESIZE LT 10485760 THEN '3. 1 MB - 10 MB' ELSE IF FILESIZE LT 104857600 THEN '4. 10 MB - 100 MB' ELSE IF FILESIZE LT 1073741824 THEN '5. 100 MB - 1 GB' ELSE '6. 1 GB or higher'
FILEFORMAT	A56	DECODE FILEEXTN( 'ppt' 'MS PowerPoint 97-2003/2010' 'pptx' 'MS PowerPoint 97-2003/2010' 'xls' 'MS Excel 97-2003/2010' 'doc' 'MS Word 97-2003/2010' 'docx' 'MS Word 97-2003/2010' 'docx' 'MS Word 97-2003/2010' 'docx' 'MS Word 97-2003/2010' 'docx' 'Open Office Document Format' 'odt' 'Open Office Writer' 'mas' 'WebFOCUS Master File' 'sql' 'SQL Queries' 'zip' 'Archive' 'txt' 'Text File' 'jpg' 'Image' ELSE 'Unknown')

8. Add the defined fields to generate search result metadata, as listed in the following table:

Field	Format	Value
SYSSOURCE	A25	'File Repository'
SEARCHTITLE	A2000	' <b>File: '   FILENAME   '('    FILEEXTN    ')</b> DOS Path: '   FILEFNAME
SEARCHTITLETEMP	A2000	'File: '   FILENAME   '('    FILEEXTN    ') DOS Path: '   FILEFNAME
TITLE_URL	A4000	FILEWEBPATHRELATIVE
MAGNIFY_ACTUAL_MAGNIFY_DATE	A25	'datetime'
MAGNIFY_USAGE_MAGNIFY_DATE	A25	'dd/MM/yyyy'
MAGNIFY_ACTION_FILE_BODY	A5000	SYSSOURCE   ' '   FILEFNAME   ' '   FILEEXT   ' '   FILEFORMAT   ' '   SEARCHTITLETEMP
MAGNIFY_ACTION_FILE_PROPERTY_FIEL D	A255V	'Subject,Author,Category,Keywords'
MAGNIFY_ACTION_FILE_PROPERTY_TITLE	A255V	'Subject,Author,Category,Key Terms'
MAGNIFY_ACTION_FILE_PROPERTY_BOD Y	A255V	'Title,Subject,Author,Category,Keywords'

- 9. Save and close the DEFINE object for the procedure.
- 10. Add a REPORT object to the procedure.
- 11. Select the *fileindexing.mas* Master File.
- 12. Add the fields and set the column titles, as listed in the following table:

**Note:** The column titles are case-sensitive.

Field	Column Title		
FILEWEBPATHABSOLUTE	MagnifyBaseURL		
MAGNIFYACTION	MagnifyAction		

Field	Column Title
SEARCHTITLE	SearchTitle
FILEWEBPATHABSOLUTE	MagnifyID
FILEWEBPATHABSOLUTE	WF_INDEX_UNIQUE_KEY
SYSSOURCE	C1_Source_System
PARENTFOLDER	C2_Parent_Directory
FILEFORMAT	C3_File_Format
FILESIZERANGE	C4_File_Size_Ranges
TITLE_URL	
FILEDATE	MAGNIFY_DATE
MAGNIFY_ACTUAL_MAGNIFY_DATE	
MAGNIFY_USAGE_MAGNIFY_DATE	
MAGNIFY_ACTION_FILE_PROPERTY_FIELD	
MAGNIFY_ACTION_FILE_PROPERTY_TITLE	
MAGNIFY_ACTION_FILE_PROPERTY_BODY	
MAGNIFY_ACTION_FILE_BODY	

The following column titles are always required:

- □ MagnifyBaseURL used by Magnify to find the file for indexing
- SearchTitle
- MagnifyID
- ❑ WF\_INDEX\_UNIQUE\_KEY

MagnifyAction, Categories, and Magnify Meta Tags are always recommended.

- 13. Save and close the REPORT object for the procedure.
- 14. Set the Magnify Engine statements. Before the DEFINE object, add the ENGINE objects as listed in the following table:

Connection	SET Parameters
MY_PC 'http://localhost:8080/ ibi_apps/saxfeed'	<b>Note:</b> Sample or default URLs are for informational purposes only and may not resolve correctly, if at all.
– no connection –	BASEURL=http://localhost:8080/ibi_apps/ WFServlet
– no connection –	DATASOURCE=file_index
– no connection –	MIME=application/openurl
– no connection –	BATCHSIZE=10

#### Notes:

- □ Connection Setting, BASEURL, and DATASOURCE are required.
- □ BATCHSIZE is always recommended.
- □ MIME is required for file indexing.
- 15. After the ENGINE objects, add a SET object with Used settings ASNAMES and Current value *MIXED*.
- 16. Save the SET object for the procedure.
- 17. Open the REPORT object and change the format type.
  - a. Click Options.
  - b. Select Output Format.
  - c. Expand Unstyled Formats.
  - d. Select Format Magnify (MAGNIFY).
  - e. Click Apply and then OK.
- 18. Save and close the procedure.
- 19. Copy the files being monitored to the *filemonitor* application folder. Change the application folder mapping to this folder, or issue an APP MAP command to point to this folder in the procedure.

20. Run the procedure and confirm that there are no errors, as shown in the following image.



21. Review the search-based application, as shown in the following image.

Magnify ••• • •	repository	Default Collection
Search		Results1 - 10 of about 20 for repository. Search took 0.187 seconds.
		Tabular view / Sort by query score Sort by date Sort by relevance / facetcounts on
Word Cloud Source System		File: Customer Satisfaction Improvement Plan (ppt) DOS Path: Customapsiblement@lesiCustomer Satisfaction Improvement Plan ppt , such as Internet File Repository
Source System		More Like This date:09/05/2011
		Flis: Edutin Form (klast) DOS Path: Cubitapositivangntilies/Forms/Return Form xlast Quantity (tem Poscription Price Price Flie Repository More Like This date:09/05/2011
	File Repository (100%)	File: Travel advance request (xlsx) DOS Path: CubhapsbibmaonfilesFormsTravel advance request xlsx Repository CubhapsbibmaonfilesFormsTravel advance More Like This date:09/05/2011
Parent Directory		File: Travel Expenses (doc)
Forms (20%)		DOS Path C'UbiapositolimagniliesiFormsTravel Expenses.doc. The form and send to the Accounting Department. File Repository More Like This date:09/05/2011
Records (30%)	files (50%)	File: Illieage log with reimbursement form (xis) DOS Path: C:UbilapositibimagnifilesFormsWileage log with reimbursement form xis \$0.00 0 \$0.00 0 \$0.00 0 \$0.00 Totals 10 \$2.70 File <b>Repository</b> <u>More Like This</u> date:09/05/2011
File Format		File: Sales Proposal (pptx) DOS Path: Ctbhappsbibimagnfiles/Sales Proposal pptx of Revenues 46.0% 50.0% 60.2% File Repository
File Size Ranges	≣ ტ	More Like This date 09/05/2011



### **Auto Complete**

This section describes how to configure Auto Complete for Magnify Search.

#### In this chapter:

- Overview
- Configuring Auto Complete

#### Overview

Most search engines have the capability to present users with completed suggestions in their search field based on the initial letters of a term being specified. The following image shows an example from Google.com where a user is typing "air" into the search field. Several completed suggestions are generated, including "airline tickets", which is a popular search term for many users.



This functionality is also available with Magnify Search and is referred to as *Auto Complete*. When configured, a user can select a suggested term from the Auto Complete drop-down, which guarantees that search results will be found for the selected term. Since Magnify Search has been available long before the implementation of this new facility, users have the ability to enable Auto Complete on existing indices, as well as newly created indices. The implementation of Auto Complete is being handled as a separate Magnify Search index that contains the Auto Complete *suggestions*.

#### **Configuring Auto Complete**

To use Auto Complete with Magnify Search, you must first generate a *suggestion* index for each index you will be searching against. These suggestion indices must be stored in the same location where your standard indices are located and have a suffix of *\_IBI\_SUGGEST\_CONTENT*. In the following example, the *cars* index is located in C:\ibi\WebFOCUS82\magnify \lucene4\_index along with a new corresponding suggestion index called *cars\_IBI\_SUGGEST\_CONTENT*.



Once you create the suggestion index, users can see the suggested terms as they type in the Magnify Search query field, as shown in the following image.

jap	Retail	•	Search	Results Per Page: 10 •
japan japan footwear japan footwear shoes japan footwear shoes baseball japan footwear shoes baseball men's				

Auto Complete will also suggest any URLs or file paths saved in your suggestion index, as shown in the following image.

rl 3	x	Format Assets	~	Search
resumeodt resume:				
resumeodt c:\ibi\apps\magnify_d	lemo	o\files\john		
resume: manning				
resumeodt c:\ibi\apps\magnify_d				
resume: manning john resume: manning john century				
resumeodt c:\ibi\apps\magnify_d			esumeodt	
resume: manning john century e				
resumeodt c:\ibi\apps\magnify_d http://localhost:8080/	lemo	)\files\john osborn re	esumeodt	

#### **Generating Suggestion Indices**

You can generate a suggestion index for Auto Complete in two different ways:

- 1. During the regular feed process.
- 2. Using a batch/script program.

#### Generating a Suggestion Index During the Regular Feed Process

You can generate a suggestion index during your regular feed process by enabling the *Enable* Suggest Index Creation parameter (IBI\_MAGNIFY\_ENABLE\_SUGGEST\_INDEX\_CREATION) in the Magnify settings page of the WebFOCUS Administration Console.

1. Navigate to the WebFOCUS Administration Console, as shown in the following image.



2. From the Configuration tab under Application Settings, click *Magnify*, as shown in the following image.

nfiguration	Magnify	
Reporting Servers	<b>,</b>	
Application Settings	Onfiguration Directory	{IBI_DOCUMENT_ROOT}/config/magnify
) Application Contexts ) Application Directories	Ø Index Directory	{IBI_DOCUMENT_ROOT}/magnify/lucene4_index
<ul> <li>BI Portal</li> <li>Change Management</li> </ul>	eed Cache Directory	{IBI_DOCUMENT_ROOT}/magnify/feedcache
Client Settings	Collections File	collections.xml
Deferred Reporting Encryption	Maximum Number of Search Results.	300
🎉 ESRI	② Enable Suggest Index Creation	
) Filters () Magnify	Enable Feed	8
Multiple Reports	eed minimum file threads	6
) Other	Ø Feed maximum file threads	25
Parameter Prompting Quick Data	eed minimum record threads	6
篇 Repository 篇 Source Code Management	ed maximum record threads	25
Text Generation Server	eed keep alive duration (ms)	500
Validation Custom Settings	Oynamic Partition clean up	
NLS Settings	<ul> <li>Dynamic Partition clean up interval (minutes)</li> </ul>	15
Redirection Settings	<ul> <li>Ø Default partition size (GB)</li> </ul>	10

3. Click the check box that corresponds to the Enable Suggest Index Creation parameter.

By default, this parameter is not enabled.

4. Click Save.

#### Generating a Suggestion Index Using a Batch/Script Program

If you have already created regular indices (for example, in a prior release), then you can use the batch file (*generateAutocomplete.bat*) for Windows platforms or script file (*generateAutocomplete.sh*) for Unix/Linux platforms to generate suggestion indices on existing indices.

These batch/script programs are located in the *drive:\ibi\WebFOCUSxx\utilities\magnify* folder of your WebFOCUS installation, as shown in the following image.

C:\ibi\WebFOCUS82\utilities\magnify			
Name ^	Date modified	Туре	Size
crawler	8/22/2017 4:58 PM	File folder	
igenerateAutocomplete.bat	8/21/2017 8:47 PM	Windows Batch File	6 KB
generateAutocomplete.sh	8/21/2017 8:47 PM	SH File	6 KB
▲ lucene_2_to_lucene_4_9_upgrade_categories.jar	8/21/2017 8:46 PM	Executable Jar File	4,367 KB
🕌 lucene-core-3.6.1.jar	12/2/2015 2:53 PM	Executable Jar File	1,502 KB
🕌 lucene-core-4.9.0.jar	12/2/2015 2:53 PM	Executable Jar File	2,447 KB
💿 upgrade.bat	8/21/2017 8:47 PM	Windows Batch File	11 KB
upgrade.sh	8/21/2017 8:47 PM	SH File	11 KB

**Note:** Any existing index must be upgraded to the Lucene 4.9 level before running the batch/ script program to generate the suggestion index for Auto Complete.

This batch/script program reads the available indices in the Magnify Search index folder and generates suggestion indices for each index. It generates a log file in the regular *drive:\ibi* \*WebFOCUSxx\logs* folder, named *Generate\_AutoComplete\_Index.log*, which can be used to review what was done and to see any errors that may have occurred. The batch/script program defaults to the *drive:\ibi\WebFOCUSxx\magnify\lucene4\_index* folder to locate indices, but does allow you to override this default path when run interactively.

If you are using the batch/script program and the index location specified does not have any indices, then the following message is displayed:

```
*** No Lucene Indices to generate autocomplete indices for in path %indexloc \ !!!
```

#### **Usage Considerations**

This section describes several usage considerations for Auto Complete with Magnify Search.

#### **Disabling Auto Complete**

At this time, Magnify Search does not provide an individualized search experience, so either all users of Magnify Search use the Auto Complete feature or they do not use it. However, a WebFOCUS administrator can disable the Auto Complete feature by:

 Disabling the Enable Suggest Index Creation parameter (IBI\_MAGNIFY\_ENABLE\_SUGGEST\_INDEX\_CREATION) in the Magnify settings page of the WebFOCUS Administration Console. 2. Deleting all suggestion indices or moving them to another location (outside the Magnify Search index path).

If the WebFOCUS administrator decides to enable Auto Complete at some point, they can regenerate the suggestion indices or move the suggestion indices back to the Magnify Search index path.

#### **Suggestion Limits**

The Auto Complete drop-down list of suggestions (terms) is limited to a maximum of 10 entries, provided there are at least 10 entries to display. If the search term you begin to type displays less than 10 entries, then the drop-down list will only show that number of entries.



## **Magnify Search Crawler**

This section describes how to deploy and configure the Magnify Search Crawler.

#### In this chapter:

- Overview
- Deploying Magnify Search Crawler
- Configuring Magnify Search Crawler

#### Overview

Magnify Search Crawler (referred to as the Crawler in this document) is a useful addition to Magnify Search. This feature enables you to gather content from internal or external websites that you identify and allow this content to be searchable through Magnify. The Crawler is:

- □ A lightweight, standalone Java program that can be deployed on any platform and can be included in batch scripts for automation or be run as a service in the background.
- □ Highly efficient with options for running multiple threads in parallel.
- □ Highly flexible with configuration options in the following areas:
  - Logging levels.
  - URL filtering.
  - Meta tag injection.
  - □ Index name customization based on URL patterns.
  - □ Category injection based on URL patterns.

#### Prerequisites

Before continuing, confirm the following prerequisites in your environment:

- Java Development Kit (JDK) Version 1.6 and higher.
- □ A running instance of Magnify Search on a local or remote server.

❑ An internal or external website to be crawled for content, which does not block access to crawler types of applications.

#### **Deploying Magnify Search Crawler**

Magnify Search Crawler is packaged in the following directory of your WebFOCUS installation:

```
drive:\ibi\WebFOCUS82\utilities\magnify\crawler
```

The *crawler* folder contains all of the source code and dependent third-party code in the form of various .jar files. This folder also contains the following group of configuration files:

- □ index-name-mapping.txt
- Iog4j.properties
- meta-tag-mapping.txt
- regex-urlfilter.txt
- **regex-url-to-category-mapping.txt**

A batch file named *sample\_run.bat* is provided, which is a batch script to invoke the Crawler program.

🛃 📜 =		Application Tools	crawler			- □ >
File Home Sh	nare View	Manage				$\sim$
÷ → • ↑ 📕 3	> This PC >	OS (C:) > ibi > We	bFOCUS82 > uti	ilities > magnify > crawle	r v Ö	Search cra 🖇
📌 Quick access	^ Nam	ne		Date modified	Туре	Size
🔚 Desktop	*	magnify_crawler.jar		11/15/2017 10:34	Executable Jar File	10,328 KB
🔈 Downloads	* 🤍	log4j.properties		11/15/2017 10:36	PROPERTIES File	1 KB
Documents	* 🗎 i	index-name-mappin	g.txt	11/15/2017 10:36	Text Document	2 KB
Pictures	,	meta-tag-mapping.t	xt	11/15/2017 10:36	Text Document	2 KB
-		regex-urlfilter.txt		11/15/2017 10:36	Text Document	1 KB
apps		regex-url-to-categor	y-mapping.txt	11/15/2017 10:36	Text Document	2 KB
chapter 05		sample_run.bat		11/15/2017 10:36	Windows Batch Fil	e 2 KB
ibi	v ted 1.55 KB					

Edit the *sample\_run.bat* file to match your deployment environment and preferences. For example:

ample_runbat - Notepad	-		$\times$
Elle Edit Format View Help			
rem			
rem Copyright 1996-2017 Information Builders, Inc. All rights reserved.			
rem			
rem This script is used to run Magnify Crawler			
rem rem IMPORTANT!!:: Please make sure you have a WebFOCUS client running with Magnify Search license.			
rem IMPORTANT!!:: Please make sure you have a WebFOCUS client running with Magnify Search license. rem			
rem The documentation below is from the Magnify Crawler User Guide.			
rem			
rem The following sample assumes that			
rem 1. There is a WebFOCUS client running at URL: http://localhost:8080/ibi_apps/			
rem 2. The entry point to the web you want to crawl is: http://www.informationbuilders.com/			
rem 3. The crawler will crawl in parallel with 10 threads			
rem			
rem The following configuration files are used in conjunction with the crawler rem 1. log4i.properties (required) - used for logging.			
rem 2. reget.urlfilter.txt (required) - used for Ingging			
a. regex-url-to-category-mapping.txt (optional) - for creating the search categories after the indexes are created			
rem 4. index-name-mapping.txt (optional) - for creating customized index folder names based on URL patterns			
rem 5. meta-tag-mapping.txt (optional) - for injecting meta names from the crawled pages to the search category tree			
echo WELCOME TO MAGNIFY CRAWLER			
echo Please make sure you have a machine with Magnify Search up running and it is accessible via HTTP on your network.			
set CLASSPATH=.;.\magnify crawler.jar			
java com.ibi.applications.search.magnify.crawler.MagnifyCrawler http://www.informationbuilders.com/ http://localhost:8080/ib	i apps/sax	feed	0
			7
echo CRAWLER FINISHED!	-		
pause Starting URL Running Magnify feed URL Threa	d pool s	size	
Starting OKL Kunning Maginiy food OKL Finite			

The main Crawler program is contained within magnify\_crawler.jar

(com.ibi.applications.search.magnify.crawler.MagnifyCrawler), which takes two required arguments and one optional argument:

- □ The first argument (required) is the *Starting URL*, which is the entry point to the website to be crawled.
- □ The second argument (required) is the *Magnify server URL*, which can be either local or remote.
- □ The third argument (optional) represents the crawler *Thread pool size*. If this argument is missing, then a default value of 1 is applied, which indicates that the Crawler will process web pages in a linear process (one at a time). In most cases, you would want to specify a value that allows the Crawler to run more efficiently using multiple threads. Keep in mind that available system memory and CPU speed impacts the performance as well.

#### **Configuring Magnify Search Crawler**

The Crawler allows you to customize various aspects of the crawling behavior, such as:

- Specifying the depth (in levels) to avoid recursive hyper links on web pages.
- Limiting the Crawler to a specific website to avoid crawling the entire Internet, which will never stop.

Assigning a web page or PDF document to a specific category in the Magnify Search result.

This section describes the various configuration options that are available so that the Crawler meets your requirements.

1. Configure logging configuration by editing the log4j.properties file, which is required.

The Crawler uses the Apache log4j logging framework for logging purpose. For more information, see *https://logging.apache.org/log4j/1.2/manual.html*.

2. Configure URL filtering by editing the *regex-urlfilter.txt* file, which is **required**.

The Crawler allows the user to restrict what pages or documents to crawl by URL pattern matching using Java Regular Expressions. For more information on the syntax used for Java Regular Expressions, see <a href="http://docs.oracle.com/javase/tutorial/essential/regex/">http://docs.oracle.com/javase/tutorial/essential/regex/</a>.

All comment lines begin with a pound sign (#) character. Each non-comment, non-blank line contains a regular expression prefixed by a plus sign (+) or minus sign (-) character, where '+' indicates to include and '-' indicates to exclude. For a website to be crawled, its URL must match all of the regular expressions that are included. However, it will be ignored as long as its URL matches any one of the excluded regular expressions. For example, the configuration shown in the following image will crawl anything within the Information Builders Technical Support Center website.

```
Image: Transformat Yew Belo
The East Format Yew Belo
The Accept anything inside IBI tech support
+Ahttps://techsupport.informationbuilders.com
+Ahttp://techsupport.informationbuilders.com
# skip URLs with slash-delimited segment that repeats 10+ times, to break loops
-.*(/.+?)/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1/.*?\1
```

3. Configure meta tag injection by editing the meta-tag-mapping.txt file, which is optional.

This configuration file is used to inject META names from the crawled pages to the Magnify Search category tree. Most of the documents (HTML, PDF, Word, Excel, and so on.) would contain META information. The Crawler extracts that information and saves it to the index files so that the document can be displayed under a designated category tree during search. All comment lines begin with a pound sign (#) character.

Syntax:

```
Meta tag name->Category tree display name
```

Consider a scenario where a web page that was crawled contained the following META tags:

```
<meta name="description" content="Free Web tutorials">
<meta name="keywords" content="HTML,CSS,XML,JavaScript">
<meta name="author" content="Hege Refsnes">
<meta charset="UTF-8">
```

For example, you only want to include the "author" information in the category tree when the search result is displayed. In addition, you want it be displayed as "Author" with the first letter in uppercase. In this case, you would need to add the following entry into the *meta-tag-mapping.txt* file:

author->Author

The following is an example of a configured *meta-tag-mapping.txt* file for the Information Builders Technical Support Center website.

```
📗 meta-tag-mapping.txt - Notepad
                                                                           Ele Edit Format View Help
# meta tag mapping for techsupport.informationbuilders.com site
                                                                             *
DOCTYPE->Document Type
SYMPTOM->Symptom
AREA->Area
PRODUCT->Product
OPSYS->Operating System
ACCESS->Access
MODIFYDATE->Modify Date
REVIEWDATE->Review Date
EXPIREDATE->Expire Date
KEYWORD->Keyword
DBSOURCE->DB Source
RELEASE->Release
PLATFORM->Platform
PalmComputingPlatform->Palm Computing Platform
REVIEWDATE->Review Date
REVIEWER->Reviewer
OWNER->Owner
```

4. Configure index name customization by editing the *index-name-mapping.txt* file, which is **optional**.

This configuration file is used to map web documents to a predefined index name based on its URL pattern. All comment lines begin with a pound sign (#) character.

Syntax:

regex pattern->index name

For example, if you want to save all web pages that begin with <a href="http://www.abc.com/news/">http://www.abc.com/</a> news/ to an index folder named <a href="http://www.abc.com/">abc\_news</a>, then you can add the following entry in this file:

#### ^http://www.abc.com/news/->abc\_news

If no matches are found, then the default index name is the domain name, replacing the dot (.) character with the underscore (\_). For more information on the syntax used for Java Regular Expressions, see <a href="http://docs.oracle.com/javase/tutorial/essential/regex/">http://docs.oracle.com/javase/tutorial/essential/regex/</a>.

**Warning:** If there are any duplicates or overlaps in the URL pattern, then the first matched rule is used. Therefore, the order of the entries in this configuration file is important.

For example:

```
^http://www.abc.com/news/->abc_news
^http://www.abc.com/news/worldnews/->abc_worldnews
```

The page with the URL http://www.abc.com/news/worldnews/wnl.html will be indexed to an index folder named abc\_news. If you want this page to go to an index folder named abc\_worldnews, then you must reverse the order of the above two entries.

The following is an example of a configured *index-name-mapping.txt* file for the Information Builders Technical Support Center website.

🗑 index-name-mapping.txt - Notepad	LOX
Ele Edt Format View Help	
<pre># meta tag mapping for techsupport.informationbuilders.com/sps site Ahttps://techsupport.informationbuilders.com/sps/-&gt;techsupport_sps Ahttps://techsupport.informationbuilders.com/known_problems/-&gt;techsupport_kb Ahttp://techsupport.informationbuilders.com/known_problems/-&gt;techsupport_kb Ahttps://techsupport.informationbuilders.com/tech/-&gt;techsupport_kb Ahttps://techsupport.informationbuilders.com/tech/-&gt;techsupport_tech Ahttps://techsupport.informationbuilders.com/tech/-&gt;techsupport_tech Ahttps://techsupport.informationbuilders.com/tech/-&gt;techsupport_tech Ahttps://techsupport.informationbuilders.com/tech/sys/-&gt;techsupport_ts Ahttps://techsupport.informationbuilders.com/tech/sys/-&gt;techsupport_ts Ahttps://techsupport.informationbuilders.com/tech/sys/-&gt;techsupport_ts</pre>	

5. Configure category injection by editing the *regex-url-to-category-mapping.txt* file, which is **optional**.

This configuration file is used to inject category names to a specified web document that has been crawled.

Syntax:

regex pattern->category name->category value

For example, a web page URL contains .\*/f/23445/ as a pattern. You want this page to be displayed under a category called *Forum* with the value *WebFOCUS/FOCUS Forum on Focal Point*. To accomplish this, you must add the following entry in the configuration file:

.\*/f/23445->Forum->WebFOCUS/FOCUS Forum on Focal Point

For more information on the syntax used for Java Regular Expressions, see *http://docs.oracle.com/javase/tutorial/essential/regex/*.

The following is an example of a configured *regex-url-to-category-mapping.txt* file for the Information Builders Focal Point User Forum website.

🔤 regex-url-to-category-mapping.txt - Notepad	
Ele Edit Format View Help	and the second
.*/f/7971057331/->Forum->WebFOCUS/FOCUS	<u> </u>
*/f/1381057331/->Forum->iWay Software Product	
.*/f/1461084022/->Forum->Performance Management Framework	
.*/f/3437070726/->Forum->InfoAssist	
.*/f/1281057331/->Forum->Events, Job Postings, Miscellaneous And	nouncements
.*/f/7081057331/->Forum->Rules, Regulations, and FAQs	
.*/f/999108115/->Forum->ERSI Forum	
.*/f/514105364/->Forum->General Higher Education Technical	
.*/f/602100472/->Forum->Banner Technical	-1
1	


# Supporting Information for iWay

This appendix provides supporting information on iWay.

#### In this appendix:

- Overview
- About the Magnify Feed Process
- Magnify Search Feed Example

#### Overview

At a high-level, iWay Service Manager (iSM) monitors your data source and feeds the information that you have designated for searching to a search engine, which indexes that information. When a search request is made, the search engine returns relevant information from the indexed content to Magnify.

The listener, contained in an iWay channel, is designed in iWay Integration Tools (iIT) to monitor the data source that holds the information you want made available to search. The listener detects changes to the data source and sends a record of this information in an XML document through the channel to an iWay process flow.

You will design the process flow using iIT Designer to process and enhance the information with metadata that Magnify can use in retrieving and presenting search results. This metadata includes the data source fields that hold relevant data, titles for the search result links, images to appear with a link, and the WebFOCUS reports you want run from a link. A transformation is designed (using the iIT Transformer) to convert the incoming XML document to an HTML document required by the search engine. The process flow then feeds the HTML document to the search engine, which indexes the information for searching. The process flow includes search engine configuration parameters to direct the indexing process.

## About the Magnify Feed Process

To configure Magnify, you will be using a combination of the WebFOCUS Administration Console, iWay Service Manager (iSM), iWay Integration Tools (iIT). Within iIT, you will be using iIT Designer to build a process flow and the iIT Transformer to convert the XML documents coming into the process flow to HTML documents for the search engine. This guide provides detailed instructions on using these tools to accomplish the task of configuring Magnify. For additional information on these tools, see the following documentation:

□ iWay Service Manager User's Guide Version 7.0.x

□ iWay Integration Tools Designer User's Guide Version 7.0.x

□ iWay Integration Tools Transformer User's Guide Version 7.0.x

**Note:** Magnify requires iWay Service Manager (iSM) Version 7.0 or higher with the latest cumulative patch.

iSM uses the concept of a channel to contain iWay components, which you assemble to perform a task. A channel must always contain three subcontainers referred to as an inlet, a route, and an outlet through which a document flows. In this application, the term document can mean a database record, a flat file, a message such as an MQ message, and so on. Each subcontainer of the channel is designed to hold a specific iWay component. An inlet can only contain a listener, a decryptor, or a preparser. A route can only contain a transform or a process flow. And an outlet can only contain an encryptor, a preemitter, or an emitter.

To start, you will need to configure the search engine and create an iWay channel that contains a listener to extract sample XML documents from the data source. The data source structure is revealed in these documents and used later when creating the indexing process flow. These tasks are performed using the WebFOCUS Administration Console and iIT.

You will need to then configure an indexing process flow using iIT Designer, where you select the business content within the data source that you want accessible to a search and package it in a way that the search engine can use to return the appropriate search results. This configuration process is also called transaction indexing.

Once the process flow is tested and published, you can reconfigure the channel set up to extract the document structure to use a new route that contains the indexing process flow, and deploy the channel to start the listening and indexing process.

**Note:** iSM provides a design-time repository called the Registry, where you assemble and manage iWay resources, such as listeners, process flows, transforms, channels, and so on. This allows you to configure design-time components without referencing a specific run-time server. Once you define and assemble the components you need, they can be deployed to one or more run-time instances of iSM.



The following diagram illustrates the major configuration elements and the tasks in the transaction indexing process.

The following is a summary of the Magnify configuration process:

- □ Configure the search engine.
- ❑ Configure an iWay channel with a listener to monitor your data source and retrieve sample data (in an XML document) that is representative of the information you want to index in the search engine. This channel will route the XML document to an emitter (contained in the channel outlet), and deposit it into a designated directory. You will refer to the information in this document when you set up the iWay indexing process flow.
- Create an indexing process flow that:
  - □ Identifies items in the data file (an XML document sent to the flow by the listener) that you want accessible to a search.
  - Optionally, merges data from another data source with the data in the loaded document.
  - □ Converts the XML document to an HTML document (required by the search engine) using iIT Transformer.
  - Defines the search result link titles and graphic search aids, such as icons and images.
  - Identifies the WebFOCUS reports that will be called when selecting specific search result links.
  - Optionally defines security parameters that determine who has access to specific search results.
  - Sends this search configuration information to the search engine for indexing using the iWay Enterprise Index feeder (iEI).
- □ Test and publish the indexing process flow.
- Add a route to your channel in iIT that contains the indexing process flow.
- Reconfigure the channel created earlier to replace the route with the indexing process flow route, and replace the outlet.
- Build and deploy the channel to start the listening process.

#### Magnify Search Feed Example

To help explain the configuration process, we will use an example of a sporting goods business that wants to make its merchandise searchable using Magnify. In this section, we take a high-level look at configuring Magnify by introducing the main configuration elements that can be applied to any configuration. **Note:** You can obtain the sample reports and Lucene index using the following Information Builders Technical Support website:

#### http://techsupport.informationbuilders.com/tech/wbf/wbf\_tmo\_magnify\_sampapp.html

In advance of the configuration, we gather the following:

- □ An example of the XML file generated by the listener on the database.
- □ The name of the database, retaildb.
- □ The WebFOCUS report to call from the search result link. We want to call the prddet.fex FOCEXEC, which resides in the retail application using the retaildb database.

In addition, we will include two links that will appear below the main results link and have them call WebFOCUS reports when clicked. These links and reports are:

Product Sheet, which displays a PDF version of the report.

For this, we will use the prddet2.fex FOCEXEC, which resides in the retail application using the retaildb database.

Summary Report, which displays a parameterized report.

For this, we will use the prdsum.fex FOCEXEC, which resides in the retail application using the retaildb database.

The following image shows how the search results page looks when you perform a search for *camera*. The elements we will be configuring are:

- Let the items in the Dynamic Categorization Tree (appearing on the left side of the page),
- the search results links with an image of the related camera (appearing on the right side of the page),
- and two additional links for each search result (appearing under the main result link) that will trigger a WebFOCUS report.

The following image shows how the search results page looks when you perform a search for *camera*.



The elements that you will configure include:

- Items in the Dynamic Categorization Tree (appearing on the left side of the page).
- Search results links with an image of the related camera (appearing on the right side of the page).
- Two additional links for each search result (appearing under the main result link) that will trigger a WebFOCUS report.

#### XML File From the Listener

The following is an XML file that has been captured by the listener. This file contains a single record about a sports shoe and is representative of the XML format the listener will create from our database structure.

The data includes information about the shoe, such as the brand, the style, the department it is associated with, the price range it falls into, the actual price of the shoe, and a reference to an image of the shoe.

```
<?xml version="1.0" encoding="ISO-8859-1" ?>
<RetailDB table="retaildb">
  <row>
     <retaildb.ImgURL
        type="12">http://vlamdemo.ibi.com:8080/ibi_apps/retail/101.gif
</retaildb.ImgURL>
     <retaildb.Department type="12">Footwear</retaildb.Department>
     <retaildb.Category type="12">Shoes</retaildb.Category>
     <retaildb.Sports type="12">Baseball</retaildb.Sports>
     <retaildb.Gender type="12">Men's</retaildb.Gender>
     <retaildb.Brand type="12">Acme</retaildb.Brand>
     <retaildb.Style type="12">Mid-cut</retaildb.Style>
     <retaildb.Color type="12">Red</retaildb.Color>
     <retaildb.Name type="12">Acme Delux Classic
                            </retaildb.Name>
Baseball Spike Mens
     <retaildb.Description type="-1">This men&apos;s
                  Classic baseball cleat showcases which disperses
Acme Delux
                         providing exceptional cushioning. Delux
impact forces,
promotes a controlled flex for
                                         all three primary baseball
movements: running, batting, and
                                           throwing, while the Spike
technology enhances lateral stability and
                                                    traction.
      </retaildb.Description>
      <retaildb.Price type="2">94.99</retaildb.Price>
      <retaildb.PriceRange type="12">$75.00 - $99.99<retaildb.PriceRange>
      <retaildb.Promotion type="12">Regular Price</retaildb.Promotion>
      <retaildb.updated null="y" type="-6"/>
      <retaildb.productid type="4">1</retaildb.productid>
      <retaildb.ImgHTML type="12"><img src=
         "http://vlamdemo.ibi.com:8080/ibi apps/retail/101.gif">
      </retaildb.ImgHTML>
    </row>
</RetailDB>
```

#### **Store Values**

Using the XML document captured by the listener, we need to identify the fields we want to appear in the Dynamic Categorization Tree on the search results page and store them using metadata parameters. We decided on the following fields for the Dynamic Categorization Tree:

- Brand
- Category
- Color
- Department
- Gender
- Price Range
- Price

Promotion

Sports

Style

You can define these items, which are database field values, using the metadata parameter FXV n, where n is the sequential number we assign for the field value being identified. We will assign the parameters, as follows:

FXV1 = Brand
FXV2 = Category
FXV3 = Color
and so on, through FXV10 = Style
We also need to determine which field or fields to use as the unique identifier (key) of this record. We assign the identifier metadata parameter, as follows:

FXK = productid

#### Create HTML

Transform the XML document into an HTML document, which the search engine requires for indexing. In the HTML document we will also include the parameters for the two additional results links, Product Sheet and Summary Report.

Note: The HTML documents must be XHTML 1.0 compliant.

The following is the transformed HTML document. It follows a specific structure required by the search engine, which includes HTML, HEAD, TITLE, META tags, and BODY tag.

```
<?xml version="1.0" encoding="UTF-8" ?>
<HTML>
  <HEAD>
    <TITLE>Acme Delux Classic Baseball Spike Mens
    </TTTLE>
      <META name="Department" content="Footwear" />
      <META name="Category" content="Shoes" />
      <META name="Sports" content="Baseball" />
      <META name="Gender" content="Men's" />
      <META name="Brand" content="Acme" />
      <META name="FOCEXEC_FOR_TITLE" content="prddet" />
      <META name="FOCSOURCEDATABASE_FOR_TITLE" content="RetailDB" />
      <META name="FOCEXECAPPNAME_FOR_TITLE" content="retail" />
      <META name="LINK_DISPLAY_NAME2" content="Summary Report" />
      <META name="FOCEXEC2" content="prdsum" />
      <META name="FOCSOURCEDATABASE2" content="RetailDB" />
      <META name="FOCEXECAPPNAME2" content="retail" />
      <META name="Style" content="Classic" />
      <META name="Color" content="Red" />
      <META name="PriceRange" content="$75.00 - $99.99" />
      <META name="Promotion" content="Regular Price" />
      <META name="LINK_DISPLAY_NAME1" content="Product Sheet &lt;img</pre>
          src=" http://vlamdemo.ibi.com:8080/ibi_html/javaassist
          images/mr/mr_ex_pdf.gif";border="0">" />
      <META name="FOCEXEC1" content="prddet2" />
      <META name="FOCSOURCEDATABASE1" content="RetailDB" />
      <META name="FOCEXECAPPNAME1" content="retail" />
      <META name="HTML_LEFT_OF_SNIPPET" content="&lt;img att=&quot;</pre>
          src="http://vlamdemo.ibi.com:8080/ibi_apps/retail
          101.gif">" />
      <META name="Price" content="94.99" />
  </HEAD>
  <BODY>Footwear Shoes Baseball Men's Acme Delux Classic Baseball
      Spike Mens This men's Delux Classic baseball cleat showcases
      which disperses impact forces, providing exceptional cushioning.
     Delux promotes a controlled flex for all three primary baseball
     movements: running, batting, and throwing, while the Spike
      technology enhances lateral stability and traction. 94.99
      $75.00 -$99.99 Regular Price 1 Sporting
  </BODY>
</HTMI_>
```

While creating the HTML structure in the transform:

- Add a title for the search results link in the title element (<TITLE> </TITLE>).
- Add a META element for each Dynamic Categorization field value we previously stored, using the following format:

```
<META name = "Brand" content = "Acme" />
<META name = "Category" content = "Shoes" />
<META name = "Color" content = "Red" />
```

```
<META name = "Department" content = "Footwear" />
<META name = "Gender" content = "Men's" />
<META name = "Price Range" content = "$75.00 - $99.99" />
<META name = "Price" content = "94.99" />
<META name = "Promotion" content = "Regular Price" />
<META name = "Sports" content = "Baseball" />
<META name = "Style" content = "Classic" />
```

Add META elements to define the WebFOCUS report to be called when the search results link is clicked. The following is the format for these required META elements:

```
<META name = "FOCEXEC_FOR_TITLE" content = "prddet" />
<META name = "FOCSOURCEDATABASE_FOR_TITLE" content = "RetailDB" />
<META name = "FOCEXECAPPNAME_FOR_TITLE" content = "retail" />
```

Add META elements for the additional links, Product Sheet and Summary Report, using the following format. Note the path to the image of the PDF icon appears in the Product Sheet META element.

```
<META name = "LINK_DISPLAY_NAME1" content = "Product Sheet" &lt;img
att=" src=" http://vlamdemo.ibi.com:8080/ibi_html/
javaassist images/mr/mr_ex_pdf.gif";border="0">" />
<META name="FOCEXEC1" content="prddet2" />
<META name="FOCESOURCEDATABASE1" content="RetailDB" />
<META name="FOCEXECAPPNAME1" content="retail" />
<META name = "LINK_DISPLAY_NAME2" content = "Summary Report" />
<META name="FOCEXEC2" content="prdsum" />
<META name="FOCEXEC2" content="RetailDB" />
<META name="FOCESOURCEDATABASE2" content="RetailDB" />
<META name="FOCESOURCEDATABASE2" content="RetailDB" />
<META name="FOCESOURCEDATABASE2" content="RetailDB" />
```

Add a META element to include the image of the shoe next to the main results link, using the following format:

```
<META name="HTML_LEFT_OF_SNIPPET" content="&lt;img att=&quot;
src=" http://vlamdemo.ibi.com:8080/ibi_apps/retail
101.gif">" />
```

❑ Add a BODY element that contains the phrase or words a user might enter to retrieve this information. For instance, the only way a user search for *baseball shoe* will return this record is if we include the words *baseball* and *shoe* in this BODY element.

#### Feed to Search Engine

This section details the creation of the URL that will retrieve a search result. The information needed to create the URL includes the category fields we chose from the record for the Dynamic Categorization Tree. Parameters we will add in the Feed to Search Engine object represent these category fields. The following uses the Brand and Category fields to show these parameters:

```
FXF1 = Brand
FXT1 = Brand
FXV1 = SREG(FXV1)
FXF2 = Category
FXT2 = Category
FXV2 = SREG(FXV2)
```

The FXF n parameter is the record field, and FXT n parameter is the field title (name) you want to appear to represent that field, where n is the sequential number (1, 2, 3, and so on) of the field you are defining.

The SREG(FXV1) is a value in a special register you defined in the Store Values object as FXV*n*. Be sure the values here match those that were created in the Store Values object.

If needed, you can change the name that appears in the Dynamic Categorization Tree by typing another value in the FXTn parameter. For instance, you could change our example FXT1 = Brand to FXT1 = Brand Name.

At this point, the HTML document contains all the parameters necessary to meet the search requirements of the company. The process flow then sends this document on to the search engine.

**Note:** The FX meta tags must be sequential in order. If a set of FX meta tags is removed, the remaining meta tags must be renumbered. Otherwise, the links on the Dynamic Categorization Tree will produce an error.

You can also specify multiple values for a field by using the FXM*n* parameter. FXM*n* is used in place of FXV*n* when using multiple values and contains a unique delimiter that is used to assign each value its own category in the Dynamic CategorizationTree. The delimiter can be any value, but it should be unique and not used in the field value. You must use delimiter as the metadata parameter name to define the delimiter value.

Note: The FXMn metadata parameter is not available in the Magnify Prototype Wizard.

#### **Configuration Worksheets**

It is helpful to gather information before you start configuring the transaction indexing process flow.

Use the following worksheet to record information needed to create the URL.

List of names you want to appear in the Dynamic Categorization Tree.	n/a	Brand, Department, Price, and so on.
Database field value in the XML document that you want to appear in Dynamic Categorization Tree.	FXV <i>n</i> where <i>n</i> = 1, 2, 3, and so on.	FXV1 = Acme FXV2 = Footwear
One or more fields in the XML file that uniquely identify the record.	FXK FXK <i>n</i> where <i>n</i> = 2, 3, and so on.	FXK = productid

#### Information to Create URL

Title associated with the database field. This will be the name that appears in the Dynamic Categorization Tree.	FXT <i>n</i> where $n = 1, 2, 3,$ and so on.	FXT1 = Brand FXT2 = Department
<b>Note:</b> The default for the Category Tree sort order is alphabetically based on the values assigned to FXT <i>n</i> . HTML span tags, which are not presented in the user interface, can be used to customize the sort order. For example, in the following syntax, the id attribute is used to sort <i>Category</i> before <i>Brand</i> on the Dynamic Categorization Tree: <span id="11">Brand</span> <span id="10">Category</span>		
Associated database field name.	FXFn	FXF1 = Brand
	where $n = 1, 2, 3,$ and so on.	FXF2 = Department

Use the following worksheet to record information needed to create the HTML document to be indexed.

#### Information to Create HTML Document to be Indexed

Information to Create URL

Title for the search result link.	n/a	Acme Delux Classic Baseball Spike Mens
Name of the data source.	FOCSOURCEDATABASE_FOR_TITLE	retaildb

Information to Create HTML Document to be Indexed		
Name of the WebFOCUS report you want to run from the search result link.	FOCEXEC_FOR_TITLE	prddet.fex
Name of the application where the FOCEXEC resides.	FOCEXECAPPNAME_FOR_TITLE	retail

#### **Additional Links**

	-	
Name of the first link.	LINK_DISPLAY_NAME1	Product Sheet
Name of the image to accompany the link title.	Add the path to the image in the LINK_DISPLAY_NAME1 value.	"Product Sheet <img src="http://machine. ibi.com:8080/ibi_html/ javaassist/images/ mr_ex_pdf.gif" border="0"&gt;"</img 
Name of the WebFOCUS report you want to run from this link.	FOCEXEC1	prddet2.fex
Name of the application where the FOCEXEC resides.	FOCEXECAPPNAME1	retail
Name of the data source.	FOCSOURCEDATABASE1	retaildb
Name of the second link.	LINK_DISPLAY_NAME2	Summary Report

information to Create A field Document to be indexed		
Name of the WebFOCUS report you want to run from this link.	FOCEXEC2	prdsum.fex
Name of the application where the FOCEXEC resides.	FOCEXECAPPNAME2	retail
Name of the data source.	FOCSOURCEDATABASE2	retaildb
Name of the image to accompany the link title.	Add the path to the image in the LINK_DISPLAY_NAME2 value.	see example for LINK_DISPLAY_NAME1

#### Information to Create HTML Document to be Indexed

For more information on feeding data to Magnify, see *Magnify Search Protocols* on page 105.



# **Magnify Search Error Handling**

This appendix presents error handling information for Magnify Search.

#### In this appendix:

- Magnify Error Handling
- License for Indexing
- Resolving OutOfMemoryError Exceptions

## **Magnify Error Handling**

The following table summarizes the various code texts and descriptions that may display.

Code Number	Code Text	Description
1	HTRC_PROTOCOL_ERR	There was an error in formatting the document feed. Check the WebFOCUS procedure syntax.
2	HTRC_TIMEOUT_ERR	There was a timeout trying to connect to the application server. Check connection strings, application server logs, and network resources.
3	HTRC_COMM_ERR	There was a communication error between WebFOCUS and the application server. Check connection strings and application server logs.
4	HTRC_INTERNAL_ERR	There was an internal WebFOCUS error. Check Reporting Server and WebFOCUS Client logs.
5	HTRC_CERTIFICATE_ERR	Issues were found with configured certificates. Check application server logs.

#### License for Indexing

When running a report object in App Studio, you may encounter an error message indicating that your Magnify server is not licensed for indexing, as shown in the following image.

Your request did not return any output to display.

**Possible causes:** 

- No data rows matched the specified selection criteria.
- Output was directed to a destination such as a file or printer.
- An error occurred during the parsing or running of the request.

(FOC44976) MAGNIFY server is not licensed for indexing 1 0 NUMBER OF RECORDS IN TABLE= 29 LINES= 29 0

If you encounter this error message, contact your WebFOCUS Administrator to obtain the license that you will need to proceed.

#### Resolving OutOfMemoryError Exceptions

You may encounter situations where Magnify Search may crash due to an *OutOfMemoryError* exception.

As a workaround, when starting your application server, add the following command-line option to Java:

\$ java -XX:+HeapDumpOnOutOfMemoryError

This command-line option generates a heap dump when an allocation from the Java heap or the permanent generation cannot be satisfied. In addition, this command-line option is not resource intensive, so it can be useful in production environment when resolving *OutOfMemoryError* exceptions.

You can also specify this option during runtime using the MBeans tab in the jconsole utility.

The heap dump is in HPROF binary format, which can be analyzed using any tools that can import this format.

For example, you can download the Eclipse Memory Analyzer tool for this purpose from the following website:

#### http://www.eclipse.org/mat/

Open the heap dump (.hprof) file using Eclipse Memory Analyzer, which will provide you with the required information you can review and also send to Information Builders Technical Support to help you diagnose the issue.

# Index

# A

adding META elements 152

## В

BODY tag 152

#### С

configuration worksheets 156 configuring Magnify Search 146 creating HTML 152

## D

Dynamic Categorization Tree 151, 155

# F

Feed to Search Engine object 155

## Η

HEAD 152 HTML 152

# I

implementing Magnify Search 15

iWay Integration Tools Designer 146iWay Integration Tools Transformer 146iWay Service Manager 146

#### L

listener 150

#### Μ

Magnify Search 13 configuring 15 META tags 152

#### Ρ

process flows 146

# T

TITLE **152** 

## X

XML document captured by the listener 151 XML file from the listener 150

# Feedback

Customer success is our top priority. Connect with us today!

Information Builders Technical Content Management team is comprised of many talented individuals who work together to design and deliver quality technical documentation products. Your feedback supports our ongoing efforts!

You can also preview new innovations to get an early look at new content products and services. Your participation helps us create great experiences for every customer.

To send us feedback or make a connection, contact Sarah Buccellato, Technical Editor, Technical Content Management at Sarah\_Buccellato@ibi.com.

To request permission to repurpose copyrighted material, please contact Frances Gambino, Vice President, Technical Content Management at *Frances\_Gambino@ibi.com*.

# **WebFOCUS**

Magnify Search Developer's Guide Release 8.2 Version 01M



Information Builders, Inc. Two Penn Plaza New York, NY 10121-2898

DN4501653.0519